

SOCIAL CARE, HEALTH AND WELLBEING CABINET BOARD

Immediately Following Scrutiny Committee on THURSDAY, 7 JUNE 2018

COMMITTEE ROOMS A/B - NEATH CIVIC CENTRE

- 1. To agree the Chairperson for this Meeting
- 2. To receive any declarations of interest from Members
- 3. To receive the Minutes of the previous Social Care, Health and Wellbeing Cabinet Board held on the 10 May 2018 (Pages 3 6)
- 4. To receive the Forward Work Programme 18/19 (Pages 7 10)

<u>To receive the Reports of the Director of Social Services,</u> Health and Housing

- 5. Western Bay Safeguarding Board Joint Annual Business Plan 2018/19 (Pages 11 28)
- 6. National Integrated Health and Social Care Collaborative Framework for Younger Adults (*Pages 29 130*)
- 7. Urgent Items any urgent items (whether public or exempt) at the discretion of the Chairperson pursuant to Statutory Instrument 2001 No 2290 (as amended)
- 8. Access to Meetings to resolve to exclude the public for the following items pursuant to Regulation 4 (3) and (5) of Statutory Instrument 2001 No.2290 and the relevant exempt paragraphs of Part 4 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972

Part 2

To receive the Private Report of the Director of Social Services, Health and Housing

9. The Children's Home (Wales) Regulations 2002 (Exempt Under Paragraph 13) (Pages 131 - 212)

S.Phillips Chief Executive

Civic Centre Port Talbot

1 June 2018

Cabinet Board Members:

Councillors: A.R.Lockyer and P.D.Richards

Notes:

- (1) If any Cabinet Board Member is unable to attend, any other Cabinet Member may substitute as a voting Member on the Committee. Members are asked to make these arrangements direct and then to advise Democratic Services staff.
- (2) The views of the earlier Scrutiny Committee are to be taken into account in arriving at decisions (pre decision scrutiny process).

EXECUTIVE DECISION RECORD SOCIAL CARE, HEALTH AND WELLBEING CABINET BOARD 10 MAY 2018

Cabinet Members:

Councillors: A.R.Lockyer and P.D.Richards (Chairperson)

Officers in Attendance:

A.Jarrett, K.Warren, J.Hodges, A.Thomas and J.Woodman-Ralph.

Invited Members:

Cllr.L.Purcell (Scrutiny Chairperson), Cllr. S. Freeguard (Scrutiny Vice Chairperson).

1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRPERSON

Agreed that Councillor P.D.Richards be appointed Chairperson for the meeting.

2. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS SOCIAL CARE, HEALTH AND WELLBEING CABINET BOARD HELD ON THE 5 APRIL, 2018

Noted by Committee

3. **FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 18/19**

That the report be noted.

4. WESTERN BAY POOLED FUND FOR CARE HOMES OPTIONS PAPER

Decision:

That approval be granted for Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council to progress Option, 1 as detailed in the circulated report, as the preferred option and that Officers work with Western Bay partner organisations to progress Option 1.

Reason for Decision:

To allow the Authority to be compliant with the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 that Option 1 had been identified as being the option that will produce the greatest benefits in 18/19.

Implementation of Decision:

The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period.

5. UPDATE ON THE COMMISSIONING STRATEGY FOR CARE HOMES FOR OLDER PEOPLE: NEATH PORT IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 2016/2019 AND THE OLDER PERSON'S RESIDENTIAL CARE HOMES IN NEATH PORT TALBOT REPORT

Decision:

That the report be noted.

6. ACCESS TO MEETINGS

That pursuant to Regulation 4(3) and (5) of Statutory Instrument 2001 No.2290, the public be excluded for the following items of business which involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the undermentioned Paragraphs of Part 4 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972.

7. PROVISION OF EDUCATIONAL SERVICES AT HILLSIDE (EXEMPT UNDER PARAGRAPH 14)

Members received a verbal update at the meeting explaining that the report for consideration at today's meeting was for Members' Information and not for Decision as detailed in the circulated report.

Decision

That the report be noted.

8. CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS FOR CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SHORT BREAK SERVICES (EXEMPT UNDER PARAGRAPH 14)

Decisions:

- That the Interim Head of Children and Young People Services to be granted delegated authority to enter into a new contract with Action for Children for the provision of short break services until March 31st 2019, with an option to extend this contract for a further period of up to 12 months;
- 2. That Officers be authorised to commence any required public consultation to support the recommissioning and procurement of short break services if required;
- 3. That, subsequent to a review of the current short break services a competitive open procurement exercise be commenced to recommission these services:
- 4. That, following the procurement process, the Interim Head of Children and Young People's Services be granted delegated authority to enter into new contract(s) with the bidder(s) evaluated as offering the most economically advantageous tender (taking into account the quality and cost of the bids) for the provision of short break services.

Reason for Decisions:

1. To enable the Council to be provided with a legally binding agreement setting out the approved terms of working with the provider. To offer protection to the Council in the event of a dispute

- and ensure that the provider delivers in line with the Council's expectations.
- 2. To ensure that by entering into the new interim contractual arrangements with AFC these existing vital front-line services are not disrupted.
- To enable the Council, if following a review of the current service there is a need to fundamentally change the type or level of service, entering into a public consultation will ensure that the views and opinions of the public inform the Council's decision making process.
- 4. To ensure that by undertaking a procurement exercise for Children and Young People's Short Break services the Council is best placed to continue meeting the needs and demands of those that require the service through the purchasing of high quality and finically sustainable services.

Implementation of Decisions:

That the decisions will be implemented after the three day call in period.

CHAIRPERSON

Social Care, Health and Wellbeing Cabinet Committee

2018/2019 FORWARD WORK PLAN (DRAFT) SOCIAL CARE, HEALTH AND WELLBEING CABINET BOARD

DATE	Agenda Items	Type (Decision, Monitoring or Information)	Rotation (Topical, ,Annual, Biannual, Quarterly , Monthly)	Contact Officer/ Head of Service
	Strategic Commissioning Plan Consultation	Decision	Topical	Angela Thomas/ Chele Howard
5 July	Quarterly Performance Indicators – Quarter 4	Monitoring	Quarterly	lan Finnemore/ Angela Thomas
	Monitoring the Performance and Progress of the Wester Bay Regional Adoption Service	Monitoring	Annual	Andrew Jarrett/ Val Jones

Social Care, Health and Wellbeing Cabinet Committee

DATE		Type (Decision, Monitoring or Information)	Rotation (Topical, ,Annual, Biannual, Quarterly, Monthly)	Contact Officer/ Head of Service
	Mental Health Review	Monitoring	Topical	Andrew Jarrett
2 Aug 18	Homelessness Strategy Consultation	Decision	Topical	Angela Thomas/ Chele Howard
	Western Bay Youth Offending Service Annual Report including the Youth Justice Plan	Decision	Annual	Caroline Dyer/ Andrew Jarrett

Social Care, Health and Wellbeing Cabinet Committee

DATE	Agenda Items	Type (Decision, Monitoring or Information)	Rotation (Topical, ,Annual, Biannual, Quarterly, Monthly)	Contact Officer/ Head of Service
	Western Bay Youth Offending Service Annual Report includes the Youth Justice Plan	Decision	Annual	Caroline Dyer/ Andrew Jarrett
13 Sept	Western Bay Safeguarding Children Board Annual Report/Business Plan	Monitoring	Annual	Lisa Hedley/ Andrew Jarrett
	Hillside Managers Report	Monitoring	Quarterly	A.Jarrett
	Hillside (The Children Home Wales)	Monitoring	Quarterly	A.Jarrett
	Quarterly Performance Indicators	Monitoring	Quarterly	lan Finnermore/ Angela Thomas

This page is intentionally left blank

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL SOCIAL CARE, HEALTH AND WELLBEING CABINET BOARD

7th June 2018

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH & HOUSING ANDREW JARRETT

Matter for Monitoring

Wards Affected: All

WESTERN BAY SAFEGUARDING BOARDS JOINT ANNUAL BUSINESS PLAN 2018/19

Purpose of Report

To report on the Western Bay Safeguarding Boards' Joint Annual Business Plan 2018/19.

Executive Summary

As per the regulations within the the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 the Western Bay Safeguarding Boards are required to produce and publish an annual business plan by 31st March each year.

Attached is the Western Bay Safeguarding Boards' annual plan for 2018/19 which was published on 28th March 2018. This is the first annual plan which encompasses both safeguarding priorities for Adults and Children recognising that most of what we do cuts across. Two priority areas have been identified for the forthcoming year which are:

- 1. Safeguarding People from Exploitation. This will include addressing current topics such as county lines and also increase focus on Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking.
- 2. Safeguarding People in Care Settings. This priority intends to bring consistency to monitoring of Care Homes for adults and children in relation to safeguarding standards and aims to develop improved

contract and monitoring arrangements through the implementation of such standards.

The annual plan is developed in accordance with the regulations and is set in a template allowing consistency across Wales.

A copy has also been submitted to the National Independent Safeguarding Board.

Financial Impact

Working Together to Safeguard People – Volume 1 is the statutory guidance which underpins Part 7 of the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014. Within the guidance a funding formula is set to ensure agency contributions to the functioning of the Safeguarding Boards and its work. NPTCBC hold a multi- agency ring-fenced budget on behalf of the Board which NPTCBC is also contributor.

Equality Impact Assessment

Not Applicable

Workforce Impacts

The Safeguarding Boards have a dedicated management unit which is funded via the above mentioned multi agency budget therefore, there are no workforce impacts associated with this report.

Legal Impacts

There are no legal impacts associated with this report.

Risk Management

A risk register is maintained by the Boards' management unit.

Consultation Outcome

Not applicable.

Sustainability Appraisal

Not applicable.

Recommendation

This item is for monitoring purposes.

Reasons for Proposed Decision

Not applicable.

Implementation of Decision

Not applicable.

Appendices

Western Bay Safeguarding Boards Joint Annual Plan

List of Background Papers

None

Officer Contact

Lisa Hedley, Strategic Business Development Manager, Western Bay Safeguarding Boards, Tel. 01639 686049 Email. l.hedley@npt.gov.uk







WESTERN BAY SAFEGUARDING BOARDS JOINT ANNUAL PLAN 2018 - 2019

Introduction

On 6th April 2016 the Social Services and Wellbeing Act 2014 will become law and with it Section 134 – 141 (Part 7) of the SSWA 2014 replaces the requirements for Local Safeguarding Children Boards referenced above with new provisions for Safeguarding Boards. The Safeguarding Board (General) (Wales) Regulations 2015 make provisions for the requirements of Safeguarding Boards including the production of an annual business plan. This Business Plan has been developed for both the Western Bay Safeguarding Adults Board and Western Bay Safeguarding Children Board in accordance with the Safeguarding Board (Wales) Regulations 2015.

What is Safeguarding and what does it mean? What is the responsibility of the Board?

Safeguarding Board Objectives

The objectives of a Safeguarding Children Board are:

- a) To protect within its area who are experiencing, or at risk of abuse, neglect or other kinds of harm, and
- b) To prevent children within its area from becoming at risk of abuse, neglect or other kinds of harm.

The objectives of a Safeguarding Adults Board are:

- a. To protect adults within its area who
 - i. Have needs for care and support (whether or not a local authority is meeting any of those needs), and
 - ii. Are experiencing, or at risk of, abuse or neglect, and
- b. To prevent those adults within its area mentioned above from becoming at risk of abuse or neglect.

There is one set of regulations for the functions and procedures of both Safeguarding Adults Boards and Safeguarding Children Boards in line with Welsh Government's commitment to improving safeguarding arrangements for everyone. This annual plan has been developed in the provides a framework for those improvements and focusses on the strategic priorities set by the Boards.

Core Business

The Boards recognise its functions under Section 139 of the Safeguarding Board Regulations within the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 as its core business. Core Business/core functions underpin the effectiveness of a Safeguarding Board and so they are written into each Boards' the Terms of Reference and its management groups and includes the responsibility to make enquiries into organisations and other partnerships in relation to their safeguarding responsibilities. Membership and structures are regularly reviewed and updated within the Safeguarding Board arrangements and work plans for each management group are aligned with this business plan and include core business functions, actions to achieve and success measures to enable us to monitor effectiveness. The management groups' work plans will also include mechanisms on how they will engage and include people who may be affected by their work into the work they are required to do. These plans are regularly reviewed and amended throughout the year and status reports are provided to the Boards on progress.

Members of the Safeguarding Boards

Membership of the Safeguarding Boards is compliant with Chapter two of the Guidance under Part 7 section 139(3) of the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014. For Western Bay Safeguarding Adults Board the membership and their area of responsibility is set out below:

Organisation	Post	Area of Responsibility	Name	
Bridgend County Borough Council	Corporate Director for Social Services & Wellbeing	Chair of WBSAB & Local Authority representative for Bridgend CBC	Susan Cooper	
Neath Port Talbot Borough Council	Director of Social Services, Health & Housing	Local Authority representative for Neath Port Talbot CBC	Andrew Jarrett	
City & Council of Swansea	Chief Social Services Officer	Local Authority representative for City & Council of Swansea	David Howes	
City & Council of Swansea	Head of Adult Services Swansea Council	Adults Services representative & Policy Procedure Practice Management Group representative	Alex Williams	
Bridgend County Borough Council	Head of Adult Services Bridgend CBC	Adults Services Bridgend Representative	Jackie Davies	

ABMU Health Board	Corporate Lead for Safeguarding & Head/Deputy of Safeguarding Children	Vice Chair & Head of Safeguarding ABMUHB	Cathy Dowling
Public Health Wales	Designated Doctor in Public Health Wales	Public Health Wales representation	Dr Lorna Price
South Wales Police	Superintendent	South Wales Police Public Protection	Claire Evans
Wales Probation Trust NPS	Assistant Chief Executive Head of Swansea, Neath Port Talbot and Bridgend	NPS representative	Eirian Evans
Wales Probation Trust CRC	Probation Service representative	Wales CRC representative	David Bebb
ABMU Health Board Mental Health	Mental Capacity Act and Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards	Representative for IMCA Service	Karen Williams
Swansea Council for Voluntary Services	Support Services Team Leader	Representative for SCVS	Danielle Lock
NPTCBC, BCBC, Swansea Council	Domestic Abuse Co- ordinator	Domestic Abuse Representative	Bethan Lindsay-Gaylard
Secured Estate	Director/ Governor	Parc Prison/ HMP Swansea Secure Estate representative	Lisette Saunders/ Graham Barrett
Care Home Providers	Home Managers/RI's/ Providers/Directors etc	Third Sector representation	Diane Purnell Jaqueline Orrells Chris Rees Christian Heinrich & Inti Zirga

South Wales Police	Independent Protecting Vulnerable Person Manager	Practice Review Management Group representative	Sue Hurley
	Valiferable i croom Mariager	Toprosoniative	
NPT County Borough	Learning, Training &	Joint Strategic Training Group representative	Lynne Doyle
Council	Development Manager		
Bridgend County	Service Manager	Quality & Performance Monitoring	Terri Warrilow
Borough Council	Safeguarding	Management Group representative	

For Western Bay Safeguarding Children Board the membership and their area of responsibility is set out below:

Organisation	Post	Area of Responsibility	Name
NPTCBC	Director of Social Services Health & Housing	Chair & Local authority representative	Andrew Jarrett
South Wales Police (Western BCU)	Superintendent	South Wales Police representative/Vice Chair	Simon Belcher
South Wales Police (Central BCU)	Superintendent	South Wales Police representative	Claire Evans
National Probation Service	Assistant Chief Executive	Probation Service representative	Eirian Evans
Safeguarding Services Public Health Wales	Designated Nurse Child Protection and Looked After Children	Public Health Wales representative	Daphne Rose
NSPCC	Services Manager	Voluntary sector representative	Karen Minton
Barnardo's	Strategic Manager	Voluntary sector representative	Sarah Bowen
CVS	CCoS CVS	Local Voluntary Sector representative across WB	Clare Hopkins

Western Bay Youth Justice and Early Intervention Service	Youth Offending Services Manager	Western Bay Youth Offending services and Quality & Performance Management Group representative	Caroline Dyer
Prison Service	Head of YOI	HMP Parc	Jason Evans
Hillside Secure Unit	Manager	Hillside Secure Centre	Alison Davies
Bridgend Local Authority	Director of Social Services & Lead Director for CYP	Local Authority representative Bridgend CBC	Susan Cooper
Bridgend County Borough Council	Head of Children's Services	Children's Services Representative Bridgend CBC	Laura Kinsey
NPT County Borough Council	Lead Director Children & Young People	Local Authority representative NPTCBC	Aled Evans
NPT County Borough Council	Head of Children and Young People Services	Children's Services Representative NPTCBC	Keri Warren
City & County of Swansea	Chief Officer Social Services	Local Authority representative Swansea Council	Dave Howes
City & County of Swansea	Chief Officer Education	Local Authority representative Swansea Council	Nick Williams / Kathryn Thomas
City & County of Swansea	Head of Child and Family Services	Children's Services representative Swansea Council	Julie Thomas
ABMUHB	Assistant Nurse Director	ABMU Health Board representative	Cathy Dowling
ABMUHB	Assistant Medical Director Primary Care	Health Board Representative – Primary Care	Dr Matt Stevens
Public Health Wales National Rep.	Named Professional Safeguarding Children	PHW representative	Ian Smith
Swansea Domestic Abuse Forum	Domestic Abuse Coordinator	Domestic Abuse Forum: Swansea, NPT and Bridgend representative	Ali Morris

ABMUHB	Lead Nurse Safeguarding Children	Policy, Procedure and Practice Management Group representative	Virginia Hewitt
South Wales Police	Independent Protecting Vulnerable Person Manager	Practice Review Management Group representative	Sue Hurley
NPT County Borough Council	Learning, Training & Development Manager	Joint Strategic Training Group representative	Lynne Doyle

Safeguarding Priority Outcomes 2018/19

Safeguarding Priority 1. SAFEGUARDING PEOPLE FROM EXPLOITATION

Strategic Outcome: THE WBSBs ARE RESPONDING APPROPRIATELY AND EFFECTIVELY TO THE IMPACTS OF EXPLOITATION

Priority Objectives:

- 1.1 Safeguarding is a priority consideration within the parameters of Human Trafficking and Modern Slavery.
- 1.2 People across the region are aware of the risks identified within County Lines (incl. Cuckooing) and are safeguarded from all aspects of criminal exploitation.
- 1.3 All Children and young people who are subject to or at risk of Child Sexual Exploitation are identified and safeguarded effectively, consistently and at the earliest opportunity

Priority Objectives	Where are we	What improvements are	Lead Safeguarding	Management Group	By When
	now?	needed to fulfil objectives?	Board	lead:	
1.1 Safeguarding is a priority	There are tentative	Understand the wider impacts	WBSAB/WBSCB	-	May 2018
consideration within the	links between	and issues the Modern Slavery			
parameters of Human Trafficking	WBSBs and the	Act has on Safeguarding.			
and Modern Slavery.	Western Bay Anti				
	Human Trafficking	Build data collection and	WBSAB/WBSCB	Quality & Performance	September
	Forum. Most First	analysis of NRM and MARAC		Management Groups	2018
	Responders are	information into Performance			
	now aware of their	Frameworks			
	role in the NRM				
	process	Undertake Audit Safeguarding	WBSAB/WBSCB	Quality & Performance	January
		processes linked to NRM and		Management Grops	2019
		MARAC information			
1.2 People across the region	Increasing	Promote training for staff	WBSAB/WBSCB	Strategic Training	June 2018
are aware of the risks identified	professional	enabling them to identify		Management Group	
within County Lines (incl.	awareness resulting	indicators of exploitation			
Cuckooing) and are safeguarded	in improved				
from all aspects of criminal	recognition; A	Develop a public awareness		Communication &	September
exploitation.	police poster	campaign to raise awareness		Engagement Group	2018
	campaign in	of County lines, criminal			

	hospitals and council buildings is raising public awareness	exploitation, the use of vulnerable people in targeted drug running			
		Develop practice guidance to underpin WG's Handling Individual Cases which identifies pathways (eg Radicalisation, prevent, Chanel) to safeguarding people in specific exploitative situations	WBSAB	Policy Procedure & Practice Management Group	December 2018
		Include in practice guidance how transition to adulthood is managed for children who are identified as suffering exploitation.	WBSAB/WBSCB	Policy Procedure & Practice Management Group	January 2019
All Children and young people who are subject to or at risk of Child Sexual Exploitation are identified and safeguarded effectively, consistently and at	Regular data is collected and analysed for WBSCB. A CSE mispers group	Work with Welsh Government in the development of revised guidance for safeguarding children at risk of CSE	WBSCB	Policy Procedure & Practice Management Group	June 2018
the earliest opportunity	meets regularly and makes links with local MASE groups.	Establish links with specialist providers to capture the experiences from children and young people affected by CSE	WBSCB	Communications and Engagement Group	Sept 2018
		Review the impact of Barnardo's Gwella Project	WBSCB	Policy Procedure Practice Management Group (CSE/MISPERs sub group)	March 2019

Safeguarding Priority 2. Safeguarding People in Care Settings

Strategic Outcome: EFFECTIVE QUALITY MONITORING AND ASSURANCE IS IN PLACE TO SAFEGUARD PEOPLE IN CARE SETTINGS

Priority Objective:

- 2.1 All adult's & Children's residential and nursing care homes in the region are compliant with the Regulation and Inspection Act and strive to meet the highest safeguarding standards required to safeguard people's wellbeing
- 2.2 There is a consistent approach to commissioning and monitoring arrangements throughout Children's and Adults' residential care settings
- 2.3 All contracting and commissioning arrangements include safeguarding standards as a routine requirement

Priority Objectives	Where are we now?	What improvements are needed to fulfil objectives?	Lead Safeguarding Board	Management Group lead:	By When
2.1 All adult's & Children's residential and nursing care homes in the region are compliant with the Regulation and Inspection	The regulation and inspection Act comes into force on 2 nd April 2018	Work with Care Inspectorate Wales to understand the level of Care provision available across the region.	WBSAB	-	May 2018
Act and strive to meet the highest safeguarding standards required to safeguard people's wellbeing	The WBSBs have not had direct oversight of the numbers of care settings across the region.	Work with the Western Bay Care Homes Sub Group to have oversight on the implementation of actions following the Older People's Commissioner's report – A Place Called Home	WBSAB	Quality & Performance Monitoring Management Group	Ongoing
		Have oversight of the Memorandum of Understanding between SWP (Western BCU) and local care	WBSCB	Quality & Performance Monitoring Management Group	Ongoing

	homes to quality assure its effectiveness Undertake an audit/engagement exercise to audit Wellbeing in Care Settings	WBSAB/WBSCB	Quality & Performance Monitoring Management Groups	January 2019
2.2 There is a consistent approach to commissioning and monitoring arrangements throughout Children's and Adults' residential care settings	Undertake Mapping exercise of the quality monitoring processes across Adults' & Children's' residential Care settings	WBSAB/WBSCB	Q&PMMGs	June 2018
	Identify areas for unification of process in quality monitoring	WBSAB/WBSCB	PPPMGs	June 2018
	Develop a unified process for quality monitoring and Safeguarding Board oversight			December 2018
2.3 All contracting and commissioning arrangements include safeguarding standards as a	Develop and Promote WBSBs as a Brand	WBSAB/WBSCB	STMG/Communication and Engagement Group	June 2018
routine requirement	Develop Practice Guidance for Embedding Safeguarding into Contracting and Commissioning Arrangements	WBSAB	Policy Procedure & Practice Management Group	September 2018
		WBSAB		March 2019

Develop an implementation	Quality & Performance
plan for new and renewed	Monitoring Management
contracts for audit purposes	Group

Expenditure:

The Western Bay Safeguarding Boards have held a shared budget for several years and have successfully managed their expenditure without any additional contributions required to support the inclusion of Western Bay Safeguarding Adults Board expenditure. There are two main reasons for this. One is based on the largest expenditure being staff. The Business Management Unit consists of 1 Manager, 2 x Business Coordinators and 1 x administrator. This resource has been effective in managing and coordinating all arrangements for the Safeguarding Boards and its management groups. The other has been the year on year savings from projected CPR/APR expenditure. Pooling a resource of independent reviewers across the region has allowed the Boards to significantly save on expenditure used for commissioning external review writers.

Projected Budget for 2018/19 Is as follows:

Item	Туре	Allocated budget
Staff	1 x Board Manager, 2 x Coordinators	£142,990
	1 x Administrator	
Conferences/Awareness raising	1 x annual conference, 6 x multi	£15,000
	agency learning events	
Practice Reviews	APRs x 7 @ £750	£10,500
	CPRs x 7 @ £750	
Training	Various	£10000
Admin	Travel, subsistence, mobiles, printing	£5000

TOTAL: £183,490

Collaboration:

The role of collaboration and participation for Safeguarding Boards is twofold. The SSWBA part 7 volume 1 outlines the expectation of Safeguarding Boards to provide children and adults who are, or maybe affected by the exercises of a Safeguarding Board the opportunity to participate in its work function. In addition to this the Safeguarding Boards also have an assurance role in ensuring its' partner agencies are engaging with people and the voice of the adult at risk or child is heard across safeguarding practice. This will inevitably look different in different agencies and so the Boards have a role in continuous audit and review in this area. Additionally the Boards, as part of its' Core Business should ensure that each Management Group work plan includes how they can include the voice of the people their work is likely to affect.

The Western Bay Safeguarding Boards acknowledge the links between these local, regional and national partnerships and the safeguarding themes that run through them. In particular Western Bay Safeguarding Boards will ensure close links are made with each Community Safety Partnership across the region with a strategic focus on Domestic Abuse and the local VAWDASV (Violence Against Women Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence) strategies. In previous years, the Safeguarding Boards have considered Domestic Abuse as a safeguarding priority and although the topic is not included within this annual plan the Boards are keen to ensure communications between the partnerships are maintained and that safeguarding people at risk of or suffering domestic abuse remains key in the delivery of the strategy.

The Boards must also build relationships and work closely with the other partnerships locally, regionally and nationally to ensure Safeguarding is on everyone's agenda. These include, Public Service Boards, Anti Human Trafficking Groups, Other Safeguarding Boards, National Independent Safeguarding Board and Welsh Government.

This page is intentionally left blank

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL SOCIAL CARE, HEALTH & WELL-BEING CABINET BOARD

7th JUNE 2018

Report of the Director of Social Services, Health & Housing – A. Jarrett

Matter for Decision

Wards Affected: All Wards

TO SEEK APPROVAL TO SPOT PURCHASE FROM THE NATIONAL INTEGRATED HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE COLLABORATIVE FRAMEWORK FOR YOUNGER ADULTS

1 Purpose of Report

To seek approval for Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council ("the Council") to spot purchase from the National Integrated Health & Social Care Collaborative Framework, when it is advantageous to do so.

2 Executive Summary

- 2.1 The Western Bay Brokerage service to locate and cost Mental Health Residential Placements was established in 2014 (spot contracts not currently under a Local Authority framework). The service was extended to Learning Disability Residential Placements in 2017. The service runs on behalf of the four partner organisations within the Western Bay Region and reports to the Contracting and Procurement Project Board.
- 2.2 Through the Western Bay Health and Social Care Programme Contracting and Procurement Project Board, the Council has made a commitment in principle to follow other local authorities across Wales and spot purchase through the Framework should it be advantageous to do so.

2.3 The purpose of the framework is to aid the placement of younger adults with complex care needs, raise the quality of service provision at similar or reduced costs compared to existing placements, and comply with procurement rules.

3 Background

- 3.1 The Integrated Health & Social Care Collaborative Commissioning Programme (IHSCCCP) has been financed by Welsh Government "Invest to Save" funding.
- 3.2 The inaugural project of the IHSCCCP was the National Integrated Health and Social Care Collaborative Framework ("the Framework"), a national framework that was launched in Cardiff in October 2016 and aims to support the spot purchasing of younger persons (18 to 64 years of age) Mental Health and Learning Disability Residential Placements across Wales by Local Authorities and Health Boards.
- 3.3 Council officers are aware that on an all Wales level, only four younger people's residential services have not signed up to the Framework, so it is felt the Framework has a commitment from a wide range of providers.
- 3.4 The IHSCCCP Framework has been live since October 2016, and currently there are eighteen Local Authorities and seven Health Boards who have made a commitment to spot purchase from the Framework.
- 3.5 Welsh Government grant funding facilitated the enhancement of the NHS Care Assurance and Performance System (CAPS) developed by NHS Wales Commissioning Collaborative for Mental Health and Learning Disability Services to manage the external provision of secure hospital and rehabilitation services across Wales from a 'database' of patient and provider information into CCAPS (Commissioning Care Assurance and Performance System); a tool to support the ongoing care, treatment and support of those with non-NHS Wales or local authority care settings.
- 3.6 The issues faced by the NHS in Wales that led to the development of CCAPS have been mirrored within social care, including:
 - Insufficient quality and safety of placement choices

- Increasing demand and complexity of presenting individuals
- Increasing costs within a largely independent sector market driven economy
- 3.7 The Swansea Centre for Health Economics (SCHE), Swansea University, has commenced a benefits evaluation of CCAPS highlighting examples of the benefits which may be delivered from the collaborative commissioning of care at various levels across health and social care, as follows:
 - Supporting patients/clients to receive the right services, care and support across health and social care (micro-level)
 - Facilitating collaborative working between providers and commissioners to ensure safe and effective care (meso-level)
 - Collating data of commissioned services at national (e.g. Welsh Government), regional (e.g. Local Authority Collaborative) and local level (e.g. individual Health Boards and Local Authorities) to create strategic commissioning opportunities (macro-level)
- 3.8 The Framework is central to the Western Bay collaborative and the Western Bay Learning Disabilities and Mental Health Brokerage Service, a service that acts on behalf of Western Bay partners to spot purchase from the Framework.
- 3.9 As part of the Western Bay collaborative, the use of the Framework was endorsed in principle by senior managers of the Council through the Western Bay Health and Social Care Programme Contracting and Procurement Project Board. The other partners Bridgend County Borough Council, City and County of Swansea and Abertawe Bro Morgannwg University Health Board have already obtained approval to spot purchase from the Framework.
- 3.10 Placements on the Framework are likely to occur where an improvement in quality at similar or reduced costs to non-framework agreement placements can be expected.

4 Financial Impact

Any spot purchases made via the Framework are expected to be cost neutral or have a cost saving when compared with non-framework agreement placements.

5 Equality Impact Assessment

There are no equality impacts associated with this report.

6 Workforce Impacts

There are no workforce impacts associated with this report.

7 Legal Impacts

The National Integrated Health and Social Care Collaborative Framework was competitively tendered via the Official Journal of the European Union and the Council were named a part as entitled to use it. Therefore, it is a compliant source of procurement. The Council will be bound to the terms and conditions of the Framework and advice will be sought from the Head of Legal Services in any call offs that are to take place.

8 Risk Management

There are no risk management issues associated with this report.

9 Consultation

There is no requirement under the Constitution for external consultation on this item.

10 Recommendation

It is recommended that Members approve the use of the National Collaborative Framework for Young Adults in Mental Health and Learning Disabilities Care Homes and Care Homes with Nursing for NHS and Local Authorities in Wales and that delegated authority be granted to the Head of Commissioning, Support and Direct Services and the Head of Children and Young People Services to enter into any one off arrangements that may be required where services are requested under the said Framework.

11 Reasons for proposed decision

Adopting the National Framework will help improve local placement and provider quality with a neutral or beneficial cost to the authority when compared with non-framework placements.

12 Implementation of Decision

The decision is proposed for implementation after the three day call in period.

13 Appendices

Appendix 1 - National Integrated Health & Social Care Collaborative Framework

14 List of Background Papers

None.

15 Officer Contact

For further information on this report item, please contact:

Andrew Jarrett, Director of Social Services, Health & Housing,

Telephone: 763279

Email: a.jarrett@npt.gov.uk

Angela Thomas, Head of Commissioning, Support & Direct

Services,

Telephone: 763794

Email: a.j.thomas@npt.gov.uk

Chelé Zandra Howard, PO for Commissioning,

Telephone: 685221

Email: c.howard@npt.gov.uk



Date: 2016

- (1) Velindre NHS Trust
- (2) [Provider]

National Collaborative Framework

for

Younger Adults (18 - 64 years) in Mental Health and Learning Disabilities Care Homes & Care Homes with Nursing for NHS and Local Authorities in Wales



Blake Morgan One Central Square Cardiff CF10 1FS Ref: 215110.344

Contents

1	Interpretation	1
2	Term of framework agreement	11
3	Scope of framework agreement	12
4	Provider's appointment	13
5	Non-exclusivity	13
6	Warranties and representations	13
7	Prevention of corruption and bribery	14
8	Conflicts of interest	15
9	Safeguard against fraud	15
10	Equality act	16
11	Call-off contract performance	16
12	Prices for services	17
13	Statutory requirements	17
14	Information requirements	17
15	Performance monitoring and reporting	17
16	Records and audit access	17
17	Resident care records	19
18	Confidentiality	19
19	Data protection	20
20	Publicity	22
21	Termination	22
22	Suspension of Provider's appointment	24
23	Consequences of termination and expiry	25
24	Liability	26
25	Intellectual property	26
26	Insurance	26
27	Transfer and sub-contracting	27
28	Denial of partnership	28
29	Rights of third parties	28
30	Variation to the framework agreement	28
31	Waiver	28
32	Severability	28
33	Force majeure	28

34	Entire agreement				
35	Notices				
36	Complaints handling and resolution				
37	Dispute resolution	. 30			
38	Welsh language obligations	. 31			
39	Costs and expenses	. 31			
40	Law and jurisdiction	. 31			
41	Community benefits	. 31			
42	Financial Guarantee	. 31			
Schedule	e 1 Services and lots	. 32			
Part 1 Fr	amework lots	. 32			
Part 2 Pr	ovider's lots	. 32			
Schedule 2 Specification					
Part 1 Se	ervices	. 33			
Part 2 Re	Part 2 Resident Placement Procedure39				
Schedule 3 Applicable terms					
Schedule	9 4 Pricing	. 64			
Schedule	Schedule 5 Form of resident placement agreement				
Schedule	Schedule 6 Information requirements				
Schedule 7 Quality assurance improvement system71					
Schedule 8 Conditions precedent					
Schedule 9 Framework agreement variation procedure					
Schedule 10 Community benefits79					
Schedule 11 Guarantee80					

THIS AGREEMENT IS MADE ON THE [●] DAY OF [●] 2016

BETWEEN:

- (1) **Velindre NHS Trust** whose principal place of business is at Unit 2 Charnwood Court, Parc Nantgarw, Nantgarw, Cardiff CF15 7QZ (the "Trust"); and
- (2) [Name] (company number: [•]) whose registered address is [•] (the "Provider").

BACKGROUND

- (A) The Provider submitted a tender on [date].
- (B) On the basis of the Provider's tender, the Trust selected the Provider to enter a framework agreement to provide Services to the Commissioners on a call-off basis in respect of the Provider's Lots in accordance with this Framework Agreement.
- (C) This Framework Agreement sets out the ordering procedure for Services which may be required by the Commissioners, the main terms and conditions for any Placement Agreement which the Commissioners may conclude, and the obligations of the Provider during and after the term of this Framework Agreement.
- (D) This agreement is a framework only. There is no obligation on the Commissioners to award any orders under this Framework Agreement during its Term.

IT IS AGREED as follows:

1 INTERPRETATION

1.1 Unless the context otherwise requires, the following words and expressions shall have the following meanings:

1:1 Equivalent Care	the amount of	time in units of	one hour (or part t	hereof),
---------------------	---------------	------------------	------------	-----------	----------

calculated by means of a formula, to determine the direct care and support contact time provided to a Resident on the basis of one member of Staff to one

Resident;

Adult Safeguarding The process by which vulnerable adults are protected

from abuse, as described under Part 7 of the Social

Care and Well-being Act 2014.

Affiliate in relation to a party, a person who is, from time to time,

a subsidiary or holding company of that party, or is a

subsidiary of that party's holding company;

Applicable Terms the terms and conditions in Schedule 3;

Approval the prior written approval of the Trust or the

Commissioner as applicable;

Audit an audit carried out pursuant to Clause 16 of the

Framework Agreement and Clause 3 of the Applicable

Terms;

Auditor any agent or auditor appointed from time to time by (i)

the Trust or (ii) the Welsh Ministers, or (iii) the Wales

Audit Office or (iv) any Commissioner;

Authorised Officer a person designated as such by the Commissioner from

time to time to act as the representative of the Commissioner for all purposes connected with the Placement Agreement, including any authorised

representative of such person;

Care Co-Ordinator and / or

Case Manager

Care Home

a person, NHS or Local Authority employee responsible for planning, managing or coordinating of a Residents

care;

Care and Support Plan a plan for the purposes of achieving the outcomes

which the provision of the Services to the Resident are designed to achieve, and such Care and Support Plan will (where applicable) be pursuant to the Code of Practice to Parts 2 and 3 of the Mental Health (Wales)

Measure 2010:

Care and Support Plan Reviews the meeting held between Provider, Resident and Local

Care Team from time to time for the purpose of evaluating the effectiveness of the Services provided

and to document changes in the needs of the Resident;

premises (whether owned or controlled by the Provider or a third party) registered under a single registration number with the applicable regulator to provide all or

part of the Services;

Care and / or Clinical Record contemporaneous electronic or paper information

recorded by Staff for the purpose of managing a

Resident's care;

Care Setting a designated area within a Care Home whether a separate building, floor, annex, room or similar where

care services are provided to Residents, and such services may differ by reference to (i) Staff presence, dedicated Staff skills, experience and training, or (ii) the environment of care including (but not limited to)

environment of care, including (but not limited to) pictographic communication boards, kitchen setup or

similar;

CEDR

the Centre for Effective Dispute Resolution;

Commissioner

(i) any Local Health Board within Wales as defined in the National Health Service (Wales) Act 2006 or (ii) any Local Authority within Wales as defined in the Local Government (Wales) Act 1994 or any successor body exercising its or their functions, and "Commissioners" shall be construed accordingly;

Commissioning Care Assurance and Performance System or CCAPS

the informatics system used by Commissioners to contract and performance manage the Services Framework Providers pursuant to this Framework;

Commencement Date

1 October 2016:

Complaint

any formal complaint raised by any Commissioner in relation to the performance of the Framework Agreement or any Placement Agreement in accordance with Clause 36;

Conditions Precedent

the conditions precedent to service delivery referred to in Clause 2.2 and set out in Schedule 8;

Confidential Information

(1) all information (including all oral and visual information, and all information recorded in writing or electronically, or in any other medium or by any other method) disclosed to, or obtained by, one Party from the other Party or a third party acting on that other Party's behalf and which is of a confidential or commercially sensitive nature (as would be determined by a reasonable person) (2) all "personal data" or "sensitive personal data" (as both are defined in the DPA) and (3) all data relating to Residents, staff and business affairs of the Trust or the Commissioner;

Consent

- (a) any permission, consent, approval, certificate, permit, licence, statutory agreement, authorisation, exception or declaration required by Law for or in connection with the performance of the Services; and
- (b) any necessary consent or agreement from any third party needed either for the performance of the Provider's obligations under this Framework Agreement or any Placement Agreement or for the provision by the Provider of the Services in accordance with this Framework Agreement or any Placement Agreement, including any

registration with the Regulator;

Contract Manager

a person designated as such by the Provider from time to time as notified in writing to the Commissioner to act as the duly authorised representative of the Provider for all purposes connected with the Placement Agreement insofar as it relates to the Commissioner, including any authorised representative of such person;

Convictions

other than in relation to minor road traffic offences, any previous or pending prosecutions, convictions, cautions and binding-over orders (including any spent convictions as contemplated by Section 1(1) of the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 by virtue of the exemptions specified in Part II of Schedule 1 of the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 (Exceptions) Order 1975 (SI 1975 / 1023) or any replacement or amendment to that Order);

DPA

the Data Protection Act 1998 including all subordinate legislation made under that Act, any guidance and / or codes of practice issued from time to time by the Information Commissioner or relevant Government department, and any relevant rulings from time to time of the Information Commissioner or of the Courts of England and Wales relating to the DPA;

Electronic Trading System(s)

an electronic data interchange system and / or internet based web application and / or other application with such message standards and protocols as the Trust or the Commissioner may specify from time to time;

Equality Impact Assessment

a published process for narrowing the health inequalities that exist in Wales between people from different ethnic backgrounds, people with disabilities, men and women (including transgender people), people with different sexual orientations, people in different age groups, people with different religions or beliefs and people from differing social and economic groups;

Equipment

anything save for the Provider's premises, and the Staff that the Provider may use in the delivery of the Services (including, without limitation, vehicles);

Environmental Information Regulations

the Environmental Information Regulations 2004 together with any guidance and / or codes of practice issued by the Information Commissioner or relevant Government department in relation to such regulations;

Exit Assistance

the services provided by the Provider to facilitate the orderly transition of the Services to the Commissioner or a Replacement Provider;

FOIA

the Freedom of Information Act 2000 and any subordinate legislation made under such Act from time to time together with any guidance and / or codes of practice issued by the Information Commissioner or relevant government department in relation to such legislation;

Force Majeure

war, civil war, terrorism, riot or civil commotion and acts of government under emergency powers;

Framework Agreement

this framework agreement and all Schedules to this framework agreement and "Framework" shall be construed accordingly;

Framework Agreement Variation Procedure

the procedure set out in Schedule 9;

Framework Lots

the lots referred to in Schedule 1 Part 1;

Fraud

any offence under any law in respect of fraud in relation to this Framework Agreement or defrauding or attempting to defraud or conspiring to defraud the government, parliament, the Trust or the Commissioner;

Good Practice

the exercise of that degree of skill, diligence, prudence, risk management, quality management and foresight which would reasonably and ordinarily be expected from a skilled and experienced Provider engaged in the provision of services similar to the Services under the same or similar circumstances as those applicable to this Framework Agreement or any Placement Agreement, including in accordance with any codes of practice or Guidance published by the Trust or the Commissioner, the Welsh Government, the Department of Health or otherwise;

Guidance

any guidance issued or updated by the Welsh Ministers, the Department of Health or Ministry of Justice, the Medicines and Healthcare Products Regulatory Agency, the European Medicine Agency, the European Commission, Care and Social Services Inspectorate Wales, the Care Quality Commission and / or any other regulator or competent body from time to time which applies to the provision of the Services;

Health Board

any Local Health Board within Wales as defined in the National Health Service (Wales) Act 2006, or any successor body exercising its or their functions;

Information

has the meaning given under Section 84 of the FOIA;

Initial Term

a period of four (4) years commencing on the Commencement Date;

Intellectual Property Rights

patents, inventions, trademarks, service marks, logos, design rights (whether registerable or otherwise), applications for any of the foregoing, copyright, database rights, domain names, trade or business names, moral rights and other similar rights or obligations whether registerable or not in any country (including but not limited to the United Kingdom) and the right to sue for passing off;

Law

- (a) any Act of Parliament, Act or Measure of the Welsh Ministers or any other statute, proclamation, order, regulation, legislation (whether primary or subordinate) or other law which applies to the performance of this Framework Agreement or any Placement Agreement or to the provision of the Services:
- (b) any enforceable community right within the meaning of section 2(1) European Communities Act 1972;
- (c) any NHS Requirement, applicable code of practice, national minimum standard, Guidance, direction or determination with which the Trust or the Commissioner is bound to comply to the extent that the same are published and publicly available or the existence or the contents of them have been notified to the Provider by the Trust; and
- (d) any Local Authority Requirement applicable code of practice, national minimum standard, guidance, direction or determination with which the Trust or the Commissioner is bound to comply to the extent that the same are published and publicly available or the existence or the contents of them have been notified to the Provider by the Trust; and
- (e) any applicable judgment of a relevant court of law which is a binding precedent,

in each case in force from time to time in England and

Wales or in Wales;

Level 1 or Level 2 Performance Issue; and Level 1 or Level 2 Notice has the meaning set out in Schedule 7 (Quality Assurance Improvement System);

Local Authority Requirements

in relation to the Services, all mandatory Local Authority requirements and any similar official requests, requirements and Local Authority Service standards and recommendations having similar status for the time being in force, which either (a) are published and publicly available (whether on the Welsh Government's website, or the website of another competent authority or otherwise) or (b) are made known to the Provider by the Trust, the Commissioner, the Welsh Government, or otherwise;

Local Care Team

one or more designated individuals employed directly by or working for or on behalf of the Commissioners commissioning Services from a Provider pursuant to this Framework Agreement;

Material Default

(1) any material breach on the part of the Provider of this Framework Agreement or of a Placement Agreement; (2) any negligence or any reckless act or any other wrongful act or omission on the part of the Provider or of any Staff of the Provider; (3) any failure to provide Services in accordance with this Framework Agreement or any Placement Agreement or Law in respect of any Resident; (4) any other breach of Law;

Month

a calendar month;

National Minimum Standards

the National Minimum Standards for Care Homes for Younger Adults made by the Minister for Health and Social Services of the Welsh Assembly Government under the powers conferred by section 23(1) of the Care Standards Act 2000:

NHS Requirements

means, in relation to the Services, all mandatory National Health Service requirements and any similar official requests, requirements and National Health Service standards and recommendations having similar status for the time being in force, which either (a) are published and publicly available (whether on the Welsh Government's website, the Department of Health website, on the website of another competent authority or otherwise) or (b) are made known to the Provider by the Trust, the Commissioner, the Welsh Government,

the Department of Health or otherwise;

Placement Procedure the placement procedure for the Commissioner to

request the provision of Services from the Provider as

set out in Schedule 2 Part 2;

Placement Agreement an agreement between the Provider and the

Commissioner for the provision of Services in respect of a Resident executed by the Parties thereto in accordance with Clause 3 in the form set out in

Schedule 5;

Party (as the context so requires) the Trust, the relevant

Commissioner or the Provider;

Policies the policies, rules and procedures of the Trust or the

Commissioner as notified to the Provider from time to

time;

PQQ Response i) the response submitted by the Provider to the pre-

qualification questionnaire issued by the Trust on 5 February 2016, and ii) the information submitted by the Provider on 26 February in relation to its financial and

economic standing;

Pricing the pricing as set out in Schedule 4;

Provider's Lots the lot or lots to which the Provider has been appointed

under this Framework Agreement as set out in

Schedule 1 Part 2;

Regulator (i) the Care Quality Commission or (ii) the Care and

Social Services Inspectorate Wales (as the case may be) and any successor body or bodies from time to

time, as appropriate;

Replacement Provider any service provider engaged to replace the Provider or

any sub-contractor of the Provider;

Resident Care Outcomes or

RCO

the measurement or indicators of the Provider's performance in relation to delivery of the Services as

set out in Schedule 7 (Quality Assurance Improvement

System);

Resident a Resident, service user or client of the Commissioner

who is referred or presented to the Provider or otherwise receives Services under or pursuant to this

Framework Agreement;

Restricted Person

any person who has a material interest in the production of tobacco products or alcoholic beverages;

Serious Untoward Incident

an incident or accident or near-miss where a Resident, member of Staff, or member of the public suffers serious injury, major permanent harm or unexpected death in the Care Setting or where the actions of the Provider are likely to be of significant public concern;

Service Payment

the price payable by the Commissioner in consideration of the Provider's provision of Services under a Placement Agreement in accordance with this Framework Agreement;

Services

the services to be provided and managed by the Provider for the Commissioner as described in Schedule 2 Part 1;

Services Framework Providers

the Providers appointed as Services Framework Providers under this Framework Agreement;

Social Care

the provision of social work, personal care, protection or social support services to adults in need or at risk, or adults with needs arising from illness, disability, old age or poverty in line with the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014;

Specification

the Commissioner's requirement for the Services as set out in Schedule 2 as amended from time to time in accordance with the terms of this Framework Agreement;

Staff

all persons employed by the Provider together with the Provider's servants, agents, suppliers and sub-contractors used in the performance of its obligations under this Framework Agreement or any Placement Agreement;

Step in

has the meaning set out in Clause 15.2.2 of the Applicable Terms;

Step-in Event

where:

- (a) the Commissioner, acting reasonably, considers that a breach by the Provider of any obligation under this Framework Agreement:
 - may create an immediate and serious threat to the health or safety of any Residents, Staff

or persons present at the Care Homes; or

- (ii) may result in a material interruption in the provision of the Services; or
- (b) other than as described in Sub-Clause (a) above, the Commissioner considers that in any event there are circumstances that constitute an emergency or create a risk of the circumstances in paragraphs (a) (i) and (ii) above occurring;

Tender

the tender submitted by the Provider to the Trust on [date];

Term

the Initial Term, any extension thereof pursuant to Clause 2.4 and any period during which Exit Assistance is provided to the Trust and / or the Commissioners (as the case may be);

Transferring Employee

any employee of the Provider who, as a consequence of TUPE, may transfer or will transfer to a Replacement Provider or the Commissioner;

Trust

Velindre NHS Trust or any successor body exercising its functions;

TUPE

the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006 as amended;

Urgent Non-Core Care or UNCC

any urgent unplanned intervention required for the Resident resulting in the Provider incurring costs;

VAT

Value Added Tax;

Welsh Language Obligations

the obligations of the Trust and the Commissioner in respect of the use of the Welsh language, whether under any Law, under any Welsh language scheme made under the Welsh Language Act 1993, under any Welsh language standards which apply to the Trust or the Commissioner under the Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 (whether or not a compliance notice has been given to the Trust or the Commissioner) or any specific obligations in respect of the use of the Welsh language in connection with the delivery of Services to Residents which are notified to the Provider from time to time by the Trust or the Commissioner;

Working Day

a day other than a weekend or public holiday in Wales between the hours of 8.30am and 5.30pm;

- 1.2 The interpretation and construction of this Framework Agreement shall all be subject to the following provisions:
 - 1.2.1 words importing the singular meaning include where the context so admits the plural meaning and vice versa;
 - 1.2.2 words importing the masculine include the feminine and the neuter;
 - 1.2.3 the words "include", "includes" and "including" are to be construed as if they were immediately followed by the words "without limitation";
 - 1.2.4 references to any person shall include natural persons and partnerships, firms and other incorporated bodies and all other legal persons of whatever kind and however constituted and their successors and permitted assigns or transferees;
 - 1.2.5 references to any statute, enactment, order, regulation or other similar instrument shall be construed as a reference to the statute, enactment, order, regulation or instrument as amended by any subsequent enactment, modification, order, regulation or instrument as subsequently amended or re-enacted;
 - 1.2.6 headings are included in this Framework Agreement for ease of reference only and shall not affect the interpretation or construction of this Framework Agreement;
 - 1.2.7 references in this Framework Agreement to any Clause or Sub-Clause or Schedule without further designation shall be construed as a reference to the Clause or Sub-Clause or Schedule to this Framework Agreement so numbered;
 - 1.2.8 references in this Framework Agreement to any paragraph or sub-paragraph without further designation shall be construed as a reference to the paragraph or sub-paragraph of the relevant Schedule to this Framework Agreement so numbered;
 - 1.2.9 reference to a Clause is a reference to the whole of that Clause unless stated otherwise; and
 - 1.2.10 in the event and to the extent only of any conflict between the Clauses and the remainder of the Schedules, the Clauses shall prevail over the remainder of the Schedules.

2 TERM OF FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT

- 2.1 This Framework Agreement shall take effect on the Commencement Date.
- The Provider may only commence delivery of Services under this Framework Agreement when(1) the Conditions Precedent have been satisfied and (2) a Placement Agreement has been entered into in respect of such Services.
- 2.3 Subject to Clause 2.4, the Framework Agreement shall (unless it is otherwise terminated in accordance with the terms of this Framework Agreement or it is otherwise lawfully terminated) terminate at the end of the Initial Term.

2.4 The Trust may at its total discretion elect to extend the Initial Term of this Framework Agreement by up to an additional four years in two year tranches.

3 SCOPE OF FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT

- 3.1 This Framework Agreement governs the relationship between the Trust and the Provider in respect of the provision of the Services by the Provider to the Commissioners and sets out:
 - 3.1.1 in Schedule 5, the template form of Placement Agreement to be entered into by the Provider and the Commissioner; and
 - 3.1.2 in Schedule 3, the Applicable Terms that are deemed incorporated into each Placement Agreement; and
 - 3.1.3 in Clause 3.3 of this Framework Agreement and Schedule 2, Part 2 the procedure for the Commissioner to request the provision of Services from the Provider under separate Placement Agreements.
- 3.2 The Commissioner may at its absolute discretion and from time to time order Services from the Provider in accordance with the Placement Procedure during the Term.
- 3.3 A Placement Agreement shall not enter into force, be legally binding or have any other effect unless:
 - 3.3.1 the Placement Agreement contains the information required by the template Placement Agreement at Schedule 5;
 - 3.3.2 the Placement Agreement has been signed by the authorised representatives of both Parties to it; and
 - 3.3.3 as at the date the Placement Agreement is signed, this Framework Agreement has not terminated.

3.4 Each Placement Agreement :

- 3.4.1 forms a separate contract between its signatories; and
- 3.4.2 shall incorporate the Applicable Terms.
- The Provider acknowledges that there is no obligation on the Commissioner to purchase any Services from the Provider during the Term.
- 3.6 No undertaking or any form of statement, promise, representation or obligation shall be deemed to have been made by the Trust or the Commissioner in respect of the total quantities or values of the Services to be ordered by the Commissioner pursuant to this Framework Agreement and the Provider acknowledges and agrees that it has not entered into this Framework Agreement on the basis of any such undertaking, statement, promise or representation.
- 3.7 The Provider agrees that it shall not in its dealings with the Trust or the Commissioner relating to the delivery of Services, impose, rely upon or attempt to impose or rely upon any other

contractual terms other than the Applicable Terms. The Provider waives any right it might otherwise have to rely on any term endorsed upon or contained in any documents of the Provider that is inconsistent with the Applicable Terms.

4 PROVIDER'S APPOINTMENT

The Trust appoints the Provider as a potential Provider of the Services referred to in the Provider's Lots and the Provider shall be eligible to be considered for the provision of such Services by the Commissioner during the Term.

5 NON-EXCLUSIVITY

The Provider acknowledges that, in entering into this Framework Agreement, no form of exclusivity or volume guarantee has been granted by the Trust or the Commissioner for Services from the Provider and that the Trust and the Commissioner are at all times entitled to enter into other contracts and arrangements with other Providers for the provision of any or all services which are the same as or similar to the Services.

6 WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS

- 6.1 The Provider warrants and represents to the Trust and the Commissioner that:
 - 6.1.1 it has full capacity and authority and all necessary consents (including, where its procedures so require, the consent of any other company) to enter into and to perform its obligations under this Framework Agreement;
 - 6.1.2 this Framework Agreement is executed by a duly authorised representative of the Provider;
 - 6.1.3 all information, statements and representations contained in the Tender and the PQQ Response (including statements made in relation to the categories referred to in Regulations 72 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (as amended)) for the Services are and will remain true, accurate and not misleading and it will promptly advise the Trust of any fact, matter or circumstance of which it may become aware which would render any such information, statement or representation to be false or misleading;
 - 6.1.4 it has not entered into any agreement with any other person with the aim of preventing tenders being made or as to the fixing or adjusting of the amount of any tender or the conditions on which any tender is made in respect of the Framework Agreement;
 - 6.1.5 no claim is being asserted and no litigation, arbitration or administrative proceeding is presently in progress or, to the best of its knowledge and belief, pending or threatened against it or any of its assets which will or might affect its ability to perform its obligations under this Framework Agreement and any Placement Agreement which may be entered into with the Commissioner;

- 6.1.6 it is not subject to any contractual obligation, compliance with which is likely to have an effect on its ability to perform its obligations under this Framework Agreement and any Placement Agreement which may be entered into with the Commissioner; and
- 6.1.7 no proceedings or other steps have been taken and not discharged (nor, to the best of its knowledge, are threatened) for the winding up of the Provider or for its dissolution or for the appointment of a receiver, administrative receiver, liquidator, manager, administrator or similar officer in relation to any of the Provider's assets or revenue.

7 PREVENTION OF CORRUPTION AND BRIBERY

7.1 The Provider must:

- 7.1.1 without prejudice to its other obligations to comply with Laws, comply with all applicable laws, regulations, codes and sanctions relating to anti-bribery and anti-corruption including but not limited to the Bribery Act 2010 ("Relevant Requirements");
- 7.1.2 not engage in any activity, practice or conduct which would constitute an offence under sections 1, 2 or 6 of the Bribery Act 2010 if such activity, practice or conduct had been carried out in the UK;
- 7.1.3 comply with any of the Trust's ethics, anti-bribery and anti-corruption policies in each case as the Trust may update them from time to time ("**Relevant Policies**");
- 7.1.4 have and shall maintain in place throughout the Term its own policies and procedures, including but not limited to adequate procedures under the Bribery Act 2010, to ensure compliance with the Relevant Requirements, the Relevant Policies and Clause 7.1.2, and will enforce them where appropriate;
- 7.1.5 immediately notify the Trust if a foreign public official becomes an officer or employee of the Provider or acquires a direct or indirect interest in the Provider (and the Provider warrants that it has no foreign public officials as officers, employees or direct or indirect owners as at the Commencement Date);
- 7.1.6 ensure that all persons associated with the Provider or other persons who are performing Services in connection with this Framework Agreement comply with this Clause 7.1; and
- 7.1.7 within three (3) Months of the Commencement Date, and annually thereafter, certify to the Trust in writing signed by an officer of the Provider, compliance with this Clause 7.1 by the Provider and all persons associated with it and all other persons for whom the Provider is responsible under Clause 7.1.6. The Provider shall provide such supporting evidence of compliance as the Trust may reasonably request.
- 7.2 Breach of this Clause 7 shall be deemed a Material Default of this Framework Agreement which is not capable of remedy.

- 7.3 For the purpose of this Clause 7, the meaning of adequate procedures and foreign public official and whether a person is associated with another person shall be determined in accordance with section 7(2) of the Bribery Act 2010 (and any guidance issued under section 9 of that Act), sections 6(5) and 6(6) of that Act and section 8 of that Act respectively. For the purpose of this Clause 7, a person associated with the Provider includes but is not limited to any sub-contractor of the Provider.
- 7.4 The Provider must reimburse the Trust and / or the Commissioner (as appropriate) in respect of any losses, liabilities, damages, costs (including but not limited to legal fees) and expenses incurred by the Trust and / or the Commissioner (as the case may be) (including such losses, liabilities, damages, costs and expenses arising from the termination of this Framework Agreement where termination results from a breach of this Clause), or awarded against the Trust and / or the Commissioner (as the case may be) as a result of any breach of this Clause 7 by the Provider.

8 CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

- 8.1 The Provider shall take appropriate steps to ensure that neither the Provider nor any Staff are placed in a position where (in the reasonable opinion of the Trust) there is or may be an actual conflict, or a potential conflict, between the pecuniary or personal interests of the Provider or Staff and the duties owed to the Trust and / or the Commissioners under the provisions of this Framework Agreement or any Placement Agreement.
- 8.2 The Provider shall promptly notify and provide full particulars to the Trust if such conflict referred to in Clause 8.1 above arises or is anticipated to arise.
- 8.3 The Trust reserves the right to terminate this Framework Agreement immediately by giving notice in writing to the Provider and / or to take such other steps it deems necessary where, in the reasonable opinion of the Trust, there is or may be an actual conflict, or a potential conflict, between the pecuniary or personal interests of the Provider and the duties owed to the Trust or the Commissioner under the provisions of this Framework Agreement or any Placement Agreement. The actions of the Trust pursuant to this Clause shall not prejudice or affect any right of action or remedy which shall have accrued or shall thereafter accrue to the Trust or the Commissioner.
- This Clause shall apply during the Term and for a period of two (2) years after its termination or expiry.

9 SAFEGUARD AGAINST FRAUD

- 9.1 The Provider shall safeguard the Trust and the Commissioner's funding of the Framework Agreement and any Placement Agreement against Fraud generally and, in particular, Fraud on the part of the Provider or its Staff. The Provider shall notify the Trust and the Commissioner immediately if it has reason to suspect that any Fraud has occurred or is occurring or is likely to occur.
- 9.2 If the Provider or its Staff commits Fraud, the Trust may terminate the Framework Agreement and the Commissioner may terminate any Placement Agreement and recover from the Provider the amount of any direct loss suffered by the Trust and / or the Commissioner (as the case may be) resulting from the termination.

10 EQUALITY ACT

- 10.1 The Provider acknowledges and agrees that the Trust and the Commissioner are subject to the public sector equality duty set out in section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 ("2010 Act").
- 10.2 The Provider must, in respect of its performance of this Framework Agreement, comply with section 149 of the 2010 Act and warrants and undertakes to have due regard in its performance of this Framework Agreement to:
 - 10.2.1 eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is prohibited by the 2010 Act;
 - 10.2.2 advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic (as defined in the 2010 Act) and persons who do not share it;
 - 10.2.3 foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic (as defined in the 2010 Act) and persons who do not share it,

and for the avoidance of doubt this obligation shall apply irrespective of whether the Provider is a public authority for the purposes of such section of the 2010 Act.

- 10.3 Without prejudice to Clause 10.2, the Provider shall:
 - 10.3.1 comply with the Trust's and the Commissioner's instructions and directions and any policies and codes of practice issued by it from time to time in relation to the 2010 Act; and
 - 10.3.2 promptly notify and keep the Trust and the Commissioner informed (with full supporting details if requested) of all complaints and investigations in relation to the 2010 Act.
- 10.4 The Provider shall provide to the Trust and / or the Commissioner (as the case may be) such information as the Trust and / or the Commissioner (as the case may be) may reasonably require to:
 - 10.4.1 monitor the equality of access to the Services; and
 - 10.4.2 fulfil its obligations under the Law; and
 - 10.4.3 monitor equality of opportunity in employment.
- 10.5 The Provider shall undertake Equality Impact Assessments in accordance with the Law.

11 CALL-OFF CONTRACT PERFORMANCE

- 11.1 The Provider shall perform all Placement Agreements entered into with the Commissioner in accordance with:
 - 11.1.1 the requirements of this Framework Agreement; and
 - 11.1.2 the terms and conditions of such Placement Agreements.

11.2 In the event of, and only to the extent of, any conflict between the terms and conditions of this Framework Agreement and the terms and conditions of a Placement Agreement, the terms and conditions of the Framework Agreement shall prevail.

12 PRICES FOR SERVICES

- 12.1 The prices offered by the Provider for Placement Agreements to the Commissioner for Services shall be the prices listed in Schedule 4.
- 12.2 If requested to do so by the Trust and / or the Commissioner, the Provider shall use the Electronic Trading System to facilitate, inter alia, Placement Procedures, the provision of pricing information, invoicing, together with the exchange of such other information relating to this Framework Agreement as the Trust and / or the Commissioner (as the case may be) may reasonably require from time to time.

13 STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS

The Provider shall be responsible for obtaining all Consents required in relation to the performance of this Framework Agreement.

14 INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

- 14.1 The Provider shall provide the information specified in this Clause 14 and in Schedule 6 (*Information Requirements*) in a timely manner and in any event within the applicable time period set out in Schedule 6, and shall ensure its accuracy and completeness.
- 14.2 The Provider shall provide the information specified in this Clause 14 and in Schedule 6 (*Information Requirements*) through use of the Commissioning Care Assurance and Performance System or in any other format as may be prescribed by the Trust from time to time.
- The Trust may from time to time notify the Provider of what further information it may reasonably require in order to monitor the Provider's performance under this Framework Agreement, and in particular the Provider's compliance with the Specification, and the Provider shall supply such information as soon as reasonably practicable.
- 14.4 The Provider shall implement any new information requirements as they are adopted across the Trust from time to time between it and the Trust and the provisions of this Clause 14 shall apply to them.

15 PERFORMANCE MONITORING AND REPORTING

- 15.1 The provisions of Schedule 7 (Quality Assurance Improvement System) shall apply.
- 15.2 The Trust shall be entitled to audit the Provider's compliance with Schedule 7.

16 RECORDS AND AUDIT ACCESS

16.1 The Provider shall keep and maintain until six (6) years after the date of termination or expiry (whichever is the earlier) of this Framework Agreement (or as long a period as may be agreed between the Parties), full and accurate records and accounts of the operation of this

- Framework Agreement including the Services provided under it, the Placement Agreements entered into with the Commissioner and the amounts paid by the Commissioner.
- 16.2 The Provider shall keep the records and accounts referred to in Clause 16.1 above in accordance with good accountancy practice.
- 16.3 The Provider shall afford the Trust and / or the Commissioner and / or the Auditor such access to such records and accounts as may be required from time to time.
- The Provider shall provide such records and accounts (together with copies of the Provider's published accounts) during the Term and for a period of six (6) years after expiry of the Term to the Trust, the Auditor and the Commissioner (as required).
- The Trust and the Commissioner shall use reasonable endeavours to ensure that the conduct of each Audit does not unreasonably disrupt the Provider or delay the provision of the Services pursuant to the Placement Agreements, save insofar as the Provider accepts and acknowledges that control over the conduct of Audits carried out by the Auditor is outside of the control of the Trust and / or the Commissioner.
- 16.6 The Provider shall on demand provide the Auditor with all reasonable co-operation and assistance in relation to each Audit, including:
 - 16.6.1 all information requested by the Auditor within the scope of the Audit;
 - 16.6.2 reasonable access to sites controlled and to Equipment used by the Provider in the provision of the Services; and
 - 16.6.3 access to the Staff.
- 16.7 The Parties agree that they shall bear their own respective costs and expenses incurred in respect of compliance with their obligations under this Clause 16, unless the Audit reveals a Material Default by the Provider in which case the Provider shall reimburse the Trust and / or the Commissioner (as the case may be) for the Trust's or the Commissioner's reasonable costs incurred in relation to the Audit.
- 16.8 The Trust reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to undertake financial due diligence in relation to the Provider's financial and economic standing and / or credit rating from time to time.
- In the event the Trust (acting reasonably) determines, at its sole discretion, that the financial and economic standing and / or the credit rating of the Provider are such that it adversely impacts, or is likely to adversely impact, on the Provider's ability to supply Services under this Framework Agreement, then the Provider shall, at the Trust's request, use its best endeavours, to obtain a parent company guarantee and / or such other guarantees of financial liability as the Trust may require.
- 16.10 Without prejudice to this Clause 16, the Provider shall permit or procure permission for the Trust's or the Commissioner's Framework Performance Management Team, (as defined in Schedule 7) access, without prior notice, to any Care Setting, premises, facilities, Staff, policies and Clinical / Care Records and other documentation reasonably required by the Trust to audit

and review the Provider's compliance with its obligations under this Framework Agreement (the "Framework Performance Management Team Audit"). Where prior notice of a Framework Performance Management Team Audit is given the Provider must make available a senior manager or clinician to assist and coordinate the same.

16.11 The Trust and the Commissioner reserve the right, at their discretion, to invite a third party to participate in the audit process including, but not limited to, carers, Resident representatives, Community Health Council representatives and NHS Wales representatives.

17 RESIDENT CARE RECORDS

- 17.1 The Provider shall create, maintain, store and retain Care Records for all Residents in accordance with the Law and Policies.
- 17.2 The Provider shall retain Care Records for such periods of time as are permitted and as may be required by Law.
- 17.3 The Provider shall use the Care Records solely for the execution of the Provider's obligations under this Framework Agreement.

18 CONFIDENTIALITY

- 18.1 In respect of any Confidential Information it may receive from the other Party (the "Discloser") and subject always to the remainder of this Clause 18 each Party (the "Recipient") undertakes to keep secret and strictly confidential and shall not disclose any such Confidential Information to any third party, without the Discloser's prior written consent provided that:
 - 18.1.1 the Recipient shall not be prevented from using any general knowledge, experience or skills which were in its possession prior to the commencement of the Framework Agreement; and
 - 18.1.2 the provisions of this Clause 18 shall not apply to any Confidential Information which:
 - 18.1.2.1 is in or enters the public domain other than by breach of the Framework Agreement or other act or omissions of the Recipient; or
 - 18.1.2.2 is obtained by a third party who is lawfully authorised to disclose such information; or
 - 18.1.2.3 is authorised for release by the prior written consent of the Discloser; or
 - 18.1.2.4 is required to be disclosed to ensure the compliance of the Trust and / or the Commissioner with FOIA or the Environmental Information Regulations.
- 18.2 Nothing in this Clause 18 shall prevent the Recipient from disclosing Confidential Information where it is required to do so by judicial, administrative, governmental or regulatory process in connection with any action, suit, proceedings or claim or otherwise by applicable law or, where the Provider is the Recipient, to the Provider's immediate or ultimate holding company provided that the Provider procures that such holding company undertakes directly with the Discloser that it will comply with this Clause 18 as if any reference to the Provider in this Clause 18 were a reference to such holding company.

18.3 The Provider agrees that:

- 18.3.1 without prejudice to the generality of Clause 18.2 the provisions of this Clause 18 are subject to the respective obligations and commitments of the Trust and the Commissioner under the FOIA, the Environmental Information Regulations and both the respective Codes of Practice on the Discharge of Public Authorities' Functions and on the Management of Records (which are issued under section 45 and 46 of the FOIA respectively);
- 18.3.2 the decision on whether any exemption applies to a request for disclosure of recorded information is a decision solely for the Trust or the Commissioner (as applicable); and
- 18.3.3 where the Trust or the Commissioner is managing a request as referred to in Clause 18.3.2, the Provider must co-operate with the Trust or the Commissioner, (as applicable), and must respond within five (5) Working Days of any request by the Trust or the Commissioner for assistance in determining how to respond to a request for disclosure.
- 18.4 The Provider must and must procure that its Staff must:
 - 18.4.1 transfer any request for information, as defined under section 8 of the FOIA, to the Trust or the Commissioner (as applicable), as soon as practicable after receipt and in any event within five (5) Working Days of receiving a request for information;
 - 18.4.2 provide the Trust or the Commissioner (as applicable) with a copy of all information in its possession or power in the form that the Trust or the Commissioner (as applicable) requires within five (5) Working Days (or such other period as the Trust may specify) of the Trust or the Commissioner requesting that information; and
 - 18.4.3 provide all necessary assistance as reasonably requested by the Trust or the Commissioner to enable the Trust or the Commissioner (as applicable) to respond to a request for information within the time for compliance set out in section 10 of the FOIA.
- 18.5 The Trust or the Commissioner may consult the Provider in relation to any request for disclosure of the Provider's Confidential Information in accordance with applicable guidance.
- 18.6 This Clause 18 shall remain in force without limit in time.

19 DATA PROTECTION

- 19.1 This Clause 19 sets out the respective roles and obligations of the parties in respect of the processing of Personal Data under this Agreement. In this Clause 19, the terms Personal Data, Data Controller, Data Processor and processing shall bear the meanings as defined in the DPA.
- 19.2 This Clause 19 shall remain in force without limit in time.

Roles of the Parties

- 19.3 The Provider acknowledges that for the purposes of the DPA, the Trust and the Commissioner are each a Data Controller in respect of the Personal Data processed under this Agreement.
- 19.4 Where the Provider is processing Personal Data solely on behalf of the Trust and the Commissioner, the Provider will be a Data Processor and must comply with all of the provisions of this Clause 19 except Clause 19.11.
- 19.5 To the extent that the Provider processes any Personal Data as a Data Controller, the Provider, the Trust and the Commissioner shall be joint Data Controllers and the Provider must comply with all the provisions of this Clause 19 except Clause 19.10.

Provisions relating to all processing of Personal Data by the Provider

- 19.6 The Provider must indemnify and keep indemnified the Trust and the Commissioner against all claims and proceedings and all liability, loss, costs and expenses incurred in connection therewith by the Trust and the Commissioner respectively, as a result of any claim made or brought by any person in respect of any loss, damage or distress caused to that person as a result of the Provider's unauthorised processing, unlawful processing, destruction of and / or damage to any Personal Data processed by the Provider.
- 19.7 The Provider must assist the Trust and the Commissioner to comply with the DPA. This includes the Provider providing the Trust and the Commissioner with all assistance as may be required in complying with subject access requests served on the Trust and the Commissioner under Section 7 of the DPA and the disclosure by the Provider of any Personal Data in relation to such requests.
- 19.8 If the Provider receives Personal Data from a Commissioner as part of the call-off procedure set out in this Agreement, but that Commissioner does not go on to commission the Service from the Provider, the Provider must promptly, and in any event within five (5) days of notification by the Commissioner that no such Service will be commissioned, delete all copies of such Personal Data in the possession of the Provider.
- 19.9 The Provider must be able to demonstrate to the Commissioner, if requested to do so, that it has complied with the obligation at Clause 19.8.

The Provider as a Data Processor

- 19.10 Whenever the Provider is processing Personal Data as a Data Processor, the Provider must comply with the obligations placed on the Trust and the Commissioner by the seventh data protection principle (the "Seventh Principle") set out in the DPA, namely:
 - 19.10.1 to maintain technical and organisational security measures sufficient to comply at least with the obligations imposed on the Trust and the Commissioner by the Seventh Principle;
 - 19.10.2 only to process Personal Data for and on behalf of the Trust and the Commissioner, in accordance with the instructions of the Trust and the Commissioner and for the purpose of performing the Services in accordance with the Placement Agreement;

- 19.10.3 not transfer any Personal Data obtained pursuant to the Provider's provision of the Services outside the European Economic Area (without the prior written consent of the Commissioner); and
- 19.10.4 to allow the Trust and the Commissioner to audit the Provider's compliance with the requirements of this Clause 19 on reasonable notice and / or to provide the Trust and the Commissioner with evidence of its compliance with the obligations set out in this Clause 19.

The Provider as a Data Controller

- 19.11 Whenever the Provider is processing Personal Data as a Data Controller, the Provider must at all times:
 - 19.11.1 comply with its obligations under the DPA;
 - 19.11.2 maintain an up to date notification with the Information Commissioner;
 - 19.11.3 not transfer any Personal Data obtained pursuant to the Provider's provision of the Services outside the European Economic Area without the prior written consent of the Commissioner; and
 - 19.11.4 maintain appropriate technical and organisational security measures in order to comply with its obligations under the Seventh Principle.

20 PUBLICITY

- 20.1 Unless otherwise directed by the Trust, the Provider shall not make any press announcements or publicise this Framework Agreement in any way without the Trust's prior written consent.
- 20.2 The Trust and the Commissioner shall be entitled to publicise this Framework Agreement.
- 20.3 The Provider shall not do anything which may damage the reputation of the Trust or the Commissioner or bring the Trust or the Commissioner into disrepute.

21 TERMINATION

Termination on Default

- 21.1 The Trust may terminate this Framework Agreement by serving written notice on the Provider with effect from the date specified in such notice:
 - 21.1.1 where the Provider commits a Material Default and:
 - 21.1.1.1 the Provider has not remedied the Material Default to the satisfaction of the Trust within twenty (20) Working Days, or such other period as may be specified by the Trust, after issue of a written notice specifying the Material Default and requesting it to be remedied; or
 - 21.1.1.2 the Material Default is not, in the reasonable opinion of the Trust, capable of remedy; or

- 21.1.2 where the Commissioner terminates a Placement Agreement awarded to the Provider under this Framework Agreement as a consequence of a Material Default by the Provider; or
- 21.1.3 the Provider is prevented, or will be prevented, from providing a Service due to the suspension, restriction or variation of any Consent; or
- 21.1.4 the Provider fails to obtain any Consent, loses any Consent or has any Consent varied or restricted the effect of which might reasonably be considered to have a material adverse effect on the provision of the Services; or
- 21.1.5 the Provider repeatedly breaches any of the terms of this Framework Agreement in such a manner as to reasonably justify the opinion that its conduct is inconsistent with it having the intention or ability to give effect to the terms of this Framework Agreement; or
- 21.1.6 where 4 or more Level 1 Notices or Level 1 Performance Issues result within any rolling twelve (12) Month period; or
- 21.1.7 where 3 or more Level 2 Notices or Level 2 Performance Issues result within any rolling twelve (12) Month period; or
- 21.1.8 where any combination of two or more Level 1 and / or Level 2 Performance Issues result within any rolling twelve (12) Month period.

Termination on Financial Standing

21.2 The Trust may terminate this Framework Agreement by serving notice on the Provider in writing with effect from the date specified in such notice where (in the reasonable opinion of the Trust), there is a material detrimental change in the financial standing and / or the credit rating of the Provider which adversely impacts, or is likely adversely to impact, on the Provider's ability to supply Services under this Framework Agreement.

Termination on Insolvency and Change of Control

- 21.3 The Trust may terminate this Framework Agreement with immediate effect by notice in writing where the Provider is a company and in respect of the Provider:
 - 21.3.1 a proposal is made for a voluntary arrangement within Part I of the Insolvency Act 1986 or of any other composition scheme or arrangement with, or assignment for the benefit of, its creditors; or
 - 21.3.2 a shareholders' meeting is convened for the purpose of considering a resolution that it be wound up or a resolution for its winding-up is passed (other than as part of, and exclusively for the purpose of, a bona fide reconstruction or amalgamation); or
 - 21.3.3 a petition is presented for its winding up (which is not dismissed within fourteen (14) days of its service) or an application is made for the appointment of a provisional liquidator or a creditors' meeting is convened pursuant to Section 98 of the Insolvency Act 1986; or

- 21.3.4 a receiver, administrative receiver or similar officer is appointed over the whole or any part of its business or assets; or
- 21.3.5 an application order is made either for the appointment of an administrator or for an administration order, an administrator is appointed, or notice of intention to appoint an administrator is given; or
- 21.3.6 it is or becomes insolvent within the meaning of Section 123 of the Insolvency Act 1986; or
- 21.3.7 being a "small company" within the meaning of Section 382 of the Companies Act 2006, a moratorium comes into force pursuant to Schedule A1 of the Insolvency Act 1986; or
- 21.3.8 any event similar to those listed in Clause 21.3.1 to Clause 21.3.7 occurs under the law of any other jurisdiction.
- The Provider shall notify the Trust immediately if the Provider undergoes a change of control within the meaning of section 450 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 ("**Change of Control**"). The Trust may terminate the Framework Agreement by giving notice in writing to the Provider with immediate effect within six (6) Months of:
 - 21.4.1 being notified that a Change of Control has occurred; or
 - 21.4.2 where no notification has been made, the date that the Trust becomes aware of the Change of Control,

but shall not be permitted to terminate where an Approval was granted prior to the Change of Control.

21.5 The Trust may terminate this Framework Agreement by giving notice in writing to the Provider with immediate effect if a Restricted Person holds five (5) per cent or more of the total value of any shares in the Provider or any of its Affiliates.

Termination by the Trust

21.6 The Trust shall have the right to terminate this Framework Agreement, or to terminate the provision of any part of the Framework Agreement at any time by giving three (3) Months written notice to the Provider.

22 SUSPENSION OF PROVIDER'S APPOINTMENT

- Without prejudice to the Trust's rights to terminate the Framework Agreement in accordance with Clause 21 above, the Trust may suspend the Provider's appointment to supply Services to the Commissioner in any or all Provider's Lots by giving notice in writing to the Provider:
 - 22.1.1 if a right to terminate this Framework Agreement arises in accordance with Clause 21; or

- 22.1.2 pursuant to Schedule 7 (*Quality Assurance Improvement System*); the Provider is subject to either (i) a Level 1 or Level 2 Notice or (ii) where a Level 1 or Level 2 Performance Issue has arisen; or
- 22.1.3 the Trust reasonably considers that a breach by the Provider of any obligation under this Framework Agreement:
 - 22.1.3.1 may create an immediate and serious threat to the health or safety of any Resident; or
 - 22.1.3.2 may result in a material interruption in the provision of any one or more of the Services.
- 22.2 If the Trust provides notice to the Provider in accordance with this Clause 22, the Provider's appointment shall be suspended for the period set out in the notice or such other period as shall be notified to the Provider by the Trust in writing from time to time.

23 CONSEQUENCES OF TERMINATION AND EXPIRY

- 23.1 Notwithstanding the service of a notice to terminate the Framework Agreement, the Provider shall continue to fulfil its obligations under this Framework Agreement until the date of expiry or termination of this Framework Agreement or such other date as may be required under this Clause 23.
- 23.2 Termination or expiry of the Framework Agreement shall not cause any Placement Agreements to terminate automatically. For the avoidance of doubt, all Placement Agreements shall remain in force unless and until they are terminated or expire in accordance with their own terms.
- 23.3 Within thirty (30) Working Days of the date of termination or expiry of the Framework Agreement, the Provider shall return to the Trust and the Commissioner (as appropriate) any data and Confidential Information belonging to the Trust or the Commissioner (as applicable) in the Provider's possession, power or control, either in its then current format or in a format nominated by the Trust or the Commissioner (as appropriate), together with any other information and all copies thereof owned by the Trust or the Commissioner.
- The Trust and the Commissioner shall be entitled to require and to have access to data or information arising from the provision of the Services from the Provider.
- 23.5 The Provider shall for a reasonable period before (during any applicable notice period) and after such termination or expiry:
 - 23.5.1 co-operate fully with the Trust and the Commissioner and any successor Provider of the Services, or such part of the Services that have been terminated in order to ensure continuity and a smooth transfer of the Services, or such part of the Services and to avoid any inconvenience or any risk to the health and safety of Residents or members of the public and to that end the Provider may agree with the Trust and the Commissioner, and where appropriate with any successor Provider, a transition plan;

- 23.5.2 promptly render all reasonable assistance and information to the extent necessary to effect an orderly assumption of the Services or such part of the Services by a successor Provider;
- 23.5.3 in so far as it is in the power of the Provider to do so, use all reasonable efforts to obtain the consent of third parties to the assignment, novation or termination of existing contracts between the Provider and any third party which relate to or are associated with the Services or such part of the Services which have been terminated, and
- 23.5.4 use all reasonable endeavours to minimise any inconvenience caused to or likely to be caused to Residents or prospective Residents as a result of the expiry or termination of this Framework Agreement or part of the Services.
- 23.6 The Provider shall cease to accept any Resident placements or referrals that require any expired or terminated Service or part of a Service, and subject to any appropriate arrangements made under Clause 23.5.1, the Provider shall immediately cease its treatment of Residents requiring the terminated or expired Services or arrange for their transfer or discharge as soon as is practicable in accordance with Good Practice and the Law.
- 23.7 Termination or expiry of this Framework Agreement shall be without prejudice to any rights, remedies or obligations of any Party accrued under this Framework Agreement prior to termination or expiry.
- 23.8 Clauses which expressly or by implication are intended to survive termination shall continue in full force and effect.

24 LIABILITY

The Provider shall fully indemnify and keep indemnified the Trust and the Commissioner in full from and against all claims, proceedings, actions, damages, legal costs, expenses and any other liabilities whatsoever arising out of, in respect of or in connection with this Framework Agreement and each Placement Agreement including in respect of any death or personal injury, loss of or damage to property, financial or other loss arising from any advice given or omitted to be given by the Provider, or any other loss which is caused directly or indirectly by any act or omission of the Provider.

25 INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

The Provider agrees to indemnify and keep fully indemnified the Trust and the Commissioner against any costs, claims, proceedings, expenses and demands arising in respect of any allegation or claim that any of the Services supplied under this Framework Agreement constitutes or may be alleged to constitute an infringement of any person's Intellectual Property Rights or an infringement of any other legal or equitable right of any person.

26 INSURANCE

26.1 The Provider undertakes to take out and maintain policies of insurance with a reputable insurance company against liability which the Provider may incur to the Trust or to the Staff or

to any other person in connection with this Framework Agreement and each Placement Agreement; as follows:

- 26.1.1 Employer's Liability: in the sum of not less than five million pounds (£5,000,000) or such statutory minimum as is required from time to time in the UK (whichever is greater) per event or series of events arising from the same set of circumstances; and
- 26.1.2 Public Liability: in the sum of not less than five million pounds (£5,000,000) per event or series of events arising from the same set of circumstances; and
- 26.1.3 Professional Indemnity, malpractice, treatment risk or similar appropriate indemnity arrangements in relation to the provision or non-provision of the Services (or any other services under this Framework Agreement) which may result in a clinical or professional negligence claim: in the sum of not less than five million pounds (£5,000,000) per event or series of events arising from the same set of circumstances or such higher limit as the Trust may reasonably require from time to time.
- The Provider must, should the Trust request it to do so from time to time, produce to the Trust a certified copy of the policy of any such insurance, the premium receipt and / or insurance certificate, or other appropriate evidence, such as a broker's letter of confirmation.
- 26.3 The terms of any insurance or the amount of cover shall not relieve the Provider of any liabilities arising under this Framework Agreement.
- 26.4 The Provider shall maintain the insurances referred to in Clause 26.1 for a minimum of six (6) years following the expiration or earlier termination of this Framework Agreement.

27 TRANSFER AND SUB-CONTRACTING

- 27.1 This Framework Agreement is personal to the Provider and the Provider shall not assign, novate or otherwise dispose of the Framework Agreement or any part thereof without the previous consent in writing of the Trust.
- 27.2 The Provider shall not be entitled to sub-contract any of its rights or obligations under this Framework Agreement without the previous consent in writing of the Trust.
- 27.3 The Trust shall be entitled to:
 - 27.3.1 assign, novate or otherwise dispose of its rights and obligations under the Framework Agreement or any part thereof to the Commissioner; or
 - 27.3.2 novate the Framework Agreement to any other body (including any private sector body) which substantially performs any of the functions that previously had been performed by the Trust,

provided that such assignment, novation or disposal shall not increase the burden of the Provider's obligations under the Framework Agreement. The Provider shall join in any novation under this Clause.

28 DENIAL OF PARTNERSHIP

This Framework Agreement shall not operate so as to create a partnership, joint venture or relationship of employment or of principal and agent of any kind between the Parties.

29 RIGHTS OF THIRD PARTIES

The Commissioner(s) can enforce the terms of this Framework Agreement which are not reserved to the Trust. Subject thereto a person who is not party to this Framework Agreement ("Third Party") has no right to enforce any term of this Framework Agreement in accordance with the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999, but this does not affect any right or remedy of any person which exists or is available otherwise than pursuant to that Act. If the Parties rescind this Framework Agreement or vary any of its terms in accordance with the relevant provisions of this Framework Agreement, such rescission or variation will not require the consent of the Commissioner(s) or any Third Party.

30 VARIATION TO THE FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT

Any variations to the Framework Agreement must be made only in accordance with the Framework Agreement Variation Procedure set out in Schedule 9.

31 WAIVER

Save where and to the extent expressly stated in this Framework Agreement, no failure to exercise and no delay in exercising on the part of any Party any right, power or privilege hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof nor shall any single or partial exercise of any right, power or privilege preclude the enforcement of any other right, power or privilege herein be taken or held to be a waiver of the provision itself. Any waiver must be in writing to be effective.

32 SEVERABILITY

If any part of this Framework Agreement is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, unlawful or unenforceable then such part shall be severed from the remainder of the Framework Agreement which shall continue to be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law. If any provision or part-provision of this Framework Agreement is invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the parties shall negotiate in good faith to amend such provision so that, as amended, it is legal, valid and enforceable, and, to the greatest extent possible, achieves the intended commercial result of the original provision.

33 FORCE MAJEURE

No Party shall be in breach of this Framework Agreement, nor liable for any failure or delay in performance of any obligation under this Framework Agreement to the extent arising from or attributable to Force Majeure.

34 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

34.1 This Framework Agreement constitutes the entire agreement and understanding of the Parties and supersedes (and renders null and void) any previous agreement or understanding between the Parties relating to the subject matters of this Framework Agreement.

- 34.2 The Parties acknowledge and agree that in entering into this Framework Agreement they do not rely on and shall have no remedy in respect of any statement, representation, warranty or understanding (whether negligently or innocently made) of any person (whether party to this agreement or not) other than as expressly set out in this Framework Agreement.
- 34.3 Nothing in this Clause shall operate to exclude any liability for Fraud.

35 NOTICES

- 35.1 All notices which are required to be given under this Framework Agreement must be in writing and sent to:
 - in the case of the Trust, Mr Nicholas Craig Cowley, NHS Wales Shared Services Partnership, 4th Floor, Companies House, Crown Way, Cardiff. CF14 3UB;
 - 35.1.2 in the case of a Commissioner, the Chief Executive of that Commissioner (or such other Authorised Officer of the Commissioner as that Commissioner may designate from time to time) or such person as may be identified in the relevant Placement Agreement; and
 - 35.1.3 in the case of the Provider [•]
- Any such notice may be delivered personally, by e-mail, by first class pre-paid letter or recorded delivery, or by commercial courier and shall be deemed to have been received:
 - 35.2.1 if delivered personally, at the time of delivery;
 - 35.2.2 if sent by e-mail, at the time sent;
 - 35.2.3 if sent by first class pre-paid letter or recorded delivery, at 9.00 am on the second Working Day after the date of mailing; or
 - 35.2.4 if delivered by commercial courier, on the date and at the time that the courier's delivery receipt is signed.
- 35.3 The provisions of this Clause shall not apply to the service of any proceedings or other documents in any legal action which shall be governed by rules of court.

36 COMPLAINTS HANDLING AND RESOLUTION

- 36.1 The Provider shall notify the Trust of any Complaint made by the Commissioner within two (2) Working Days of becoming aware of that Complaint and such notice shall contain full details of the Provider's plans to resolve such Complaint.
- Without prejudice to any rights and remedies that a complainant may have at law, including under this Framework Agreement or a Placement Agreement, and without prejudice to any obligation of the Provider to take remedial action under the provisions of the Framework Agreement or a Placement Agreement, the Provider shall use its best endeavours to resolve the Complaint within ten (10) Working Days and in so doing, shall deal with the Complaint fully, expeditiously and fairly.

Within two (2) Working Days of a request by the Trust, the Provider shall provide full details of a Complaint to the Trust, including details of steps taken to its resolution.

37 DISPUTE RESOLUTION

- 37.1 The Parties shall attempt in good faith to negotiate a settlement to any dispute between them arising out of or in connection with this Framework Agreement within twenty (20) Working Days of either Party notifying the other of the dispute and such efforts shall involve the escalation of the dispute to persons identified in Clause 35 above.
- 37.2 Nothing in this dispute resolution procedure shall prevent the Parties from seeking from any court of competent jurisdiction an interim order restraining the other Party from doing any act or compelling the other Party to do any act or other interim or mandatory relief.
- 37.3 If the dispute cannot be resolved by the Parties pursuant to Clause 37.1 the Parties shall refer it to mediation pursuant to the procedure set out in Clause 37.5 unless:
 - 37.3.1 the Trust (or the Commissioner if applicable) considers that the dispute is not suitable for resolution by mediation; or
 - 37.3.2 the Provider does not agree to mediation.
- 37.4 The obligations of the Parties under this Framework Agreement shall not be suspended, cease or be delayed by the referral of a dispute to mediation and the Provider and its Staff shall comply fully with the requirements of this Framework Agreement at all times.
- 37.5 The procedure for mediation and consequential provisions relating to mediation are as follows:
 - 37.5.1 a neutral adviser or mediator ("the Mediator") shall be chosen by agreement between the Parties or, if they are unable to agree upon a Mediator within ten (10) Working Days after a request by one Party to the other to appoint a Mediator or if the Mediator agreed upon is unable or unwilling to act, either Party shall within ten (10) Working Days from the date of the proposal to appoint a Mediator or within ten (10) Working Days of notice to either Party that he is unable or unwilling to act, apply to CEDR to appoint a Mediator;
 - 37.5.2 the Parties shall within ten (10) Working Days of the appointment of the Mediator meet with him in order to agree a programme for the exchange of all relevant information and the structure to be adopted for negotiations to be held. If considered appropriate, the Parties may at any stage seek assistance from CEDR to provide guidance on a suitable procedure;
 - 37.5.3 unless otherwise agreed, all negotiations connected with the dispute and any settlement agreement relating to it shall be conducted in confidence and without prejudice to the rights of the Parties in any future proceedings;
 - 37.5.4 if the Parties reach agreement on the resolution of the dispute, the agreement shall be reduced to writing and shall be binding on the Parties once it is signed by their duly authorised representatives;

- 37.5.5 failing agreement, either of the Parties may invite the Mediator to provide a nonbinding but informative opinion in writing. Such an opinion shall be provided on a without prejudice basis and shall not be used in evidence in any proceedings relating to this Framework Agreement without the prior written consent of both Parties; and
- 37.5.6 if the Parties fail to reach agreement in the structured negotiations within sixty (60) Working Days of the Mediator being appointed, or such longer period as may be agreed by the Parties, then any dispute or difference between them may be referred to the courts.

38 WELSH LANGUAGE OBLIGATIONS

The Provider warrants that it will not supply the Services in breach of the Welsh Language Obligations, nor in such a way as to render the Trust or the Commissioner in breach of its Welsh Language Obligations.

39 COSTS AND EXPENSES

The Parties shall be responsible for paying their own costs and expenses incurred in connection with the negotiation, preparation and execution of this Framework Agreement.

40 LAW AND JURISDICTION

- 40.1 This Framework Agreement shall be construed as being made in Wales and in accordance with and governed by the Laws of England and Wales, as they are applied in Wales.
- 40.2 The Parties irrevocably agree to submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the Courts of England and Wales sitting in Cardiff (save in the case of the Trust or the Health Boards only where the Welsh Ministers direct that the High Court in London (or elsewhere) should have jurisdiction).

41 COMMUNITY BENEFITS

The Provider shall use reasonable endeavours to deliver the community benefits detailed in Schedule 10.

42 FINANCIAL GUARANTEE

The Provider must, within 5 days of the Commencement Date, deliver to the Trust the deed of guarantee set out in Schedule 11, duly executed by the Guarantor (as defined in Schedule 11) and in full force and effect.

SIGNED by or on behalf of the Parties on the date which first appears in this Framework Agreement

Schedule 1 Services and lots

Part 1 Framework lots

Lot	Services		
CS-1	Care Home, mental health, without continuous staffing		
CS-2	Care Home, learning disabilities, without continuous staffing		
CS-3	Care Home, mental health / learning disabilities, without continuous staffing		
CS-4	Care Home, mental health, with continuous staffing		
CS-5	Care Home, learning disabilities, with continuous staffing		
CS-6	Care Home, mental health / learning disabilities, with continuous staffing		
CS-7	Care Home with nursing, mental health, with continuous staffing		
CS-8	Care Home with nursing, learning disabilities, with continuous staffing		
CS-9	Care Home with nursing, mental health / learning disabilities, with continuous staffing		

Part 2 Provider's lots

[to be completed post award]

Lot	Care Home / Care Setting	Services

Schedule 2 Specification

Part 1 Services

The provision of the Services will be subject always to the National Minimum Standards.

In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between the National Minimum Standards and the Services, then, for the purposes of performance monitoring of the Provider's delivery of Services under this Framework Agreement pursuant to Schedule 7 (Quality Improvement Assurance System) the Services shall prevail.

PART 1A: FRAMEWORK LOT - SERVICES SPECIFIC

- In respect of Services provided in relation to Framework Lots CS-1 to CS-9
- 1.1 Pre admission assessment
- 1.2 Resident transportation on discharge
- 1.3 Language interpreter, translator, signing (including but not limited to Care and Support Plan reviews, community activities, 1:1 Equivalent Care)
- 1.4 Hotel services (inclusive but not limited to all food, catering products and services, cleaning products and services, bedding, towels, laundry services and products)
- 1.5 All prescribed medication
- 1.6 All treatments and interventions related to physical care or ill health
- 1.7 Access to primary care health services (including but not limited to GP, opticians, dentist, podiatry, speech and language therapist, immunisation, annual health checks)
- 1.8 Leisure or social activities delivered within the Care Home
- 1.9 An adequate and safe level and skill mix of Staff to ensure the needs of the Residents are met
- 1.10 General support provided by Staff to Residents and the facilitation of social / group activities within and outside of the Care Home
- 2 In respect of Services provided in relation to Framework Lots CS-4 to CS-9:
- a minimum 21 hours of 1:1 Equivalent Care for each Resident at Care Input Tariff Staff Level 1 (by reference to Table 2 of Schedule 4), including (but not limited to):
 - 2.1.1 all escort activities outside of the Care Home (including but not limited to leisure, shopping, education, social, home visits, primary care access, hospital or out-patient appointments, elective or non-elective hospital admissions)
 - 2.1.2 support within and outside of the Care Home that promotes independence (including, but not limited to assisted personal hygiene, cooking, laundry, gardening, cleaning)

2.1.3 all pharmacological / psychological / psychosocial / therapeutic / supportive / well-being programmes, interventions, treatments and therapies

PART 1B: FRAMEWORK LOT - SERVICES GENERIC

In respect of Services provided in relation to Framework Lots CS-1 to CS-9

1 THE PROVIDER SUPPORTED THE RESIDENT TO BE SAFE

The Provider must ensure that:

- 1.1 at all times there is a single identified Staff member with overall responsibility for the Care Home who has the authority and capability to arrange for additional Staff if required, either independently or through an on-call manager
- 1.2 at least once per week the number of Staff and skill mix providing the Services is reviewed to ensure all Residents' needs can be met with due regard to risk and complexity. Any restrictions, potential restrictions or perceived restrictions on choice, freedom, services or facilities are subject to appropriate legal processes or guidance including, but not limited to Guardianship (in accordance with Mental Health Act 1983 Code of Practice for Wales), the Mental Health Act 1983 (as amended), the Mental Capacity Act 2005 (including the Deprivation of Liberties Safeguards 2009).
- 1.3 staff are able to raise any concerns on quality of the services they provide without prejudicing their current employment and are informed of the rights and duty of whistleblowing during induction and on an annual basis.
- 1.4 staff must be trained at induction and refreshed annually in safeguarding and demonstrate competency in understanding various types of potential abuse (Including, but not limited to, physical, sexual, psychological, neglect / omission, institutional, financial / material, discriminatory)
- 1.5 staff demonstrate an understanding of relevant guidance and Code of Practices including but not limited to Guardianship (in accordance with Mental Health Act 1983 Code of Practice for Wales), the Mental Health Act 1983 (as amended), the Mental Capacity Act 2005 (including the Deprivation of Liberties Safeguards 2009) and the Social Services & Well Being (Wales) Act 2014),
- 1.6 non-permanent (bank, agency, casual) Staff must be provided with an induction to the Care Home and to each Resident, work alongside permanent Staff; and be appropriately trained, qualified and experienced to meet the Residents' needs prior to delivering any support
- 1.7 Residents live in an environment that is free from bullying, harassment and discrimination and any other form of abuse (in line with legislation and Good Practice) and that there are processes in place to eradicate bullying / exploitation between Residents, manage Residents who are bullying / exploiting other Residents; and provide emotional support for Residents who have been subject to bullying / exploitation; and provide education and information to Residents to recognise if they are being subjected to bullying and harassment

- 1.8 records will be kept of any incidents involving de-escalation and physical intervention used with Residents and the use of physical interventions will be clearly recorded and reviewed in line with good practice, professional standards and national and local guidance.
- 1.9 physical interventions, time outs and intensive support are used as interventions of last resort after, whenever possible, de-escalation techniques and positive behavioural support interventions have been attempted; and in line with Good Practice, professional standards and national and local guidance; and with due consideration of the self-respect, dignity, privacy, cultural values and individual needs of the Residents.
- 1.10 observations of a Resident at risk of self-injury, violence or neglect are undertaken in a manner that is unobtrusive but safe, in a manner which is meaningful, supportive and therapeutic for the Residents; and for the minimum period necessary.
- 1.11 on or before the commencement of Services to the Resident, the rationale for undertaking nongeneral observations of the Resident are clearly documented and discussed with the Resident, carers and Local Care Team.
- 1.12 staff induction will include (but will not be limited to): appropriate behaviour and conduct of Staff; caring with dignity, respect and compassion; person centred care and how to provide active support ('doing with, not for'); skills in communication, active listening and responding; recognising the deteriorating Resident / responding to change outcome focused practice; raising issues and concerns about care; how to respond to problems and dilemmas

2 THE PROVIDER SUPPORTED THE RESIDENT TO FEEL AT HOME

The Provider must ensure that:

- 2.1 all information given, or available to the Resident is in clear and non-technical language and in appropriate formats (for example easy read, leaflets, video) and that, the Residents must be given assistance by Staff to understand the information if necessary
- 2.2 Residents can keep and control their money and personal belongings, unless individual circumstances mean that specific legal arrangements disallow this.
- 2.3 Residents have unrestricted 24 hour access to the Care Home and grounds subject to best interests and risk assessment (that takes account of all the Residents in the Care Home, visitors have access to the Care Home subject to risk assessment and individual and collective service user consent.
- 2.4 subject to risk assessment, the Resident is enabled and supported to participate in all household activities and they promote independence, individual choice and freedom of movement, subject to restrictions agreed in the Care and Support Plan, they are developed and reviewed by the Residents; and they are clearly explained to the Resident on admission and at regular intervals.
- 2.5 the Resident is enabled to plan, prepare and serve meals and to choose a variety of meals, which are enjoyable and nutritionally beneficial with due regard to risk, privacy and best interests

- 2.6 the Resident has access to telephone facilities and a computer with internet facilities,
- 2.7 digital inclusion is promoted by providing training and information on the use of phones, computers and other practical everyday technology to Residents
- the Care Home has a model of care in place which promotes a positive and hopeful culture, encourages the adoption of positive work behaviour and attitudes by Staff, promotes decreasing dependence and increasing independence, recognises and encourages interdependence between Resident, Staff, community and Local Care Team; and accords to the principles of the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014
- 2.9 for Residents and carers, there is clear and accessible information available on the process for making suggestions, compliments and comments about the Providers' Staff and Services, Staff support them to understand their rights to express dissatisfaction; and they are enabled to access advocacy to support them to comment or complain about services and the Provider must maintain a record of all consultations
- 2.10 the Residents' needs in respect of the Equality Act 2010 (specifically, the Residents' needs in relation to race, disability, gender, sexual orientation, age, relationships and family life, religion or belief, gender identity, pregnancy and maternity) are identified and addressed
- 2.11 its current 'Q' ranking, as determined in accordance with Schedule 7, in respect of each Care Setting or Care Setting group (as the case may be) is clearly displayed at the entrance to each of those Care Settings at such location, in such form, and includes such content as the Trust may require from time to time.

3 THE PROVIDER SUPPORTED THE RESIDENT AND THE RESIDENTS COMMUNITY TO VALUE EACH OTHER

The Provider must ensure that:

- 3.1 Residents are enabled and supported to maintain, learn and use practical life skills that enable and encourage them to function independently (including but not limited to social skills, self-advocacy, personal safety money skills, laundry, cooking, accessing services and using transport)
- 3.2 Residents have access to, and are supported to participate in a range of meaningful and culturally appropriate activities for the Resident both within and outside of the Care Home; and a range of culturally diverse activities
- 3.3 activities support or address the Residents' individual strengths, needs, preferences and aspirations wherever possible and reasonably practicable.
- 3.4 they support the Residents' and communities' interdependence by enabling and encouraging paid employment, voluntary work, community participation and mutual learning opportunities

4 THE PROVIDER SUPPORTED THE RESIDENT TO BE HEALTHY

The Provider must ensure that:

- 4.1 Residents have access to information on healthy lifestyles (including but not limited to diet, exercise, smoking cessation, alcohol / drug misuse) which raises awareness and supports them to make informed choices about their own health and well being
- 4.2 information and support on maintaining a balanced diet is provided to the Residents and the consumption of food with low nutritional value is discouraged;
- 4.3 on occasion of the failure either to provide for, or for the Resident to not attend, participate or agree to undertake any identified Physical or Health and Well Being intervention, the rationale for this is clearly documented.
- 4.4 access to exercise facilities and equipment and personalised exercise programmes both in the Care Home and community are enabled and encouraged for each Resident with due regard to space, ability, health and risk

5 THE PROVIDER SUPPORTED THE RESIDENT TO RECOVER AND STAY WELL

The Provider must ensure that:

- all Residents' needs can be met through the range of interventions in place (including but not limited to: psychological therapies, psychosocial therapies, therapeutic interventions, supportive sessions and well-being programmes), the appropriate number of Staff hours and skill mix and through appropriate Staff qualifications, experience, training and approach.
- 5.2 all individualised prescribed medication is available and offered as prescribed to the Residents, the minimum required to achieve the identified clinical outcome(s); and reviewed as directed by a qualified practitioner or whenever necessary through change of presentation or circumstance.
- on occasion of the failure to provide, or for the Resident to accept or receive any individualised prescribed medication, the rationale for this is clearly documented.

6 THE PROVIDER SUPPORTED THE RESIDENT TO PROGRESS AND MOVE ON

The Provider must ensure that:

- 6.1 Care and Support Plan(s) are in place and current, set out all the Residents' physical health, mental health, emotional wellbeing, social and intellectual needs, each need has a corresponding positive outcome(s) documented, describes the timescales and interventions and activities to be provided by Staff in the Care Home to achieve the outcome(s), records any needs which will remain unmet during the duration of the Care and Support Plan; and be developed in accordance with, Good Practice, professional standards and national and local guidance and the Law
- the Resident is appropriately supported to take as much responsibility for developing the Care and Support Plan(s) as they are able, co-production of the Care and Support Plan(s) by the Resident, family, carers, advocate and Local Care Team are clearly documented; and the Care and Support Plan(s) is developed and composed from the perspective of the Resident
- 6.3 the Provider must ensure that Care and Support Plan(s) are reviewed and updated at a minimum of every three (3) months with the Resident and any unmet needs are clearly documented and communicated to Commissioners. Furthermore, the care/support plans are

reviewed at least annually with the Local Care Team (and involving family, friends and advocates as agreed with the Resident) via the Care and Support planning meeting; and whenever necessary through change of presentation or circumstance.

- Residents have a member of Staff who is identified as their key worker, who will communicate with them, be familiar with their history and needs, understand their racial and, or cultural heritage, act as an advocate by reporting and documenting from the Residents' perspective; and be available to discuss the Residents' needs with them at reasonable times
- all Care and / or Clinical Record are available, accurate, complete, verified, understandable and contemporaneous in accordance with best practice, professional standards and national and local guidance; and Residents are supported to access their Care and / or Clinical Record if they request to do so subject to their best interests and a risk assessment.

7 PART 1C: OPERATIONAL AND IT REQUIREMENTS

- 7.1 The Provider must ensure that it has, or has access to, appropriate information technology capability to include, as a minimum: (i) a scanner and (ii) a PC, laptop, tablet or similar whose functionality provides for full internet access operating via Internet Explorer 9 or such other browser version as may be required by the Trust from time to time.
- 7.2 The Provider must, within five (5) days of the Commencement Date confirm to the Trust:
 - 7.2.1 its acceptance of the CCAPS terms of use.
 - 7.2.2 the identity of one person (the "Identified Person") within the Providers organisation who shall be responsible for all data protection and information governance arrangements arising from, or in connection with this Framework Agreement and the use of the CCAPS in particular.
- 7.3 Staff must complete training appropriate to their approved role and responsibilities by such date as may be determined by the Trust (acting reasonably). The completion of such training shall be a condition precedent of the Providers' access to, and use of the CCAPS and commencement of delivery of Services under this Framework Agreement.
- 7.4 The Provider may use the NHS Wales secure file sharing portal system to send Confidential Information to the Commissioner. The Provider shall comply at all times with the NHS Wales secure file sharing portal system User Guide, as may be amended from time to time.

Part 2 Resident Placement Procedure

The Commissioner shall order Services in accordance with the following 'CAARE' placement procedure (such procedure shall at the Commissioner's discretion, but not necessarily, be undertaken in sequential order):

- 1 C Care Home / Setting appraisal undertaken by the Commissioner responsible for placement to determine (i) under which Framework Lot the Resident's care requirement falls and (ii) the Care Home / Setting the Resident should be placed.
- A Availability of beds in Care Homes / Settings within the required Framework Lot and within pre-agreed radius, for example 10 mile of a postcode significant to a Resident.
- A Assurance rating in the order of the Care Home with the highest Quality Assurance Rating first (by reference to Schedule 7).
- 4 R Ranking by price in the order of lowest composite price* Care Home / Setting first.
- *composite price = 'Core Care Package Price' + (if applicable) 'Non-Core Additional Care Hours' price (by reference to Table 1 and Table 2 of Schedule 4).
- 6 E Essential care requirements as agreed by the Commissioner in co-operation with the Resident's Local Care Team to make an informed choice, for example, single sex Care Home, social needs and Resident mix.

Subject always to the Commissioner being satisfied that the Provider identified (in accordance with the placement procedure set out above) can meet all applicable care, geographical and social needs required to aid the Resident's care and recovery; and as to the availability of appropriate care infrastructure required to aid the Resident's care and recovery.

Following the Commissioner undertaking the procedure set out above, the applicable Provider shall undertake an assessment of the Resident within a mutually agreed time period and either notify the Commissioner:

- (i) that it is not able to provide the requested Services together with the reasons; or
- (ii) that it is able to provide the requested Services in which case the Provider must provide such information as the Commissioner may require to complete a draft Resident Placement Agreement (see Schedule 5).

In preparing the draft Resident Placement Agreement the Commissioner shall calculate the Service Payment by reference to the agreed charges for the Services set out in Schedule 4 (*Pricing*).

Residents who attain the age of 65 years whilst receiving Services will continue to receive such Services in accordance with the terms of this Framework Agreement subject always to the discretion of the Commissioner.

Schedule 3 Applicable terms

1 TERM OF PLACEMENT AGREEMENT

Each Placement Agreement shall come into force on the date it is executed by its Parties in accordance with Clause 2 of the Framework Agreement or such later date as is specified in the Placement Agreement and shall continue until the expiry of the term set out in the Placement Agreement, unless terminated early in accordance with these Applicable Terms or by Law.

2 SERVICES

- 2.1 The Provider shall supply the Services in accordance with:
 - 2.1.1 these Applicable Terms and any express terms set out in the Placement Agreement;
 - 2.1.2 the Specification as set out in Schedule 2 (Specification) of the Framework Agreement;
 - 2.1.3 reasonable skill and care and in accordance with any quality assurance standards as set out in Schedule 7 (Quality Assurance Improvement System) of the Framework Agreement;
 - 2.1.4 the Law and Guidance:
 - 2.1.5 Good Practice; and
 - 2.1.6 the Policies.
- 2.2 The Provider shall provide the Services from the date specified in the Placement Agreement or, if no date is specified, from the date such Placement Agreement comes into force in accordance with Clause 1.
- 2.3 Any variations sought by the Provider to the Services provided under the Placement Agreement must be made only in accordance with Clause 4.
- 2.4 Except where required by Law, the Provider shall not be required to provide or to continue to provide Services to Residents who in the reasonable professional opinion of the Provider are unsuitable to receive the relevant Service, for as long as such unsuitability remains.
- 2.5 Where the Provider proposes not to provide Services or to discontinue provision of Services in respect of any Resident under Clause 2.4 the Provider shall give the Commissioner sufficient prior notice and shall liaise with the Commissioner to resolve the issue of the provision of the relevant care to the Resident in a way that minimises any disruption to the Resident's care, provided that nothing in this Clause shall entitle the Provider not to provide or to discontinue provision of the Services in cases where to do so would be contrary to Law.
- 2.6 Where, pursuant to Clause 2.5 the Provider and the Commissioner cannot agree on the continued provision of the relevant care to a Resident, the Provider shall notify the Commissioner that it will discontinue the provision of Services to that Resident, and the

Commissioner shall use reasonable endeavours, as soon as reasonably practicable, to procure alternative services for that Resident.

- 2.7 The Provider undertakes, warrants and represents to the Commissioner that:
 - 2.7.1 it has full right, power and authority to enter into the Placement Agreement and to provide the Services to the Commissioner;
 - 2.7.2 its entry into and performance of the Placement Agreement will not cause it to be in breach of any obligations to a third party;
 - 2.7.3 there is no litigation to which the Provider is a party which would prevent the Provider's performance of its obligations under the Placement Agreement;
 - 2.7.4 it is of sound financial standing and the Provider is not aware of any circumstances (other than any circumstances that may be disclosed in the auditor's report on the accounts) which will materially adversely affect that financial standing in the future;
 - 2.7.5 it has obtained and complied with and will maintain all applicable Consents required for it to provide the Services and that in its provision of the Services it will comply with all applicable Laws;
 - 2.7.6 it will make sure that, when complying with its obligations under the Placement Agreement, it minimises any interference with the activities of the Commissioner, its members, employees or agents; and
 - 2.7.7 it will consult with the Commissioner as often as may be reasonably necessary for it to provide the Services in accordance with the Placement Agreement.
- 2.8 The Provider further undertakes, warrants and represents that the receipt of the Services by the Commissioner shall not infringe the Intellectual Property Rights or other proprietary or equitable rights of any third party.
- 2.9 The Provider shall ensure that the Commissioner is kept advised at all times of any increases and / or decreases in bed capacity within the Provider's Lots and the Care Homes.

3 PAYMENT

- 3.1 The Commissioner shall pay the Provider the Service Payments in accordance with the provisions of Schedule 4 (*Pricing*) of the Framework Agreement. Unless specified to the contrary or agreed in writing by the Parties:
 - 3.1.1 the Service Payments are the only amounts payable by the Commissioner under the Placement Agreement;
 - 3.1.2 save where specified to the contrary in the Placement Agreement, all costs, charges and expenses which relate to performance of the Provider's obligations under the Placement Agreement and the provision of the Services will be borne by the Provider from the Service Payments. The fact that a provision does not state that the Provider must perform the obligations "at no additional charge" will not be taken as implying that the Provider may charge extra for complying with the obligation; and

- 3.1.3 the Service Payments are fixed and are not subject to any increase or indexation save to the extent set out in Schedule 4 (*Pricing*) of the Framework Agreement.
- 3.2 The Commissioner believes (and the Provider has confirmed) that the provision of the Services do not constitute a supply subject to VAT. To the extent that the Services will be subject to VAT, the Commissioner will pay such tax, subject to production of a valid VAT invoice for the same.
- In consideration of the Provider's performance of the Services in strict accordance with the Placement Agreement the Commissioner shall pay sums due under the Placement Agreement to the Provider within thirty (30) days of receiving the Provider's valid invoice for the same. The Provider shall invoice the Commissioner in accordance with the provisions of Schedule 4 (*Pricing*) of the Framework Agreement.
- 3.4 If the Commissioner fails to pay any undisputed sums due properly invoiced under the Placement Agreement, the Provider shall have the right to charge interest on the overdue amount at the rate of 4% per annum above the Bank of England's base rate from time to time. Such interest shall accrue on a daily basis from the due date until actual payment of the overdue amount, whether before or after judgment. The Provider acknowledges that this amounts to a substantial remedy for the late payment of any sums due.
- 3.5 The Commissioner has a duty to account for the disbursement of public funds. The Provider therefore agrees:
 - 3.5.1 to keep proper records in respect of all payments made to it pursuant to the Placement Agreement and to allow inspection of such records at all reasonable times and by prior appointment by the Authorised Officer for the sole purpose of verifying the Provider's contractual fulfilment of its obligations and the amounts due to the Provider under the Placement Agreement;
 - 3.5.2 to make available such facilities and give such assistance as the Commissioner may reasonably request in respect of such Audit (including providing such copies or extracts of its records as the Commissioner may reasonably request);
 - 3.5.3 to afford the Authorised Officer reasonable access to such information, documents, records and data as may be relevant to the Provider's performance under the Placement Agreement provided that the Provider may require the Authorised Officers to enter into a confidentiality agreement (reasonably acceptable to the Commissioner) prior to any such Audit; and
 - 3.5.4 to maintain and keep secure all financial records, accounts and documents in its possession, custody or control and which relate to the Placement Agreement for a period of six (6) years from the end of the financial year in which the last payment is made by the Commissioner under the terms of the Placement Agreement.
- 3.6 If requested by the Commissioner, the Provider shall use the Electronic Trading System to facilitate, inter alia, the Placement Procedure, the provision of pricing information and invoicing, together with the exchange of such other information relating to this Placement Agreement as the Commissioner may reasonably require from time to time.

4 VARIATION OF SERVICES PROVIDED UNDER A PLACEMENT AGREEMENT

- 4.1 Subject always to the provisions of this Clause 4, the Provider may request a variation to the Services provided under a Placement Agreement provided that such variation does not amount to a material change to the Services. Such a change is hereinafter called a "Variation".
- 4.2 The Provider may request a Variation by completing and sending the Variation form attached at Appendix 1 (the "Variation Form") to the Commissioner giving sufficient information for the Commissioner to assess the extent of the Variation and any additional cost that may be incurred.
- 4.3 In the event that the Commissioner does not agree the Variation to the Services or, where applicable, a change to the Service Payment, the Provider will continue to perform its obligations under the Placement Agreement without the Variation.
- 4.4 The Commissioner may at any time propose to the Provider a Variation to the Services provided under a Placement Agreement by completing and sending a Variation Form to the Provider and the Provider shall not unreasonably withhold or delay its consent to such Variation.
- 4.5 If the Parties agree the Variation and any variation in the Service Payments, the Provider shall carry out such Variation and be bound by the same provisions so far as is applicable, as though such Variation was stated in the Placement Agreement.

5 EMPLOYEES

- 5.1 The Provider must be entirely responsible for the employment or engagement and the conditions of service of its Staff employed or otherwise engaged in the provision of the Services.
- 5.2 The Provider must employ or engage sufficient Staff to ensure that all of the Services are provided at all times and in all respects in compliance with Clause 2.1. This must include, but not be limited to, the Provider providing a sufficient reserve of trained and competent Staff to provide the Services during staff holidays or absence due to sickness or voluntary absence.
- In relation to the Services, the Provider must employ or engage only such persons as are careful, skilled and experienced in the duties required of them, and must ensure that every such person is properly and sufficiently trained and instructed (at the Provider's expense) and carries out the Services with regard to:
 - 5.3.1 the task or tasks that person has to perform;
 - 5.3.2 all relevant provisions of the Placement Agreement and the Specification;
 - 5.3.3 all applicable Law, and all relevant Policies, rules, procedures and standards of the Commissioner (including any discrimination and equal opportunities policies);
 - 5.3.4 the need for those working in a health service environment to observe the highest standards of hygiene, customer care, courtesy and consideration; and

- 5.3.5 the need to keep confidential all information howsoever acquired whether relating to the Commissioner and its business, or relating to Residents, including but not limited to Resident identity, clinical conditions and treatment.
- 5.4 The Provider must ensure that the Staff:
 - 5.4.1 if applicable, are registered with the appropriate professional regulatory body;
 - 5.4.2 possess the appropriate qualifications, experience, skills and competencies to perform the duties required of them and be appropriately supervised, managerially and professionally;
 - 5.4.3 are covered by the Provider's indemnity arrangements (as identified and to the extent set out in Clause 13 (Insurance)) for the provision of the Services;
- 5.5 The Commissioner reserves the right to reject Staff whom it considers to be unsuitable for the duties proposed. Where Staff are rejected, the Provider must supply alternative Staff.
- The Provider shall immediately provide to the Commissioner any information in respect of any member of Staff registered with the Regulator that the Commissioner reasonably requests,
- 5.7 The Provider must:
 - 5.7.1 ensure that it complies with all current employment legislation and in particular, does not unlawfully discriminate in the employment or engagement of Staff for the purpose of providing the Services. The Provider must take all reasonable steps (at its own expense) to ensure that all Staff used in the provision of the Services do not unlawfully discriminate; and
 - 5.7.2 in the management of its affairs and the development of its equality and diversity policies, the Provider must co-operate with the Commissioner in respect of the Commissioner's obligations to comply with statutory equality duties. The Provider must take such steps as the Commissioner considers appropriate to promote equality and diversity, including (but not limited to) race equality, equality of opportunity for disabled people, gender (including gender reassignment) equality, and equality relating to religion and belief, sexual orientation, pregnancy and maternity, marriage and civil partnership and age in the provision of the Services.
- The Provider shall ensure that all potential Staff or persons performing any of the Services during the Term who may reasonably be expected in the course of performing any of the Services under this Placement Agreement to have access to or come into contact with children or other vulnerable persons and / or have access to or come into contact with persons receiving health care services:
 - 5.8.1 are questioned concerning their Convictions; and
 - 5.8.2 obtain appropriate disclosures from the Disclosure and Barring Service (or other appropriate body) as required by Law and / or the Policies before the Provider engages the potential staff or persons in the provision of the Services.

- 5.9 The Provider shall take all necessary steps to ensure that such potential staff or persons obtain standard and enhanced disclosures from the Disclosure and Barring Service (or other appropriate body) and shall ensure all such disclosures are kept up to date. The obtaining of such disclosures shall be at the Provider's cost and expense.
- 5.10 The Provider shall ensure that no person is employed or otherwise engaged in the provision of the Services without the Commissioner's prior written consent if:
 - 5.10.1 the person has disclosed any Convictions upon being questioned about their Convictions in accordance with Clause 5.8.1;
 - 5.10.2 the person is found to have any Convictions following receipt of standard and / or enhanced disclosures from the Disclosure and Barring Service (or other appropriate body) in accordance with Clause 5.8.2; or
 - 5.10.3 the person fails to obtain standard and / or enhanced disclosures from the Disclosure and Barring Service (or other appropriate body) upon request by the Provider in accordance with Clause 5.9.
- 5.11 In addition to the requirements of Clause 5.8 to Clause 5.10, where the Services are or include regulated activities as defined by the Safeguarding Vulnerable Groups Act 2006 the Provider:
 - 5.11.1 warrants that it shall comply with all requirements placed on it by the Safeguarding Vulnerable Groups Act 2006;
 - 5.11.2 warrants that at all times it has and will have no reason to believe that any member of Staff is barred in accordance with the Safeguarding Vulnerable Groups Act 2006; and
 - 5.11.3 shall ensure that no person is employed or otherwise engaged in the provision of the Services if that person is barred from carrying out, or whose previous conduct or records indicate that they would not be suitable to carry out, any regulated activities as defined by the Safeguarding Vulnerable Groups Act 2006 or may present a risk to Residents or any other person.
- 5.12 The Provider shall ensure that the Commissioner is kept advised at all times of any member of Staff who, subsequent to their commencement of employment as a member of Staff receives a Conviction or whose previous Convictions become known to the Provider or whose conduct or records indicate that they are not suitable to carry out any regulated activities as defined by the Safeguarding Vulnerable Groups Act 2006 or may present a risk to Residents or any other person. The Provider shall only be entitled to continue to engage or employ such member of Staff with the Commissioner's written consent and with such safeguards being put in place as the Commissioner may reasonably request. Should the Commissioner withhold consent the Provider shall remove such member of Staff from the provision of the Services forthwith.
- 5.13 The Provider shall ensure that the Commissioner is kept advised at all times of any member of Staff whose employment with the Commissioner has been suspended or terminated.
- 5.14 The Provider shall immediately provide to the Commissioner any information that the Commissioner reasonably requests to enable the Commissioner to satisfy itself that the obligations set out in Clause 5.6 to Clause 5.11 have been met.

- 5.15 The Commissioner may at any time request that the Provider remove and replace any member of Staff from the provision of the Services, provided always that the Commissioner will act reasonably in making such a request. Prior to making any such request the Commissioner shall raise with the Provider the Commissioner's concerns regarding the member of Staff in question with the aim of seeking a mutually agreeable resolution. The Commissioner shall be under no obligation to have such prior discussion should the Commissioner have concerns regarding Resident safety.
- 5.16 The Provider must procure that the Commissioner is kept advised at all times of any:
 - 5.16.1 disciplinary incident relating to the Staff involving Residents, visitors, or the Commissioner's staff or property; and
 - 5.16.2 incidents of serious misconduct involving the Staff.
- 5.17 Subject to its obligations under the Equality Act 2010 relating to disability discrimination, the Provider must not employ or engage in or about the provision of the Services any person who has suffered from, has signs of, is under treatment for, or who is suffering from any medical condition which is known to, or does potentially place the health of the Commissioner's staff, Residents or visitors at risk. In all such cases, the Provider is required to notify the Authorised Officer of each member of Staff so affected.
- 5.18 It is the joint responsibility of the Provider and its Staff to ensure that the Staff supplied to carry out the Services have not worked excessive hours which could prejudice the standards of service. In accordance with the Working Time Regulations 1998 (as amended) it is the responsibility of the Provider to keep records of hours worked for the Staff.

6 CONTROL AND SUPERVISION OF STAFF

- 6.1 The Provider must make available a Contract Manager to ensure the efficient provision of the specified Services. Duties of the Contract Manager include meeting with the Authorised Officer (at such intervals as the Authorised Officer may determine from time to time) to review, inter alia, contract performance and fulfilment. Any notice, information, instruction or other communication given or made to the Contract Manager shall be deemed to have been given or made to the Provider.
- Once appointed, the Provider must forthwith give notice in writing to the Authorised Officer of the identity of the person appointed as Contract Manager (and of any subsequent appointment) and the date from which their appointment is effective. Until notice of a subsequent appointment shall have been given the Commissioner shall be entitled to treat as Contract Manager the person last notified to the Authorised Officer as being the Contract Manager.
- 6.3 The Provider must ensure that the Contract Manager, or a competent deputy who is duly authorised to act on his behalf, is available to the Commissioner at all times when any Staff are engaged in the provision of any of the Services.
- 6.4 The Contract Manager or his deputy must consult with the Authorised Officer and such other of the Commissioner's own supervisory staff as may from time to time be specified by the Authorised Officer as often as may reasonably be necessary for the efficient provision of the Services in accordance with the Placement Agreement.

6.5 The Provider must comply, and must ensure that its Staff comply with, the requirements of relevant Health and Safety and other relevant Law, including regulations and codes of practice issued thereunder.

7 RE-TENDERING AND HANDOVER

- 7.1 On the termination or expiration of the Placement Agreement (in part or otherwise), the identity of the Provider of the Services (or any part of the Services) may change resulting in a transfer of the Services in whole or in part ("Service Transfer"). If a Service Transfer is a relevant transfer for the purposes of TUPE then, in such event, the Commissioner or a Replacement Provider may inherit liabilities in respect of the Transferring Employees. Accordingly if TUPE applies on a Service Transfer the provisions in Clauses 7 and 8 shall apply.
- 7.2 Within twenty one (21) days of being so requested by the Commissioner, the Provider must provide and thereafter keep updated, in a fully indexed and catalogued format, all the information necessary to enable the Commissioner to issue invitations to tender for the future provision of services equivalent to all or part of the Services, including but not limited to all employee liability information identified in Regulation 11 of TUPE.
- 7.3 Where, in the opinion of the Commissioner, TUPE is likely to apply on the termination or expiration of the Placement Agreement, the information to be provided by the Provider under Clause 7.2 must include, as applicable, accurate information relating to the Staff who would be likely to transfer to the Commissioner or any Replacement Provider under TUPE, including in particular:
 - 7.3.1 the number of Staff who would be likely to transfer, including their names (to the extent lawful to provide the same), a breakdown of the work they carry out including details of the work they perform, the amount of time they spend carrying out the Services and details of any other duties they carry out and the locations of such work;
 - 7.3.2 their dates of birth, sex, salary, length of service, hours of work and rates, and any other factors affecting redundancy entitlement, any specific terms applicable to those employees individually and any outstanding claims arising from their employment;
 - 7.3.3 the general terms and conditions applicable to them, including (where applicable) any Whitley Council provisions, probationary periods, retirement age, periods of notice, current pay agreements and structures, special pay allowances, working hours, entitlement to annual leave, sick leave, maternity and special leave, injury benefit, redundancy rights, terms of mobility, any loan or leasing agreements, and any other relevant collective agreements, facility time arrangements, additional employment benefits and any other particulars of employment that an employer is obliged to give to an employee pursuant to Section 1 of the Employment Rights Act 1996;
 - 7.3.4 information of any disciplinary or grievance procedure taken against or by the Staff within the previous two (2) years;
 - 7.3.5 information of any court or tribunal case, claim or action brought by the Staff against the Provider within the previous two (2) years and where the Provider has reasonable grounds to believe that they may bring any court or tribunal case, claim or action

- against the Commissioner or Replacement Provider arising out of their employment or engagement with the Provider any information in respect of it; and
- 7.3.6 details of whether they are employees, workers, self-employed, contractors (including sub-contractors) or consultants, servants, suppliers, agency workers or otherwise.
- 7.4 At least fourteen (14) days before the date of the Service Transfer, the Provider shall prepare and provide to the Commissioner and / or, at the direction of the Commissioner, to the Replacement Provider, the Provider's final list of Staff in accordance with Clauses 7.2 and 7.3, which shall be complete and accurate in all material respects. The Provider's final list of Staff shall identify which of the Staff named are Transferring Employees.
- 7.5 The Provider must indemnify in full and keep indemnified the Commissioner against any claims, costs, expenses or liabilities whatsoever and howsoever arising, incurred or suffered by the Commissioner or any Replacement Provider including without limitation all legal expenses and other professional fees (together with any VAT thereon) in relation to any deficiency or inaccuracy in information, which the Provider is required to provide under Clauses 7.2, 7.3 and 7.4.
- 7.6 The Provider must co-operate fully with the Commissioner and the Replacement Provider during and following any re-procurement exercise in respect of services equivalent to all or part of the Services. This co-operation, during the setting up operations period of the Replacement Provider, must extend to allowing full access to, and providing copies of all documents, reports, summaries and other information necessary in order to achieve an effective transition without disruption to the routine operational requirements.
- 7.7 Within ten (10) Working Days of being so requested by the Commissioner, the Provider must transfer to the Commissioner, or any person designated by the Commissioner, free of charge, all data, recordings, documentation, planning and drawings held and utilised in the provision of the Services. The transfer must be made in a fully indexed and catalogued disk format to operate on a proprietary software package identical to that used by the Commissioner.

8 TUPE

- 8.1 The Provider will be responsible for the payment of all salaries, benefits, bonuses, PAYE liabilities and pension contributions in accordance with Staff terms and conditions of employment or engagement (whether contractual or otherwise) in respect of the period during which Staff are employed or engaged by the Provider.
- 8.2 The Provider must indemnify in full and keep indemnified the Commissioner (and any Replacement Provider upon exit) against all claims, costs, expenses or liabilities whatsoever and howsoever arising, incurred or suffered by the Commissioner or any Replacement Provider including without limitation all legal expenses and other professional fees (together with any VAT thereon) in relation to:
 - 8.2.1 any breach of Clause 8.1;
 - 8.2.2 any breaches of the contract of employment, terms and conditions, any Law, obligation or policy applicable to, or any collective agreement in respect of any Transferring Employee;

- 8.2.3 any claims made by a Transferring Employee against the Commissioner (or a Replacement Provider upon exit) at any time for breach of contract, Law, policy or any such collective agreement relating to their employment or engagement, including but not limited to any claims relating to pay, unfair dismissal, statutory or contractual redundancy pay, discrimination on the grounds of a "protected characteristic" as set out in the Equality Act 2010, equal pay, unlawful deductions, loss of earnings, industrial or personal injury or otherwise relating to their employment or engagement by the Provider;
- 8.2.4 any claim arising out of the provision of, or proposal by the Provider to offer any change to any benefit, term or condition or working condition of any Transferring Employee arising on or before the date of the Service Transfer;
- 8.2.5 any statement communicated to or action done by the Provider or in respect of any Transferring Employee on or before the date of the Service Transfer regarding the Service Transfer which has not been agreed in advance with the Commissioner in writing,

provided that any breaches referred to in Clause 8.2 result from any act, fault or omission of the Provider prior to the date of the Service Transfer and while such persons were employed or engaged by the Provider.

- 8.3 The Provider shall also indemnify in full and keep indemnified the Commissioner and any Replacement Provider (on exit) in respect of any claims arising from any act or omission of the Provider in relation to any other member of Staff or any other person at any time employed or engaged by the Provider who is not a Transferring Employee during any period whether before, on or after the date of the Service Transfer.
- 8.4 Except with the prior written consent of the Commissioner, the Provider must not, after the Commissioner has served notice of the termination of the Placement Agreement or after the Trust has served notice of termination of the Framework Agreement or after the Provider shall have otherwise become aware of the proposed termination of the Placement Agreement, the Framework Agreement or the provision by it of the Services:
 - 8.4.1 materially increase the total number of Staff;
 - 8.4.2 vary any terms and conditions of employment of any member of Staff or any policy or collective agreement applicable to any member of Staff then assigned by the Provider to the provisions of the Services (provided always that this provision shall not affect the right of the Provider to give effect to any pre-existing contractual obligation to any such person);
 - 8.4.3 remove or replace any particular member of Staff so assigned (unless upon the resignation of such person in which case the Provider must replace such person with another person of similar skills, qualifications and experience);
 - 8.4.4 increase the proportion of working time spent on the Services (or the relevant part) by any of the Staff save for fulfilling assignments and projects previously scheduled and agreed with the Commissioner; or

- 8.4.5 introduce any new contractual or customary practice concerning the making of any lump sum payment on the termination of employment of any Staff.
- 8.5 If the Provider ceases to provide all or any of the Services, and all or any of the Services (or services equivalent to the Services) are transferred to a Replacement Provider or the Commissioner in circumstances where TUPE applies, the Provider agrees that subject to an employee's right to object pursuant to Regulation 4(7) of TUPE, the Provider must:
 - 8.5.1 use reasonable endeavours to ensure there is a smooth transition in respect of the transfer of any Transferring Employee and that any Transferring Employee can become an employee of the Replacement Provider or the Commissioner on the date of the Service Transfer;
 - 8.5.2 without prejudice to the foregoing, in respect of the Service Transfer comply with its obligations to inform and consult pursuant to regulations 13 and 14 of TUPE;
 - 8.5.3 indemnify in full and keep indemnified the Commissioner and / or any Replacement Provider against any claims, costs, expenses or liabilities whatsoever and howsoever arising, incurred or suffered by the Commissioner or any Replacement Provider including without limitation all legal expenses and other professional fees (together with any VAT thereon) in relation to:
 - 8.5.3.1 the termination of employment of any Staff or any other person employed or engaged or formerly employed or engaged by the Provider other than the Transferring Employees where the employment or engagement of such person is alleged or deemed to have transferred to the Commissioner or Replacement Provider pursuant to TUPE; and
 - 8.5.3.2 any act or omission of the Provider in relation to its obligations under regulation 11 of TUPE, or in respect of an award of compensation under regulation 12 of TUPE except to the extent that the liability arises from the Commissioner or Replacement Provider's failure to comply with regulation 11 of TUPE.
- 8.6 The Provider, the Commissioner and any Replacement Provider shall co-operate to ensure that any requirement to inform and consult employee representatives in relation to any relevant transfer as a consequence of a Service Transfer will be fulfilled.
- 8.7 Whilst the Parties consider that it is unlikely that TUPE will apply in relation to the commencement of supply of the Services or to the termination of the supply of the Services under the Placement Agreement or the Framework Agreement, the Parties agree nevertheless that each possible transfer situation will be dealt with by the Parties in accordance with the Cabinet Office Statement of Practice: Staff Transfers in the Public Sector (Jan 2000, revised November 2007), as amended, replaced or supplemented from time to time including, for the avoidance of doubt, the schedule "A Fair Deal for Staff Pensions" as amended, replaced or supplemented from time to time (the "Statement of Practice") unless the Statement of Practice is withdrawn. The Parties will comply with and discharge all obligations placed upon them by the Statement of Practice. For the avoidance of doubt, the Parties agree to negotiate in good faith in order to enter into all further agreements necessary to ensure that the Commissioner

can impose upon the Replacement Provider requirements as set out in the Statement of Practice.

9 PERFORMANCE MONITORING AND REPORTING

- 9.1 The provisions of Schedule 7 (*Quality Assurance Improvement System*) of the Framework Agreement shall apply.
- 9.2 The Commissioner shall be entitled to Audit the Provider's compliance with Schedule 7.

10 CONFIDENTIALITY

- 10.1 In respect of any Confidential Information it may receive from the other Party (the "**Discloser**") and subject always to the remainder of this Clause 10 each Party (the "**Recipient**") undertakes to keep secret and strictly confidential and shall not disclose any such Confidential Information to any third party, without the Discloser's prior written consent provided that:
 - 10.1.1 the Recipient shall not be prevented from using any general knowledge, experience or skills which were in its possession prior to the commencement of the Placement Agreement; and
 - 10.1.2 the provisions of this Clause 10 shall not apply to any Confidential Information which:
 - 10.1.2.1 is in or enters the public domain other than by breach of the Placement Agreement or other act or omissions of the Recipient;
 - 10.1.2.2 is obtained by a third party who is lawfully authorised to disclose such information; or
 - 10.1.2.3 is authorised for release by the prior written consent of the Discloser; or
 - 10.1.2.4 is required to be disclosed to ensure the compliance of the Commissioner with FOIA or the Environmental Information Regulations.
- Nothing in this Clause 10 shall prevent the Recipient from disclosing Confidential Information where it is required to do so by judicial, administrative, governmental or regulatory process in connection with any action, suit, proceedings or claim or otherwise by applicable Law or, where the Provider is the Recipient, to the Provider's immediate or ultimate holding company provided that the Provider procures that such holding company undertakes directly with the Discloser that it will comply with this Clause 10 as if any reference to the Provider in this Clause 10 were a reference to such holding company.
- 10.3 The Provider agrees that:
 - 10.3.1 without prejudice to the generality of Clause 10.2 the provisions of this Clause 10 are subject to the respective obligations and commitments of the Commissioner under the FOIA, the Environmental Information Regulations and both the respective Codes of Practice on the Discharge of Public Authorities' Functions and on the Management of Records (which are issued under sections 45 and 46 of the FOIA respectively);

- 10.3.2 subject to Clause 10.3.3, the decision on whether any exemption applies to a request for disclosure of recorded information is a decision solely for the Commissioner; and
- 10.3.3 where the Commissioner is managing a request as referred to in Clause 10.3.2, the Provider must co-operate with the Commissioner and must respond within five (5) Working Days of any request by it for assistance in determining how to respond to a request for disclosure.
- 10.4 The Provider must and must procure that its Staff must:
 - 10.4.1 transfer any request for information, as defined under section 8 of the FOIA, to the Commissioner as soon as practicable after receipt and in any event within five (5) Working Days of receiving a request for information;
 - 10.4.2 provide the Commissioner with a copy of all information in its possession or power in the form that the Commissioner requires within five (5) Working Days (or such other period as the Commissioner may specify) of the Commissioner requesting that information: and
 - 10.4.3 provide all necessary assistance as reasonably requested by the Commissioner to enable the Commissioner to respond to a request for information within the time for compliance set out in section 10 of the FOIA.
- 10.5 The Commissioner may consult the Provider in relation to any request for disclosure of the Provider's Confidential Information in accordance with applicable Guidance.
- 10.6 This Clause 10 shall remain in force without limit in time.

11 DATA PROTECTION

- 11.1 This Clause 11 sets out the respective roles and obligations of the parties in respect of the processing of Personal Data under this Agreement. In this Clause 11, the terms **Personal Data**, **Data Controller**, **Data Processor** and processing shall bear the meanings as defined in the DPA.
- 11.2 This Clause 11 shall remain in force without limit in time.

Roles of the Parties

- 11.3 The Provider acknowledges that for the purposes of the DPA, the Trust and the Commissioner are each a Data Controller in respect of the Personal Data processed under this Agreement.
- 11.4 Where the Provider is processing Personal Data solely on behalf of the Trust and the Commissioner, the Provider will be a Data Processor and must comply with all of the provisions of this Clause 11 except Clause 11.9.
- 11.5 To the extent that the Provider processes any Personal Data as a Data Controller, the Provider, the Trust and the Commissioner shall be joint Data Controllers and the Provider must comply with all the provisions of this Clause 11 except Clause 11.8.

Provisions relating to all processing of Personal Data by the Provider

- 11.6 The Provider must indemnify and keep indemnified the Trust and the Commissioner against all claims and proceedings and all liability, loss, costs and expenses incurred in connection therewith by the Trust and the Commissioner respectively, as a result of any claim made or brought by any person in respect of any loss, damage or distress caused to that person as a result of the Provider's unauthorised processing, unlawful processing, destruction of and / or damage to any Personal Data processed by the Provider.
- 11.7 The Provider must assist the Trust and the Commissioner to comply with the DPA. This includes the Provider providing the Trust and the Commissioner with all assistance as may be required in complying with subject access requests served on the Trust and the Commissioner under Section 7 of the DPA and the disclosure by the Provider of any Personal Data in relation to such requests.

The Provider as a Data Processor

- 11.8 Whenever the Provider is processing Personal Data as a Data Processor, the Provider must comply with the obligations placed on the Trust and the Commissioner by the seventh data protection principle (the "Seventh Principle") set out in the DPA, namely:
 - 11.8.1 to maintain technical and organisational security measures sufficient to comply at least with the obligations imposed on the Trust and the Commissioner by the Seventh Principle;
 - 11.8.2 only to process Personal Data for and on behalf of the Trust and the Commissioner, in accordance with the instructions of the Trust and the Commissioner and for the purpose of performing the Services in accordance with the Placement Agreement;
 - 11.8.3 not transfer any Personal Data obtained pursuant to the Provider's provision of the Services outside the European Economic Area without the prior written consent of the Commissioner; and
 - 11.8.4 to allow the Trust and the Commissioner to audit the Provider's compliance with the requirements of this Clause 11 on reasonable notice and / or to provide the Trust and the Commissioner with evidence of its compliance with the obligations set out in this Clause 11.

The Provider as a Data Controller

- 11.9 Whenever the Provider is processing Personal Data as a Data Controller, the Provider must at all times:
 - 11.9.1 comply with its obligations under the DPA;
 - 11.9.2 maintain an up to date notification with the Information Commissioner;
 - 11.9.3 not transfer any Personal Data obtained pursuant to the Provider's provision of the Services outside the European Economic Area without the prior written consent of the Data Controllers; and

11.9.4 maintain appropriate technical and organisational security measures in order to comply with its obligations under the Seventh Principle.

12 Prevention of Corruption and Bribery

12.1 The Provider must:

- 12.1.1 without prejudice to its other obligations to comply with Laws, comply with all applicable laws, regulations, codes and sanctions relating to anti-bribery and anti-corruption including but not limited to the Bribery Act 2010 ("Relevant Requirements");
- 12.1.2 not engage in any activity, practice or conduct which would constitute an offence under sections 1, 2 or 6 of the Bribery Act 2010 if such activity, practice or conduct had been carried out in the UK;
- 12.1.3 comply with any of the Commissioner's or the Trust's ethics, anti-bribery and anti-corruption policies in each case as the Commissioner or the Trust (as applicable) may update them from time to time ("Relevant Policies");
- 12.1.4 have and shall maintain in place throughout the Term its own policies and procedures, including but not limited to adequate procedures under the Bribery Act 2010, to ensure compliance with the Relevant Requirements, the Relevant Policies and Clause 12.1.2, and will enforce them where appropriate;
- 12.1.5 immediately notify the Commissioner if a foreign public official becomes an officer or employee of the Provider or acquires a direct or indirect interest in the Provider (and the Provider warrants that it has no foreign public officials as officers, employees or direct or indirect owners as at the Commencement Date):
- 12.1.6 ensure that all persons associated with the Provider and the Provider's Staff who are performing Services in connection with the Placement Agreement comply with this Clause; and
- 12.1.7 within three (3) Months of the Commencement Date, and annually thereafter, certify to the Commissioner in writing signed by an officer of the Provider, compliance with this Clause 12.1 by the Provider and the Provider's Staff under Clause 12.1.6. The Provider shall provide such supporting evidence of compliance as the Commissioner may reasonably request.
- 12.2 Breach of this Clause 12 shall be deemed a Material Default of the Placement Agreement which is not capable of remedy.
- 12.3 For the purpose of this Clause 12, the meaning of adequate procedures and foreign public official and whether a person is associated with another person shall be determined in accordance with section 7(2) of the Bribery Act 2010 (and any guidance issued under section 9 of that Act), sections 6(5) and 6(6) of that Act and section 8 of that Act respectively. For the purposes of this Clause 12, a person associated with the Provider includes but is not limited to the Staff.

12.4 The Provider must reimburse the Commissioner in respect of any losses, liabilities, damages, costs (including but not limited to legal fees) and expenses incurred by the Commissioner (including such losses, liabilities, damages, costs and expenses arising from the termination of the Placement Agreement where termination results from a breach of this Clause), or awarded against the Commissioner as a result of any breach of this Clause 12 by the Provider.

13 INSURANCE

- 13.1 The Provider undertakes to take out and maintain the following policies of insurance with a reputable insurance company against liability which the Provider may incur to the Commissioner or to the Staff or to any other person in connection with each Placement Agreement as follows:
 - 13.1.1 Employer's Liability: in the sum of not less than five million pounds (£5,000,000) or such statutory minimum as is required from time to time in the UK (whichever is greater) per event or series of events arising from the same set of circumstances; and
 - 13.1.2 Public Liability: in the sum of not less than five million pounds (£5,000,000) per event or series of events arising from the same set of circumstances; and
 - 13.1.3 Professional Indemnity, malpractice, treatment risk or similar appropriate indemnity arrangements in relation to the provision or non-provision of the Services (or any other services under this Framework Agreement) which may result in a clinical or professional negligence claim: in the sum of not less than five million pounds (£5,000,000) per event or series of events arising from the same set of circumstances or such higher limit as the Trust may reasonably require from time to time.
- 13.2 The terms of any insurance or the amount of cover shall not relieve the Provider of any liabilities under the Placement Agreement.
- 13.3 The Provider shall maintain the insurances referred to in Clause 13.1 for a minimum of six (6) years following the expiration or earlier termination of the Placement Agreement.

14 TRANSFER AND SUB-CONTRACTING

- 14.1 The Placement Agreement is personal to the Provider and the Provider shall not assign, novate or otherwise dispose of the Placement Agreement or any part thereof without the previous consent in writing of the Commissioner.
- The Provider shall not be entitled to sub-contract any of its rights or obligations under this Placement Agreement without the previous consent in writing of the Commissioner.
- 14.3 The Commissioner shall be entitled to:
 - 14.3.1 assign, novate or otherwise dispose of its rights and obligations under the Placement Agreement or any part thereof to any Commissioner; or
 - 14.3.2 novate the Placement Agreement to any other body (including any private sector body) which substantially performs any of the functions that previously had been performed by the Commissioner,

14.3.3 provided that such assignment, novation or disposal shall not increase the burden of the Provider's obligations under the Placement Agreement. The Provider shall join in any novation under this Clause.

15 STEP IN

- 15.1 The Commissioner has a statutory duty to provide appropriate and satisfactory care to its Residents and the Provider acknowledges the importance of the Services in that context. Without prejudice to any other right or remedy of the Commissioner, if a Step-In Event occurs, the Commissioner shall have the remedies set out in this Clause 15.
- 15.2 If a Step-in Event occurs the Commissioner shall be entitled to:
 - 15.2.1 require the Provider to develop and implement a work-around solution to limit the effects of the Step-in Event, the cost of doing so to be borne by the Provider where the Step-in Event arises as a result of breach by the Provider of any provision of this Placement Agreement or negligence / breach of statutory duty by the Provider (paragraph (a) of the definition of "Step-In Event") and to be borne equally by the Parties where the Step-in Event arises out of an event as defined in paragraph (b) of the definition of "Step-In Event" or of Force Majeure; and / or
 - 15.2.2 suspend, in whole or in part, the Provider's performance of the terms of the Placement Agreement and assume the performance of the Provider's obligations under the Placement Agreement itself or through another Provider ("Step In") and (where the Step-In Event arises as a result of Provider breach (paragraph (a) of the definition of "Step-In Event"), the Provider must indemnify the Commissioner in respect of all losses, costs, damages or expenses incurred by the Commissioner in accordance with the provisions of this Clause 15.2.2.
- 15.3 If the Commissioner takes action pursuant to Clause 15.2.2 above (where the Step-In Event arises as a result of Provider breach (paragraph (a) of the definition of "Step-In Event")) and the breach constituting a Step-In Event continues for more than thirty (30) days, the Commissioner shall be entitled to terminate this Agreement by reason of Provider default forthwith by notice to the Provider.
- 15.4 If the Commissioner takes action pursuant to Clause 15.2.2 above for any reason other than Provider breach, and the circumstances constituting a Step-in Event continue for more than thirty (30) days, the Commissioner shall be entitled to terminate this Agreement in accordance with the provisions of Clause 33 of the Framework Agreement (Force Majeure).

16 TERMINATION

Termination on Default

- 16.1 The Commissioner may terminate the Placement Agreement by serving written notice on the Provider with effect from the date specified in such notice:
 - 16.1.1 where the Provider commits a Material Default and:

- 16.1.1.1 the Provider has not remedied the Material Default to the satisfaction of the Commissioner within twenty (20) Working Days, or such other period as may be specified by the Commissioner, after issue of a written notice specifying the Material Default and requesting it to be remedied; or
- 16.1.1.2 the Material Default is not, in the reasonable opinion of the Commissioner, capable of remedy; or
- 16.1.2 the Provider fails to obtain any Consent, loses any Consent, or has any Consent varied or restricted the effect of which might reasonably be considered to have a material adverse effect on the provision of the Services; or
- 16.1.3 the Commissioner reasonably considers that a breach by the Provider of any obligation under the Placement Agreement:
 - 16.1.3.1 may create an immediate and serious threat to the health or safety of any Resident; or
 - 16.1.3.2 may result in a material interruption in the provision of any one or more of the Services to any Resident.

Termination on Financial Standing

16.2 The Commissioner may terminate the Placement Agreement by serving notice on the Provider in writing with effect from the date specified in such notice where (in the reasonable opinion of the Commissioner), there is a material detrimental change in the financial standing and / or the credit rating of the Provider which adversely impacts, or is likely adversely to impact, on the Provider's ability to supply Services under the Placement Agreement.

Termination on Insolvency and Change of Control

- 16.3 The Commissioner may terminate the Placement Agreement with immediate effect by notice in writing where the Provider is a company and in respect of the Provider:
 - 16.3.1 a proposal is made for a voluntary arrangement within Part I of the Insolvency Act 1986 or of any other composition scheme or arrangement with, or assignment for the benefit of, its creditors; or
 - 16.3.2 a shareholders' meeting is convened for the purpose of considering a resolution that it be wound up or a resolution for its winding-up is passed (other than as part of, and exclusively for the purpose of, a bona fide reconstruction or amalgamation); or
 - 16.3.3 a petition is presented for its winding up (which is not dismissed within fourteen (14) days of its service) or an application is made for the appointment of a provisional liquidator or a creditors' meeting is convened pursuant to Section 98 of the Insolvency Act 1986; or
 - 16.3.4 a receiver, administrative receiver or similar officer is appointed over the whole or any part of its business or assets; or

- 16.3.5 an application order is made either for the appointment of an administrator or for an administration order, an administrator is appointed, or notice of intention to appoint an administrator is given; or
- 16.3.6 it is or becomes insolvent within the meaning of Section 123 of the Insolvency Act 1986; or
- 16.3.7 being a "small company" within the meaning of Section 382 of the Companies Act 2006, a moratorium comes into force pursuant to Schedule A1 of the Insolvency Act 1986; or
- 16.3.8 any event similar to those listed in Clause 16.3.1 to Clause 16.3.7 occurs under the law of any other jurisdiction.
- The Provider shall notify the Commissioner immediately if the Provider undergoes a change of control within the meaning of section 450 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 ("Change of Control"). The Commissioner may terminate the Placement Agreement by giving notice in writing to the Provider with immediate effect within six (6) Months of:
 - 16.4.1 being notified that a Change of Control has occurred; or
 - where no notification has been made, the date that the Commissioner becomes aware of the Change of Control;

but shall not be permitted to terminate where an Approval was granted prior to the Change of Control.

16.5 The Commissioner may terminate the Placement Agreement by giving notice in writing to the Provider with immediate effect if a Restricted Person holds five (5) per cent or more of the total value of any shares in the Provider or any of its Affiliates or associate companies.

Termination by the Commissioner

- 16.6 The Commissioner may terminate the Placement Agreement by giving written notice to the Provider with immediate effect if the Framework Agreement is terminated for any reason whatsoever.
- 16.7 The Commissioner shall have the right to terminate the Placement Agreement, or to terminate the provision of any part of the Placement Agreement at any time by giving fourteen (14) days' written notice to the Provider.

17 CONSEQUENCES OF TERMINATION AND EXPIRY

- 17.1 Notwithstanding the service of a notice to terminate the Placement Agreement, the Provider shall continue to fulfil its obligations under the Placement Agreement until the date of expiry or termination of the Placement Agreement or such other date as may be required under this Clause 17.
- 17.2 Termination or expiry of the Placement Agreement shall not cause any other Placement Agreements or the Framework Agreement to terminate automatically. For the avoidance of

doubt, all other Placement Agreements shall remain in force unless and until they are terminated or expire in accordance with their own terms.

- 17.3 Within thirty (30) Working Days of the date of termination or expiry of the Placement Agreement, the Provider shall return to the Commissioner any data and Confidential Information belonging to the Commissioner in the Provider's possession, power or control, either in its then current format or in a format nominated by the Commissioner, together with any other information and all copies thereof owned by the Commissioner.
- 17.4 The Commissioner shall be entitled to require and to have access to data or information arising from the provision of the Services from the Provider.
- 17.5 The Provider must do all things reasonably necessary to effect an orderly handover of the Services to the Commissioner or a replacement Provider.
- 17.6 Notwithstanding the generality of Clause 17.5 above, the Provider shall for a reasonable period before (during any applicable notice period) and after such termination or expiry:
 - 17.6.1 co-operate fully with the Commissioner and any successor Provider of the Services, or such part of the Services that have been terminated in order to ensure continuity and a smooth transfer of the Services, or such part of the Services and to avoid any inconvenience or any risk to the health and safety of the Resident / s or members of the public and to that end the Provider may agree with the Commissioner, and where appropriate with any successor Provider, a transition plan;
 - 17.6.2 promptly render all reasonable assistance and information to the extent necessary to effect an orderly assumption of the Services or such part of the Services by a successor Provider;
 - 17.6.3 in so far as it is in the power of the Provider to do so, use all reasonable efforts to obtain the consent of third parties to the assignment, novation or termination of existing contracts between the Provider and any third party which relate to or are associated with the Services or such part of the Services which have been terminated; and
 - 17.6.4 use all reasonable endeavours to minimise any inconvenience caused to or likely to be caused to the Resident / s as a result of the expiry or termination of the Placement Agreement or part of the Services.
- 17.7 Termination or expiry of the Placement Agreement shall be without prejudice to any rights, remedies or obligations of either Party accrued under the Placement Agreement prior to termination or expiry.
- 17.8 Clauses which expressly or by implication are intended to survive termination shall continue in full force and effect.

18 LIABILITY

The Provider shall fully indemnify and keep indemnified the Commissioner and the Trust in full from and against all claims, proceedings, actions, damages, legal costs, expenses and any

other liabilities whatsoever arising out of, in respect of or in connection with the Placement Agreement including in respect of any death or personal injury, loss of or damage to property, financial or other loss arising from any advice given or omitted to be given by the Provider, or any other loss which is caused directly or indirectly by any act or omission of the Provider.

19 INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

The Provider agrees to indemnify and keep fully indemnified the Commissioner and the Trust against any costs, claims, proceedings, expenses and demands arising in respect of any allegation or claim that any of the Services supplied under this Placement Agreement constitutes or may be alleged to constitute an infringement of any person's Intellectual Property Rights or an infringement of any other legal or equitable right of any person.

20 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

- 20.1 The Placement Agreement constitutes the entire agreement and understanding of the Parties and supersedes (and renders null and void) any previous agreement or understanding between the Parties relating to the subject matters of the Placement Agreement.
- 20.2 Each of the Parties acknowledges and agrees that in entering into the Placement Agreement it does not rely on and shall have no remedy in respect of any statement, representation, warranty or understanding (whether negligently or innocently made) of any person (whether party to this agreement or not) other than as expressly set out in the Placement Agreement.
- 20.3 Nothing in this Clause 20 shall operate to exclude any liability for Fraud.

21 RIGHTS OF THIRD PARTIES

Any Commissioner can enforce the terms of this Placement Agreement which are not reserved to the Commissioner. Subject thereto a person who is not a party to this Placement Agreement ("Third Party") has no right to enforce any term of this Placement Agreement in accordance with the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999, but this does not affect any right or remedy of any person which exists or is available otherwise than pursuant to that Act. If the parties rescind this Placement Agreement or vary any of its terms in accordance with the relevant provisions of this Placement Agreement, such rescission or variation will not require the consent of any Third Party.

22 Notices

- All notices which are required to be given under the Placement Agreement must be in writing and sent to:
 - 22.1.1 in the case of the Commissioner, such person as may be identified in the Placement Agreement; and
 - 22.1.2 in the case of the Provider, such person as may be identified in the relevant Placement Agreement.
- Any such notice may be delivered personally, by e-mail, by first class pre-paid letter or recorded delivery, or by commercial courier and shall be deemed to have been received:

- 22.2.1 if delivered personally, at the time of delivery; or
- 22.2.2 if sent by e-mail, at the time sent; or
- 22.2.3 if sent by first class pre-paid letter or recorded delivery, at 9.00am on the second Working Day after the date of mailing; or
- 22.2.4 if delivered by commercial courier, on the date and at the time that the courier's delivery receipt is signed.
- 22.3 The provisions of this Clause shall not apply to the service of any proceedings or other documents in any legal action which shall be governed by rules of court.

23 DISPUTE RESOLUTION

- 23.1 The Parties shall attempt in good faith to negotiate a settlement to any dispute between them arising out of or in connection with the Placement Agreement within twenty (20) Working Days of either Party notifying the other of the dispute and such efforts shall involve the escalation of the dispute to persons identified in Clause 22 above.
- 23.2 Nothing in this dispute resolution procedure shall prevent the Parties from seeking from any court of competent jurisdiction an interim order restraining the other Party from doing any act or compelling the other Party to do any act or other interim or mandatory relief.
- 23.3 If the dispute cannot be resolved by the Parties pursuant to Clause 23.1 the Parties shall refer it to mediation pursuant to the procedure set out in Clause 23.5 unless:
 - 23.3.1 the Commissioner considers that the dispute is not suitable for resolution by mediation; or
 - 23.3.2 the Provider does not agree to mediation.
- 23.4 The obligations of the Parties under the Placement Agreement shall not be suspended, cease or be delayed by the referral of a dispute to mediation and the Provider and its Staff shall comply fully with the requirements of the Placement Agreement at all times.
- 23.5 The procedure for mediation and consequential provisions relating to mediation are as follows:
 - a neutral adviser or mediator ("the Mediator") shall be chosen by agreement between the Parties or, if they are unable to agree upon a Mediator within ten (10) Working Days after a request by one Party to the other to appoint a Mediator or if the Mediator agreed upon is unable or unwilling to act, either Party shall within ten (10) Working Days from the date of the proposal to appoint a Mediator or within ten (10) Working Days of notice to either Party that he is unable or unwilling to act, apply to CEDR to appoint a Mediator;
 - 23.5.2 the Parties shall within ten (10) Working Days of the appointment of the Mediator meet with him in order to agree a programme for the exchange of all relevant information and the structure to be adopted for negotiations to be held. If considered appropriate, the Parties may at any stage seek assistance from CEDR to provide guidance on a suitable procedure;

- 23.5.3 unless otherwise agreed, all negotiations connected with the dispute and any settlement agreement relating to it shall be conducted in confidence and without prejudice to the rights of the Parties in any future proceedings;
- 23.5.4 if the Parties reach agreement on the resolution of the dispute, the agreement shall be reduced to writing and shall be binding on the Parties once it is signed by their duly authorised representatives;
- 23.5.5 failing agreement, either of the Parties may invite the Mediator to provide a nonbinding but informative opinion in writing. Such an opinion shall be provided on a without prejudice basis and shall not be used in evidence in any proceedings relating to the Placement Agreement without the prior written consent of both Parties; and
- 23.5.6 if the Parties fail to reach agreement in the structured negotiations within sixty (60) Working Days of the Mediator being appointed, or such longer period as may be agreed by the Parties, then any dispute or difference between them may be referred to the courts.

24 GENERAL

- 24.1 The following clauses in the Framework Agreement shall be deemed to be incorporated in the Placement Agreement as if set out here, except that all references to "Framework Agreement" in such clauses shall be deemed to references to the Placement Agreement all references to "party" shall be deemed to be references to a party to the Placement Agreement:
 - 24.1.1 Clause 1 (Interpretation)
 - 24.1.2 Clause 13 (Statutory Requirements)
 - 24.1.3 Clause 28 (Denial Of Partnership)
 - 24.1.4 Clause 30 (Variation to the Framework Agreement)
 - 24.1.5 Clause 31 (Waiver)
 - 24.1.6 Clause 32 (Severability)
 - 24.1.7 Clause 33 (Force Majeure)
 - 24.1.8 Clause 38 (Welsh Language Obligations)
 - 24.1.9 Clause 39 (Costs and Expenses)
 - 24.1.10 Clause 40 (Law and Jurisdiction)

Appendix 1 Variation form

Resident	:: [name / DOB]				
Placement Agreement Reference number: [●]					
Variation	Form No: [•]				
BETWEE	EN:				
[•] ("the	Commissioner"), and				
[•] ("the	Provider")				
1	The Services are varied as follows: [list details of the Variation]				
2	The Service Payments are varied as follows:[set out details of Service Payments]				
3	Words and expressions in this Variation shall have the meanings given to them in the Placement Agreement.				
4	The Placement Agreement, including any previous Variations, shall remain effective and unaltered except as amended by this Variation.				
Authoris	sed to sign for and on behalf of the Commissioner				
Signature	е				
Date					
Name in	Capitals				
Address					
Authoris	sed to sign for and on behalf of the Provider				
Signature	e				
Date					
Name in	Capitals				
Address					

Schedule 4 Pricing

- The Service Payments will be calculated on a per Resident basis by reference to the prices set out in:
 - table 1 of this Schedule 4 (Core Care Package Weekly Price per Resident), plus (if applicable)
 - table 2 of this Schedule 4 (Care Input Tariff for Non-Core Additional Care Hours)
- 2 Prices will be fixed from the Commencement Date until 1 April 2017, when the Provider may, at its discretion, maintain its prices or revise its prices downwards.
- Thereafter, prices will be fixed until 1 October 2017; when the Provider may, at its discretion, maintain its prices or revise its prices downwards.
- Thereafter, prices will be fixed until 1 April 2018; when the Provider may, maintain its prices or revise its prices upwards or downwards (subject to such appropriate price indexation mechanism as the Trust determines).
- The Trust will on or before each of the dates referred to in paragraphs 2, 3 and 4 above undertake a refresh of the Framework Agreement (the "**Refresh**").
- The Refresh will provide for, inter alia, (i) providers of services similar to the Services to apply for appointment onto the Framework Agreement and (ii) current Services Framework Providers to apply for appointment onto the Framework Agreement in relation to different Framework Lots to those onto which they are currently appointed. The Trust will undertake a pre qualification exercise to ensure all potential and current Services Framework Providers satisfy its minimum (i) technical and professional capability requirements and (ii) financial and economic standards (in place from time to time). The Trust may, at its sole discretion, revise the scope, nature and form of the Refresh in whole or in part.
- In addition, the Trust may, at its sole discretion, undertake similar price revisions and additional Refreshes (as set out above) for the remaining duration of the Framework Agreement.
- The Provider's prevailing prices will apply to all Residents receiving Services to the effect that, if as consequence of the pricing revision or Refresh (pursuant to this Schedule 4) the Provider's prices for the Services are revised, the revised prices will apply to both Residents already receiving Services and prospective Residents.
- 9 If the Provider seeks to revise its prices (pursuant to this Schedule 4) the pricing proposal must be submitted in such form as the Trust requires.
- Without prejudice to its right of Audit, the Trust reserves the right to audit any revised pricing proposed (pursuant to this Schedule 4) or seek clarification and request such further information from the Provider as the Trust reasonably requires to ensure, inter alia, that such revised pricing (as may be proposed):
- 10.1 allows for sustainable provision of Services;

- does not give rise to any adverse impact (potential or otherwise) to the scope, standard or quality of the Services received by Residents; and
- 10.3 may be compared, challenged and potentially capped (at the discretion) of the Trust through the use of relevant price indexations applied to cost headings (and associated values submitted by Providers).

TABLE 1 - CORE CARE PACKAGE WEEKLY PRICE PER RESIDENT

Care Home	Unique Identifier	CS 1	CS 2	CS 3	CS 4	CS 5	CS 6	CS 7	CS 8	CS 9

The 'Core Care Package Weekly Price' per Resident relating to each Framework Lot (referred to in Table 1 above) is inclusive of all cost elements of the Services referred to in Schedule 2 Part 1A and / or Part1B (as the case may be) but expressly excludes costs incurred by the Provider in relation to Resident holidays undertaken pursuant to National Minimum Standard number 14.4.

TABLE 2 - CARE INPUT TARIFF FOR NON-CORE ADDITIONAL CARE HOURS

Care Input Staffing Level	Care Input Tariff - £ per hour
Staff Level 1	
Staff Level 2	
Staff Level 3	
Staff Level 4	

Care Input Staffing Level	On Cost % Per Hour
Staff Level 1	
Staff Level 2	
Staff Level 3	
Staff Level 4	

The Commissioner will, by reference to Table 2 above, calculate the cost associated with the provision of 'Non-Core Additional Care Hours' to the Resident (if any).

Urgent Non-Core Care

Costs incurred by the Provider for the provision of UNCC to a Resident must be agreed with the Commissioner within one (1) working day of the same occurring. The price for any UNCC provision will be calculated by reference to the 'Care Input Staffing Level' and the corresponding 'Care Input Tariff' set out in Table 2 above.

Additional Services

Prices for the provision of services to Residents which are outside of the scope and contemplation of the Services set out in Schedule 2 Part 1, including (but not limited to) cost incurred by the Provider in respect of Resident holidays undertaken pursuant to National Minimum Standard number 14.4, shall be agreed between the Commissioner and Provider from time to time on an 'as required' Resident by Resident basis.

15 Invoicing Procedure

- 15.1 The Provider shall at the end of each Month, invoice the Commissioner for Services provided by the Provider in that Month. Such invoice shall be rendered on the Provider's own invoice form clearly marked with all appropriate references together with a detailed breakdown of the Services supplied including (but not limited to)
 - 15.1.1 The Care Home and / or Care Setting, for each Resident, such as their unique NHS number and the Resident Placement Agreement reference and as separate line items:
 - 15.1.1.1 the applicable 'Core Care Package Weekly Price' by reference to Table 1 of this Schedule 4 (weekly or pro-rata for the month);
 - 15.1.1.2 any 'Non-Core Additional Care Hours' provided (in excess of the 21 hours of 1:1 Equivalent Care at Staff Level 1 included in the above Core Care Package Weekly Price), by reference to the applicable Care Input Staffing Level and corresponding Care Input Tariff per Table 2 of this Schedule 4.
 - 15.1.1.3 any UNCC provided by reference to the applicable Care Input Staffing Level and corresponding Care Input Tariff per Table 2 of this Schedule 4.
 - 15.1.1.4 any additional services provided, (identified and referenced to the agreement made with the respective Commissioner) as referred to in paragraph 14 above.

All invoices rendered by the Provider must be supported by such additional documentation as may be required by the Commissioner. Failure to provide such information will entitle the Commissioner to delay or decline payment of invoices rendered until such information is provided.

Schedule 5 Form of resident placement agreement

THIS PLACEMENT AGREEMENT IS DATED [INSERT DATE] AND MADE BETWEEN:

- (i) [●] incorporated and registered in England and Wales with company number [●] whose registered office is at [●] (the "Provider"); and
- (ii) [name of Commissioner] whose principal place of business is at [•] (the "Commissioner").

Care Home: [•]

Provider Resident ID: [•]

In relation to: [Insert Resident Number]

Framework Lot Reference: Lot [number]: [lot description]

BACKGROUND

- (E) The Trust and the Provider have entered into a framework agreement dated [date] (the "Framework Agreement") allowing the Commissioner to request services from the Provider.
- (F) In connection with the Framework Agreement, the Commissioner requests certain services to be provided by the Provider, and the Provider agrees to provide such services to the Commissioner in accordance with this Placement Agreement.

The parties agree that:

1 STRUCTURE

- 1.1 Unless otherwise defined in this Placement Agreement, terms used in this Placement Agreement shall have the meaning given to them in the Framework Agreement.
- 1.2 The Applicable Terms set out in Schedule 3 of the Framework Agreement are incorporated into and form part of this Placement Agreement, as varied and amended by the other provisions of this Placement Agreement. The Provider agrees that it shall provide the Services in accordance with the Applicable Terms and as further set out in this Placement Agreement.

2 TERM

2.1 This Placement Agreement shall commence on [date] and, unless terminated earlier in accordance with the Applicable Terms, shall continue until [date].

3 SERVICES

- 3.1 The Provider shall provide the Services to the Commissioner from [date].
- 3.2 The Provider shall provide the Services at the following Care Setting: [insert details].

	_		
<i>1</i>	CHARGES	AND	DAVMENIT
4	CHARGES	ANU	PATIVICINI

- 4.1 The Service Payments for the Services shall be £[insert sum] weekly together with such additional payments due to the Provider for costs properly incurred in providing the Services to the Commissioner in accordance with Applicable Terms.
- 5 ADDITIONAL SERVICES
- 5.1 [insert details or NOT APPLICABLE]
- 6 NOTICES
- 6.1 All notices which are required to be given under this Placement Agreement for the purposes of Clause 22 of the Applicable Terms must be in writing and sent to:
 - in the case of the Commissioner, [insert name and address]; and
 - in the case of the Provider, [insert name and address].

Signed by (Print Name):		
for and on behalf of	Authorised Signatory	
The Commissioner		
Date:		
Signed by (Print Name):		
for and on behalf of	Director	
[Provider]		
Date:		

Schedule 6 Information requirements

The Provider shall (in such format, and at such times, as may be prescribed by the Trust from time to time) supply to the Trust and the Commissioner:

- 1 On an annual basis:
- 1.1 A satisfaction survey from Residents, Commissioners and the Local Care Team, including the methodology behind, results of and any subsequent corrective actions arising from this survey. The survey must address the following questions
 - 1.1.1 the percentage of Residents who felt that they were treated with dignity and respect by the Staff
 - 1.1.2 overall satisfaction with the Provider's services
 - 1.1.3 percentage of Residents who agree with the statement 'My carer and I were given all the information we needed"
- 1.2 Equality report outlining equality and protected characteristics data on Residents and specific examples of how the Provider has met the duties under the Equality Act 2010 as a third party Provider.
- 1.3 Number of Staff prosecutions related to incidents of violence and aggression against Residents.
- A report detailing the community benefits delivered pursuant to Clause 42 and Schedule 10 of this Framework Agreement.
- 3 On a 3 Monthly basis:
- 3.1 A report detailing a Provider's performance against the Resident Care Outcomes (RCOs); and
- 3.2 A report detailing the status of each Resident within the designated pathway stages and the length of time within that stage.
- 4 On a Monthly basis:
- 4.1 a report detailing any incidents which includes; incident code, date and time of incident, location of incident, whether the incident was investigated, an unique Provider incident reference number, and whether a report is available on request;
- 4.2 a report detailing any safeguarding concerns which includes; date concern occurred, date concern reported, name and contact details of person reported to, date confirmed as a safeguarding incident, Provider report reference number and whether a report is available upon request;
- 4.3 a report detailing complaints which includes; NHS Wales complaint code / sub code, Provider complaint reference number, date complaint received from Resident, carer or Staff, date complaint reported to the Care Co-ordinator / Commissioner, name of Commissioner and

Social Care employee reported to, whether the complaint has been resolved and the date of response to the complainant;

- 4.4 a report detailing Care and Support Plans Reviews which include; date of Care and Support Plan review and the attendance by Care Co-ordinator and other representative from NHS Wales / Local Authority and date of the next Care and Support Plan review meeting;
- 5 Within 10 Working Days (of request):
- 5.1 reports of investigations / actions arising or any other information that the Trust may reasonably require (without prejudice to any of the Trust's rights under this Framework Agreement) from Serious Untoward Incidents.
- 6 Within 5 Working Days (of request):
- any of the Provider's policies, and (without prejudice to any of the Trust's rights under this Framework Agreement) any other information that the Trust may reasonably require from time to time relating to the provision of the Services.
- 7 Within 1 Working Day (of request):
- 7.1 copies of any Care Records relating to the provision of the Services.
- 8 By the next Working Day (of its occurrence):
- 8.1 notification of any severe or critical Serious Untoward Incident; and
- 8.2 notification of unconfirmed or confirmed Adult Safeguarding incident which includes; potential Adult Safeguarding date, potential Adult Safeguarding report date, details of safeguarding team reported to, Provider reference, status (confirmed or unconfirmed), details of any available report and contact number..
- 8.3 Notification of any voluntary or mandatory embargo, censure, complaint, remedial action plan, regulatory breach or non-compliance which the Provider is subject to or which has been imposed upon the Provider (as the case may be) emanating from:
 - 8.3.1 Welsh Government or the Department of Health; or
 - 8.3.2 any commissioning body, local authority or statutory health body in England or Wales; or
 - 8.3.3 any regulatory body including (but not limited to) the Care and Social Services Inspectorate Wales or the Care Quality Commission.
- 9 Promptly, and in any event no later than the next Working Day (of its occurrence):
- 9.1 any fact, matter or circumstance which results or is likely to result in a material detrimental change in the financial and economic standing and / or the credit rating of the Provider and / or which adversely impacts, or is likely adversely to impact, on the Provider's ability to supply Services under this Framework Agreement.

Schedule 7 Quality assurance improvement system

1 BACKGROUND

- 1.1 From the Commencement Date, quality assurance, performance and contract management of Providers will be undertaken by a team (the "Framework Performance Management Team") for an on behalf of the Trust and the Commissioners.
- 1.2 The objectives of the quality assurance, performance and contract management include:
 - 1.2.1 consistent Resident placement processes;
 - 1.2.2 consistent assurance processes;
 - 1.2.3 consistent pricing mechanisms; and
 - 1.2.4 consistent reporting requirements.
- 1.3 The Framework Performance Management Team will utilise the quality assurance improvement system ("QAIS") to monitor performance, Resident Care Outcomes (RCOs) and collect data and such other information as the Trust and / or the Commissioner may require from time to time.
- 1.4 The purpose of the QAIS is to monitor and thereby assure Commissioners that services are being provided in safe and high quality environments that promote rehabilitation and recovery, using pharmacological, psychological and therapeutic interventions that are evidence-based and effective, whilst ensuring value for money.
- 1.5 The Framework Performance Management Team will utilise the NHS Wales secure file sharing portal system (or other electronic / web based system) to enable the sharing of sensitive information such as person identifiable information and commercially sensitive information and ensures this data cannot be intercepted, corrupted or misplaced.
- 1.6 Providers who are appointed onto the Framework Agreement will be advised prior to the Commencement Date of the details of the Framework Performance Management Team and the precise nature of their quality assurance, performance and contract management roles and functions.
- 1.7 The Trust and the Commissioners reserve the right, at their discretion, to share with any other third parties any information or details arising out of or relating to the Providers' provision of the Services, including but not limited to, performance management information and the outcomes of performance monitoring undertaken by the QAIS.

2 PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT

2.1 The Trust and the Commissioner reserve the right to undertake an assessment of the Provider's performance of the Services from time to time. The Provider must agree to such assessment being undertaken. Failure by the Provider to agree to such assessment shall be deemed a Material Default.

- 2.2 Where a Provider is not providing Services under the Framework Agreement the Trust and the Commissioner reserve the right to request the Provider to undertake and make available, on 3 Months' notice, a self- assessment against the Specification. The self-assessment will be of such nature, content and format as the Trust and the Commissioner determines from time to time (acting reasonably).
- 2.3 Notwithstanding Clause 2.2 above, if an assessment against the Specification has been undertaken by the Framework Performance Management Team, the Trust and the Commissioner reserve the right to request the Provider to undertake and make available on an annual basis, a self-assessment against the Specification. The self-assessment will be of such nature, content and format as the Trust and the Commissioner determines from time to time (acting reasonably).
- 2.4 The Parties shall, from time to time, meet to discuss the subject matter of the Provider's performance of the Services at a time and place to be determined by the Trust or the Commissioner (acting reasonably).

3 QUALITY ASSURANCE RATING SYSTEM (QARS)

- 3.1 The Trust has developed a methodology of ranking Providers by applying a quality assurance rating system ("QARS") designated by the letter "Q", which is to be used as part of the Placement Procedure (described in Schedule 2 Part 2).
- 3.2 Each Provider's Care Home will be awarded three (3) Qs as at the Commencement Date.
- 3.3 The Trust expect Providers to maintain a 3Q rating for the duration of the Framework Agreement.
- 3.4 The QARS will be applied to each registered Care Home.

Meeting the Service Specification

4 PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT

- 4.1 Without prejudice to any other rights or remedies available to the Trust and / or the Commissioners, if the Provider fails to meet the Specification or provide accurate and complete information as specified in Clause 14 of the Framework Agreement and Schedule 6 (*Information Requirements*) it will constitute a Level 1 Performance Issue.
- 4.2 If the Provider fails to meet any part of the Specification and in the Trust's or the Commissioners' opinion such failure has resulted in, or has the potential to result in, harm, threat of harm, neglect or has the potential to result in the impairment of, or an avoidable deterioration in, the safety, physical or mental health of a Resident it will constitute a Level 2 Performance Issue.
- 4.3 The consequences of Level 1 or 2 Performance Issues arising are set out in paragraph 5 below.

Improving the Care of the Resident

4.4 Table A in this Schedule 7 (below) details:

- 4.4.1 the Resident Care Outcome (RCO) and reference number (column 1);
- 4.4.2 a description of the performance targets applicable to each RCO (column 2);
- 4.4.3 the points allocated for meeting the performance target / s applicable to each RCO (column 3).
- 4.5 The three (3) monthly score ("Score") attained by the Provider will be calculated on the basis of the aggregate number of points achieved in respect of each Resident.
- 4.6 The Provider must attain a Score of 6 points in relation to each Resident.
- 4.7 If the Provider meets the performance targets set out in column 2 of Table A it will register 1 point in respect the applicable RCO.
- 4.8 If the Provider fails to meet any of the performance targets set out in column 2 of Table A it will register 0 (nil) points in respect of the applicable RCO.
- 4.9 A Level 1 Performance Issue will arise where the Provider only attains a Score of 5 points in relation to any Resident for the applicable Month.
- 4.10 A Level 2 Performance Issue will arise where the Provider only attains a Score of:
 - 4.10.1 4 points or fewer in relation to any Resident for the applicable Month; or
 - 4.10.2 0 (nil) points in respect of the same RCO on two consecutive Months in relation to the same Resident.

5 CONSEQUENCES OF A LEVEL 1 AND LEVEL 2 PERFORMANCE ISSUE

- 5.1 The Trust shall notify the Provider of any Level 1 or Level 2 Performance Issue within 15 Working Days of being aware of such an issue.
- The Provider must resolve any Level 1 or Level 2 Performance Issue to the Trust's and / or the Commissioner's (as the case may be) satisfaction, within (i) 20 Working Days of being notified of such an issue by the Trust and / or the Commissioner (as the case may be) or (ii) such other period as the Trust and / or the Commissioner (as the case may be) may determine. If the Level 1 or Level 2 performance issue is resolved to the Trust's and / or Commissioner's satisfaction within 20 Working Days of notification the Care Home Q rating will remain unchanged.
- 5.3 If a Level 1 Performance Issue has not been resolved pursuant to paragraph 5.2 of this Schedule, the Trust may, at their discretion:
 - 5.3.1 deduct 1 Q from the Provider's QARS rating; and
 - 5.3.2 issue a Level 1 improvement notice ("Level 1 Notice"), in which case paragraph 6 below shall apply; and / or
 - 5.3.3 suspend the Provider's appointment to supply the Services under the Framework Agreement pursuant to Clause 22.1.2; and / or

- 5.3.4 subject to Clause 21 terminate the Provider's appointment under the Framework Agreement.
- If a Level 2 Performance Issue has not been addressed pursuant to paragraph 5.2 of this Schedule, the Trust may, at their discretion:
 - 5.4.1 deduct 2 Qs from the Provider's QARS rating; and
 - 5.4.2 issue a Level 2 improvement notice ("Level 2 Notice"), in which case paragraph 6 below shall apply; and / or
 - 5.4.3 suspend the Provider's appointment to supply the Services under the Framework Agreement pursuant to Clause 22.1.2; and / or
 - 5.4.4 subject to Clause 21 terminate the Provider's appointment under the Framework Agreement.
- 5.5 The Q deduction will take effect on the date that the Level 1 or Level 2 Notice is sent by the Trust to the Provider.

6 REMEDIAL ACTION - LEVEL 1 AND LEVEL 2 NOTICES

- 6.1 The Provider must undertake the improvement actions set out in the Level 1 or Level 2 Notice (the "Actions") as the case may be.
- The Actions must be implemented to the satisfaction of the Trust and / or the Commissioner (as applicable) within (i) three (3) Months of the date of the Level 1 or Level 2 Notice (as applicable), or (ii) such other period as the Provider and the Trust and / or the Commissioner (as applicable) may agree to.
- 6.3 The Trust and / or Commissioners (as the case may be) will review the Provider's progress in meeting the Actions at such intervals as it considers necessary.
- The Provider must, on request, provide a written report to the Trust or the Commissioner (as applicable) detailing progress made in respect of the Actions in advance of any review meeting.
- 6.5 The Trust and / or Commissioners (as the case may be) shall undertake an assessment of the Actions within such period as the Trust or the Commissioner (as applicable) may determine at its discretion, and will notify the Provider of the outcome of the assessment within fifteen (15) Working Days from its conclusion.
- 6.6 If the Trust and / or Commissioners (as the case may be) determines, at its discretion, that the Actions have been satisfactorily implemented the Trust will (i) permit the Provider to restore the provision of the suspended Services by issuing a notice to that effect to the Provider and (ii) restore the Provider's Q rating from the date of notification.
- 6.7 If within three (3) Months (or such other period as agreed to pursuant to paragraph 6.2) of the date of the Level 1 or 2 Level Notice (as applicable) the Trust and / or the Commissioner (as the case may be) determines, at its discretion, that the Actions have not been satisfactorily implemented it may:

- 6.7.1 issue a further Level 1 or 2 Level Notice (in which case paragraphs 6.1 6.7 shall apply; and / or
- 6.7.2 (in the case of the Trust only) suspend or terminate the Provider's appointment pursuant to Clause 21 and 22 of the Framework Agreement.

7 RCO REPORTING

- 7.1 Each three (3) Months and for the duration of the Framework Agreement, the Provider must:
 - 7.1.1 measure and record the RCOs set out in Table A;
 - 7.1.2 submit a report (the "RCO Report") to the Trust detailing the Provider's performance against the RCOs in such format as may be prescribed by the Trust.
- 7.2 The Provider must submit each RCO Report to the Trust as soon as practicable and in any event within ten (10) Working Days of the end of the 3rd Month to which it relates.
- 7.3 The Provider warrants to the Trust that each RCO Report will be accurate in all material respects.
- 7.4 The Trust and the Commissioner may, at their discretion, carry out an assessment of the Provider's performance against the RCOs set out in Table A from time to time over the Term.

8 VARIATION OF RESIDENT CARE OUTCOMES

- 8.1 At any time, the Trust may, at its discretion, add to, reduce or vary the RCOs set out in Table A.
- 8.2 The Trust will provide three (3) Months' written notice to the Provider of any change to the RCOs, with such change to take effect following expiration of the three (3) Months' notice period.

TABLE A

Resident Care Outcome		Performance Measures	Points
RCO – 1 The Provider supported the Resident to be safe	Safeguard within the	vider reported all incidents, complaints and ding incidents related to the Resident, to the Trust e required time scales using the Trust's Care e Performance System or any other system as	1 = both performance measures have been achieved 0 = one or more performance measures have not been achieved
	and com findings addressed	ider duly recorded and investigated all incidents plaints relating to the Resident, any failings or from these investigations were or are being d and this information was shared with the if requested and appropriate.	
RCO – 2 The Provider supported the Resident to feel at home	()	dent's environment of care was clean at all times eekly inspection of the environment's cleanliness rtaken.	1 = both performance measures have been achieved 0 = one or more performance measures have not
	decor, wa	dent's environment of care, including furniture and s in a good state of repair, and maintenance was on on a maximum three monthly basis.	

			been achieved
RCO – 3 The Provider supported the Resident and the Resident's community to value each other	(a)	The Resident was supported to access social, cultural and leisure activities along with educational and vocational resources	1 = both performance measures have been achieved 0 = one or more performance measures have not been achieved
	(b)	No less than once in every three months, the Resident was engaged to understand if their community activities were building on their strengths, were productive and met their needs and interests and that this engagement was clearly documented	
RCO – 4 The Provider supported the Resident to be healthy	(a)	All the Resident's identified primary and secondary physical health care needs were addressed in a timely manner and that all identified physical health care and / or health and well-being interventions were undertaken in accordance with the Care and Support Plan(s)	1 = both performance measures have been achieved 0 = one or more performance measures have not been achieved
	(b)	The reasons for any failure by the Provider to provide, or for the Resident to attend and / or participate in, any identified physical health intervention has been clearly documented.	
RCO – 5 The Provider supported the Resident to recover and stay well	(a)	The Resident was in possession of a co-produced Care and Support Plan(s) and all identified interventions have been undertaken in accordance such Care and Support Plan(s).	1 = both performance measures have been achieved
	(b)	No less than once in every three months the Resident was engaged to review their Care and Support Plan(s) to ensure their needs were met and that any unmet needs were clearly documented and communicated to the Trust.	0 = one or more performance measures have not been achieved
RCO – 6 The Provider supported the Resident to progress and move on	(a)	An adequate and safe level and skill mix of Staff has been established at all times for each Care Setting to ensure the Resident 's needs are met	1 = both performance measures have been achieved
	(b)	The Resident's agreed planned activity is based on decreasing dependence and increasing independence in accordance with the Social Services & Well-being (Wales) Act 2014	0 = one or more performance measures have not been achieved

Schedule 8 Conditions precedent

- It shall be a condition precedent to commencement of the delivery of the Services that the Provider is fit and appropriately authorised to deliver the Services, and as evidence of this the Provider shall deliver to the Trust on or prior to the commencement of Services the following Conditions Precedent documents, or where appropriate copies of them:
- 1.1 the Regulator's registration of the Provider's lawful capacity to provide the Services in respect of the Provider's Lots pursuant to this Framework Agreement;
- 1.2 any Consents required for the provision of the Services by the Provider; and
- 1.3 confirmation that the Provider has in place all appropriate insurance arrangements (acceptable to the Trust) required under this Framework Agreement.
- In addition, the Provider must deliver to the Trust the deed of guarantee set out in Schedule 11, duly executed by the Guarantor and in full force and effect.

Schedule 9

Framework agreement variation procedure

1 PROCEDURE FOR PROPOSING A VARIATION

- 1.1 Except where paragraph 3 applies, the Trust may propose a variation using the procedure contained in this paragraph 1.
- 1.2 In order to propose a variation, the Trust shall serve each Services Framework Provider with written notice of the proposal to vary the Framework Agreement ("**Notice of Variation**").
- 1.3 The Notice of Variation shall contain details of the proposed variation providing sufficient information to allow each Services Framework Provider to assess the variation and consider whether any changes to the prices set out in its Pricing are necessary and shall require each Services Framework Provider to notify the Trust within seven (7) Working Days of any proposed changes to the prices set out in its Pricing.
- 1.4 Where the Trust does not receive any notification of proposed changes to Services Framework Providers' Pricing within the timescales detailed in paragraph 1.3, the Trust may then serve each Services Framework Provider with a written agreement detailing the variation to be signed and returned by each Services Framework Provider within seven (7) days of receipt.
- 1.5 Upon receipt of a signed agreement from each Services Framework Provider, the Trust shall notify all Services Framework Providers in writing of the commencement date of the variation.

2 CHANGES TO THE PRICING

- 2.1 Where a Services Framework Provider can demonstrate that a variation would result in a change to the prices set out in its Pricing, the Trust may require further evidence from the Services Framework Provider that any additional costs to the Services Framework Provider will be kept to a minimum.
- 2.2 The Trust may require the Services Framework Provider to meet and discuss any proposed changes to the Pricing that would result from a variation.
- 2.3 Where a change to a Services Framework Provider's Pricing is agreed by the Trust, the Trust shall notify its acceptance of the change to the Services Framework Provider in writing.
- In the event that the Trust and the Services Framework Provider cannot agree to the changes to the Pricing, the Trust may:
 - 2.4.1 withdraw the variation; or
 - 2.4.2 propose an amendment to the variation.

3 VARIATIONS WHICH ARE NOT PERMITTED

3.1 The Trust may not propose any variation which is in contravention of any Law.

Schedule 10 Community benefits

[NOT USED]

Schedule 11 Guarantee

Date:

- (1) [Guarantor]
- (2) Velindre NHS Trust

Deed of Guarantee



Blake Morgan One Central Square Cardiff CF10 1FS Ref: 215110.344

1

CONTENTS

1	Interpretation
2	The Guarantee3
3	Enforcement4
4	Obligations of Guarantor4
5	Guarantor's Warranties and Representations4
6	Claims of the Guarantor against the Provider5
7	Set-Off5
8	Amendments to obligations under the Framework Agreement6
9	Continuing Security6
10	Assignment7
11	Discharge to be Conditional7
12	Payment Free of Deduction7
13	Severance7
14	Entire Agreement8
15	Notices8
16	No waiver; cumulative remedies9
17	Counterparts9
18	Exclusion of Third Party Rights9
19	Disputes9
20	Law and Jurisdiction9

1

BETWEEN:

- (1) [GUARANTOR] (company number: [XXX]) whose registered address [XXXX] (the "Guarantor"), and
- (2) Velindre NHS Trust whose principal place of business is at Unit 2 Charnwood Court, Parc Nantgarw, Nantgarw, Cardiff, CF15 7QZ which expression includes its successors and assigns including any successor in the exercise of its functions) (the "Trust").

BACKGROUND:

- (G) On 1 October 2016, [Provider] (company number: [xxx]) whose registered address is [xxxxx] (the "Provider"), entered into an agreement with the Trust for the provision of services to adults (18 64 years) in mental health and learning disabilities care homes & care homes with nursing (the "Framework Agreement").
- (H) The Trust has requested the Guarantor to guarantee the due performance of services provided by the Provider pursuant to the Framework Agreement in accordance with the terms of this Deed of Guarantee.

OPERATIVE PROVISIONS

In consideration of the Trust entering into the Framework Agreement with the Provider the Guarantor hereby agrees with the Trust with effect from 1 October 2016 as follows:

1 INTERPRETATION

- 1.1 In this Agreement, unless the context indicates a contrary intention:
 - 1.1.1 words suggesting the singular include the plural and vice versa;
 - 1.1.2 words suggesting any gender include any other gender;
 - 1.1.3 references to a person include a company, corporation, and unincorporated or incorporated association or statutory authority;
 - 1.1.4 headings used for clauses, paragraphs, subparagraphs, Schedules, Annexes and the table of contents are for ease of reference only and will not affect the interpretation of this Deed of Guarantee;
 - 1.1.5 references to any agreement or instrument are to that agreement or instrument as amended, novated, supplemented, varied or replaced from time to time;
 - 1.1.6 use of the words 'includes' or 'including' means without limitation, unless the contrary intention appears;
 - 1.1.7 a reference to any 'body' is:

- 1.1.7.1 if that body is replaced by another organisation, deemed to refer to that organisation; and
- 1.1.7.2 if that body ceases to exist, deemed to refer to the organisation which most nearly or substantially serves the same purposes or objects as that body;
- 1.1.8 references to statutes shall be to (i) such statutes as amended, replaced or supplemented; (ii) any regulations made under such statutes; and (iii) UK statutes; and
- 1.1.9 references to "subsidiary" or "holding company" shall have the meanings ascribed to them by the Companies Act 2006.

2 THE GUARANTEE

- 2.1 If the Provider fails or has failed to fully and punctually perform its obligations under the Framework Agreement or commits or has committed any breach of its obligations under the Framework Agreement, the Guarantor, irrecoverably and unconditionally, undertakes that, upon demand by the Trust, it shall:
 - 2.1.1 indemnify and keep the Trust indemnified against all losses, damages, claims, demands, actions, proceedings, liabilities, costs and expenses (including, but not limited to, any court costs and legal fees) which may be incurred by the Trust arising out of all and any such failures or breaches; and
 - 2.1.2 as a separate, independent and unconditional obligation and as primary obligor of payments and performance, be responsible for and hereby guarantee to the Trust the due performance by the Provider of the Provider's obligations under the Framework Agreement;
 - 2.1.3 as a separate, independent and unconditional obligation and as primary obligor of payment and performance, fully, punctually and specifically perform the Provider's obligations under the Framework Agreement or procure the performance by any subsidiary or holding company of the Guarantor (or a subsidiary of such holding company). The Guarantor shall perform, fulfil and observe all terms, warranties and representations in the Framework Agreement as if the said terms, warranties and representations were directly entered into by the Guarantor and the Trust; and
 - 2.1.4 as a separate, independent and unconditional obligation and as primary obligor of payment and performance, pay to the Trust in the currency in which the same falls due for payment, all monies and liabilities which are now, or at any time in the future become due, owing or incurred by the Provider to or in favour of the Trust under or in connection with the Framework Agreement.
- 2.2 The Guarantor as a separate and independent obligation covenants with the Trust that if the Provider goes into liquidation and the liquidator disclaims the Framework Agreement the liability of the Guarantor under this Deed of Guarantee shall remain in full force and effect for any claims, demands, losses, damages, costs and expenses suffered or incurred by the Trust as a result of such liquidation or the related termination of the Framework Agreement.

3 ENFORCEMENT

- 3.1 Any demand under this Deed of Guarantee shall be in writing, addressed to the Guarantor at the address specified in Clause 15 or such other address as the Guarantor has from time to time notified to the Trust as being an address for the receipt of such demands in accordance with Clause 15, and shall be accompanied by a statement identifying the nature of the claim by the Trust. Each such demand and statement shall be copied to the Provider at its registered office or such other address as the Provider has from time to time notified to the Trust as being an address for the receipt of such demands. The Guarantor shall be liable under this Deed of Guarantee only if, upon the expiry of ten (10) days after the date of any such demand, the same shall not have been fully discharged by the Provider.
- 3.2 Nothing in this Deed of Guarantee shall grant to the Trust any right of action against the Guarantor unless the Trust has given all requisite notices of default, if any, to the Provider pursuant to the Framework Agreement and all applicable remedy periods, if any, for the Provider to remedy such default(s) have expired.
- 3.3 The Guarantor shall not be discharged or released from this Deed of Guarantee by any arrangement made between the Provider and the Trust without the assent of the Guarantor or by any amendment to or termination of the Framework Agreement or by any forbearance or indulgence whether as to payment, time, performance or otherwise granted by the Trust in relation thereto and, except as provided below, the Guarantor hereby expressly consents to any and all such arrangements, amendments, terminations, forbearances, or indulgence. If the Guarantor is called upon to perform, fulfil and observe any or all of the terms of the Framework Agreement, it shall do so on the basis of the terms and conditions of the Framework Agreement.

4 OBLIGATIONS OF GUARANTOR

4.1 The obligations of the Guarantor under this Deed of Guarantee are those of primary obligor and such obligations exist irrespective of any total or partial invalidity, illegality or unenforceability of the Framework Agreement. The Trust shall not be obliged before taking steps to enforce this Deed of Guarantee against the Guarantor to obtain judgment against the Provider or the Guarantor or any third party in any Court, or to make or file any claim in a bankruptcy or liquidation of the Provider or any third party, or to take any action whatsoever against the Provider or the Guarantor or any third party, provided always that the Trust shall only seek to enforce the obligations of the Guarantor under this Deed of Guarantee when it is satisfied at its sole discretion that the Provider is unable or unwilling to perform its obligations under the Framework Agreement or is unable or unwilling to remedy any breach of its obligations under the Framework Agreement.

5 GUARANTOR'S WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS

5.1 The Guarantor warrants and represents that it is duly registered and validly existing under the laws of England and Wales, has the capacity to sue and be sued in its own name, has all power and authority to enter into and perform (or co-ordinate the performance of) the obligations contemplated by this Deed of Guarantee and that this Deed of Guarantee constitutes its legal, valid and binding obligation and is enforceable against the Guarantor in accordance with its terms.

5.2 The Guarantor further warrants and represents that, by entering into this Deed of Guarantee, the Guarantor will not breach its bye-laws, any existing law, statute, rule or regulation or any judgment, decree or permit to which the Guarantor is subject or any other deeds or arrangements subsisting at the date of this Deed of Guarantee, nor will it enter into any deed or arrangement which will limit its ability to perform its obligations under this Deed of Guarantee.

6 CLAIMS OF THE GUARANTOR AGAINST THE PROVIDER

- 6.1 Until the obligations and liabilities of the Provider under the Framework Agreement have been performed, paid or discharged in full, and the Guarantor released from this Deed of Guarantee, the Guarantor will not by virtue of any payment or performance or by any other means or on any other grounds, except with the prior written consent of the Trust or as provided below:
 - 6.1.1 make or enforce any claim (whether by way of set-off, counterclaim or otherwise) or right against the Provider or prove in competition with the Trust, whether in respect of any payment or performance hereunder by the Guarantor or otherwise; or
 - 6.1.2 be entitled to claim or have the benefit of, any set-off, counterclaim or proof against, or dividend paid on a winding-up or composition with creditors by the Provider; or
 - 6.1.3 be entitled to claim or otherwise obtain the benefit (by way of subrogation or otherwise) of any security or guarantee or indemnity at any time held by the Trust for or in respect of any of the obligations of the Provider under the Framework Agreement; or
 - 6.1.4 claim or enforce any right of contribution against any co-surety.
- 6.2 If the Guarantor shall have any right of proof or claim in the winding-up, voluntary arrangement, receivership or administration of the Provider which does not derive from any performance or payment made hereunder, the Guarantor shall (except where the Trust shall otherwise require) exercise that right, or claim on behalf of the Trust and hold any dividend or other money received in respect thereof upon trust for the Trust to the extent of such liability or in like manner hold upon trust any money which it may receive or recover from any co-surety by virtue of any rights of contribution.
- If, while the Guarantor remains liable to the Trust hereunder, any monies or other property or assets shall be received or recovered by the Guarantor in breach of any provisions of this Clause, such monies or other property or assets shall be held upon trust to pay or transfer the same to the Trust to the extent of such liability.

7 SET-OFF

7.1 Without prejudice to and in addition to any other remedy of set-off which the Trust may have, at any time after a demand hereunder or if at the relevant time the obligations and liabilities of the Provider under the Framework Agreement shall not have been performed, paid or otherwise discharged, the Trust shall be entitled, without prior notice to the Guarantor, to set off the liability of the Guarantor hereunder against any monies in whatsoever currency standing to the credit of the Guarantor.

8 AMENDMENTS TO OBLIGATIONS UNDER THE FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT

- 8.1 The liabilities or obligations of the Guarantor under this Deed of Guarantee shall remain in effect and shall not be diminished or impaired, notwithstanding:
 - 8.1.1 any withdrawal of any demand (including the commencement and continuance of any legal proceedings) by the Trust for payment or performance by the Provider of any of the obligations under the Framework Agreement or for payment thereof under this Deed of Guarantee;
 - 8.1.2 any amendment, extension, modification discharge, compromise, consent, variation, or waiver, express or implied, of any obligation under the Framework Agreement or of any documents relating thereto;
 - 8.1.3 any release of any security, under this Deed of Guarantee, by the Trust;
 - 8.1.4 any grant of time or indulgence, by the Trust, towards the obligations of the Provider under the Framework Agreement.
 - 8.1.5 any compromise by the Trust of any obligations under the Framework Agreement or this Deed of Guarantee and any other guarantee in respect thereof;
 - 8.1.6 any invalidity or unenforceability of the Framework Agreement, in whole or in part, against the Provider (except that this provision shall not be a waiver of any of the Provider's claims under the Framework Agreement); or
 - 8.1.7 the winding-up, amalgamation, reconstruction or reorganisation or any change of constitution or name of the Provider or the Guarantor (or the commencement of any of the foregoing).

9 CONTINUING SECURITY

- 9.1 The Deed of Guarantee is irrevocable and absolute and shall be a continuing security for payment and performance of all the obligations owing to the Trust and, accordingly, it shall:
 - 9.1.1 not be discharged by any partial performance (except to the extent of such partial performance) by the Provider of its obligations under the Framework Agreement; and
 - 9.1.2 extend to cover the unperformed part of the obligations of the Provider from time to time under the Framework Agreement.
- 9.2 Except as set out in Clause 3 above, when pursuing its rights and remedies under this Deed of Guarantee against the Guarantor, the Trust may, but shall be under no obligation to, pursue such rights and remedies as it may have against the Provider, unless all of the obligations owing to the Trust shall have been satisfied by payment in full. Any failure by the Trust to pursue any rights or remedies, or to collect any amounts from the Provider, shall not relieve the Guarantor from its obligations under this Deed of Guarantee.

10 ASSIGNMENT

- 10.1 Subject to Clause 11.2, this Deed of Guarantee shall remain in full force and effect and be binding upon the Guarantor and the successors and assigns of such Guarantor, and shall benefit the Trust and the respective successors, transferees and assignees of the Trust (to the extent that the obligations have been transferred and are owing to such successor, transferee or assignee in accordance with the Framework Agreement), until all the obligations owing to the Trust and the obligations of the Guarantor under this Deed of Guarantee with respect therein shall have been satisfied by payment and performance in full.
- 10.2 A Guarantor may, subject to obtaining the Trust's prior written consent (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed) merge with another entity or sell all or substantially all of its assets to another entity if the successor entity delivers to the Trust a written instrument unconditionally assuming and agreeing to perform all of such Guarantor's obligations under this Deed of Guarantee. The Trust reserves the right to:
 - 10.2.1 request details of the financial standing of such successor entity; and
 - 10.2.2 to withhold its consent to the proposed sale or merger to such successor entity, if the Trust considers that the successor entity is not of an equivalent or superior financial standing to that of the Guarantor.

11 DISCHARGE TO BE CONDITIONAL

- 11.1 Any release, discharge or settlement between the Guarantor and the Trust in connection with this Deed of Guarantee shall be conditional upon no right, security, disposition or payment to the Trust by the Guarantor or any other person being void, set aside or ordered to be refunded under any enactment or law relating to breach of duty by any person, bankruptcy, liquidation, administration, protection from creditors generally or insolvency or for any other reason.
- 11.2 If any such right, security, disposition or payment is void or at any time so set aside or ordered to be refunded, the Trust shall be entitled subsequently to enforce this Deed of Guarantee against the Guarantor as if such release, discharge or settlement had not occurred and any such right, security, disposition or payment had not been made.

12 PAYMENT FREE OF DEDUCTION

The Guarantor shall pay all monies due under this Deed of Guarantee free and clear of and without deduction for or on account of either any set-off or counterclaim or any and all present or future taxes, levies, charges, fees, deductions or withholdings. If any sums payable hereunder shall be or become subject to any such deduction or withholding, the amount of such payments shall be increased so that the net amount received by the Trust shall equal the amount which, but for the deduction or withholding, would have been received by the Trust under this Deed of Guarantee.

13 SEVERANCE

13.1 If any provision of this Deed of Guarantee is held invalid, illegal or unenforceable for any reason by any court of competent jurisdiction, such provision shall be severed and the

remainder of the provisions hereof shall continue in full force and effect as if this Deed of Guarantee had been executed with the invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision eliminated.

14 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

14.1 This Deed of Guarantee is made pursuant to Clause 42 of the Framework Agreement and supersedes all prior agreements, arrangements and undertakings between the parties other than the Framework Agreement, and constitutes, with the Framework Agreement, the entire agreement between the parties relating to the subject matter of the Framework Agreement and this Deed of Guarantee. No addition to or modification of any provision of this Deed of Guarantee shall be binding upon the parties unless made by a written instrument signed by a duly authorised representative of each of the parties.

15 NOTICES

- 15.1 Form, contents and Delivery: Any demand, notice or other communication to be given or made in writing under this Agreement will be deemed to have been duly given or made as follows:
 - 15.1.1 if sent by prepaid first class post on the second working day after the date of posting; or
 - 15.1.2 if delivered by hand upon delivery at the address provided for in this Agreement; or
 - 15.1.3 if sent by facsimile on the day of transmission provided that a confirmatory copy is sent by pre-paid first class post on the same working day that the facsimile is transmitted.

Provided however that if it is delivered by hand or sent by facsimile on a day which is not a Working Day or after 4.00 p.m. on a working day it will instead be deemed to have been given or made on the next working day.

15.2 Any such demand notice or other communication must be addressed to and sent to the recipient at:

The Trust:

Mr Nicholas Craig Cowley,
NHS Wales Shared Services Partnership,
4th Floor,
Companies House,
Crown Way,
Cardiff,
CF14 3UB

The Guarantor:

[xxxx]

or at such other address or fax number as may from time to time be notified in writing by the Parties as being the address for Services provided that in the case of a company it may instead (at the option of the sender) be addressed to the registered office for the time being.

16 No waiver; cumulative remedies

- 16.1 None of the terms or provisions of this Deed of Guarantee may be waived, amended, supplemented or otherwise modified except by a written instrument executed by the Guarantor and the Trust.
- The Trust shall not by any act (except by a written instrument pursuant to Clause 16.1) or by any delay, indulgence or omission be deemed to have waived any right or remedy hereunder. No failure to exercise, nor any delay in exercising on the part of the Trust, any right, power or privilege hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof. No single or partial exercise of any right, power or privilege hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof. No single or partial exercise of any right, power or privilege under this Deed of Guarantee shall preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power, or privilege. A waiver by the Trust of any right or remedy on any occasion shall not be construed as a bar to any right or remedy which the Trust would otherwise have on any future occasion.

17 COUNTERPARTS

17.1 This Deed of Guarantee may be executed in more than one counterpart each of which shall be deemed to constitute an original.

18 EXCLUSION OF THIRD PARTY RIGHTS

18.1 A person who is not a party to this Deed of Guarantee shall have no right under the Contract (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 to enforce its terms.

19 DISPUTES

- 19.1 Any dispute, controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this agreement, including any question regarding its breach, existence, validity or termination or the legal relationships established by this agreement, shall be finally resolved by arbitration. It is agreed that:
 - 19.1.1 the tribunal shall consist of one arbitrator who is to be a practising Barrister of at least 10 years' call practising in the field of commercial disputes;
 - 19.1.2 in default of the parties' agreement as to the arbitrator the appointing authority shall be the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators in London;
 - 19.1.3 the seat of the arbitration shall be Cardiff, Wales; and
 - 19.1.4 the language of the arbitration shall be English.

20 LAW AND JURISDICTION

This Deed of Guarantee shall be construed as being made in Wales and in accordance with and governed by the Laws of England and Wales, as they are applied in Wales.

20.2	Each party to this Deed of Guarantee irrevocably agrees to submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the Courts of England and Wales sitting in Cardiff.					
IN WITNESS whereof this Deed of Guarantee is signed on the date first shown above.						

Executed as a DEED for and on behalf	
of [Guarantor]	Authorised Signatory
	Name
	Position
In the presence of:-	
NameAddress	
Occupation	
Executed as a DEED for and on behalf of Velindre NHS Trust	Authorised Signatory
	Name
	Position
In the presence of:-	
NameAddress	
Occupation	



Agenda Item 9

By virtue of paragraph(s) 13 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.



By virtue of paragraph(s) 13 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.



By virtue of paragraph(s) 13 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.



By virtue of paragraph(s) 13 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

